Big Stone South to Ellendale

Soybean Cyst Nematode Mitigation Plan

Background Information

The soybean cyst nematode (Heterodera glycines) (SCN) has been identified throughout the
Project area and was first identified in 1997%n the three counties within which the Project
traverses. The SCN can be spread through the movement of affected soil. It moves very slowly
through wind-blown soils, wind and water erosion, and cultivation practices and has been
known to survive in the soil for a decade®.

The Project developed a mitigation plan described below to reduce the risk of spreading SCN
from affected to non-affected fields. This mitigation plan has the following approach:

* Perform a field assessment to identify the presence or absence of the SCN within
cultivated fields crossed by the Project right-of-way (ROW)

* Identify acceptable measures to mitigate spreading SCN during construction

* Hold construction crews accountable through inspection and monitoring during
construction

Mitigation Plan

Field Assessment

Sampling for SCN commonly targets high probability areas in cultivated fields, which includes
field lines, field entrances, and low spots®. The goal of the field assessment is to identify the
presence or absence of the SCN in the cultivated fields crossed by the Project. The sampling
protocol will be completed in accordance with the South Dakota State University protocol.

Mitigation Measures

Mitigating the spread of SCN from an existing affected field to a non-SCN affected field, a
variety of measures may be utilized, which are dependent on soil conditions, weather
conditions, topography, distance traveled, equipment type, and cost. Unfortunately, one
mitigation measure alone is not a “catch-all” and will be determined on a site-specific basis,
Measures to assist in the control of soils on equipment may include: cleaning stations, utilizing
clean crews for non-affected fields and a dirty crew for affected fields, equipment mats, and

! Strunk, Connie. 2013. Soybean Cyst Nematodes: An expanding pest in South Dakota.
http://igrow.org/agronomy/soybeans/soybean-cyst-nematodes-an~expanding—pest-in-south~dakota/

z Niblack, T. L., K. N. Lambert, and G. L. Tylka. 2006. A Model Plant Pathogen from the Kingdom Animalia:
Heterodera glycines, the Soybean Cyst Nematode. Annual Review of Phytopathology 44: 283-303

* Smolik, 1.D., M.A. Draper, 2007.Soybean Cyst Nematode South Dakota Extension Fact Sheet 902-A. SDSU Plant
Science Department. http://pubstorage.sdstate.edu/AgBio_Publications/articles/F5902A.pdf
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Big Stone South to Ellendale

weather-dependent construction (i.e. frozen and dry soils). The measures ultimately used will
depend on the results of the sampling effort, cost, resource availability, and contractor input.

N
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Inspection/Monitoring
The Project is committing to training and identifying individuals responsible for monitoring
construction personnel in their implementation of this plan.
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BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION. SETTLEMENT STIPULATION
OF MONTANA-DAKOTA UTILITIES CO, _
AND OTTER TAIL POWER COMPANY EL13-028

'FOR A PERMIT TO CONSTRUCT THE
BIG STONE SOUTH TO ELLENDALE 345

KV TRANSMISSION LINE

It is hereby stipulated and agreed by and among Montana-Dakota Utilities Co, and Otter
Tail Power Company (jointly "Applicant"), and the South Dakots Public Utilities Commission
Staff ("Staff") (jointly "Party” or "Parties"), that the following Settlement Stipulation
("Stipulation”) may be adopted by the South Dakota Public Utilities Commission
("Commission") in the above-captioned matter. In support of its Application to the Public
(hilities Commission of the State of South Dakota for a Facility Permit (“Facility Permit”),
Applicant does hereby offer this Stipulation, the Application filed August 23, 2013, as amended,
and all responses submitted by the Applicant to the Staff's data requests, all responses to Gerald
Pesall’s discovery requests, and the testimony and exhibits filed on April 25, 2014, May 9, 2014
and May 23, 2014, conditioned upon the Commission accepting the following Stipulation and
the Terms and Conditions without any material condition or modification,

L INTRODUCTION

Applicant proposes to own and construct the Big Stone South to Eliendale 345 kv
electric transmission facilities ("Project"). The Project includes new 345 kV electric transmission
facilities of approximately 160 to 170 miles in length, which will connect the new Ellendale 345
kV Substation with the Big Stone South Substation, Approximately 150 to 160 miles of
fransmission facilities will be located in South Dakota, The Project also involves the building of
a new 345 kV substation (“Ellendale 345 kV Substation™) and substation tie line near Ellendale,

North Dakota. '
11, PURPOSE

This Stipulation has been prepared and executed by the Parties for the sole purpose of
stating the Parties’ agreement rogarding the issuance of a Facility Permit in Docket No, EL13-
028, In consideration of the mutual promises hereinafter set forth, the Parties agree as follows:

1. Upon execution of the Stipulati'on, the Parties shall file this Stipulation with the
Commission together with a joint motion requesting that the Commission issue an
order approving this Stipulation in its entirety without condition or modification.




This Stipulation includes all terms and conditions of settlement and is submitted with
the condition that, in the event the Commission imposes any material changes or
conditions to this Stipulation, which are unacceptable to any Party, this Stipulation
may, at the option of any Party, be withdrawn and shall not constitute any part of the
record in this proceeding or any other proceeding nor be used for any other purpose.

This Stipulation shall become binding upon execution by the Partics, provided
however, that if this Stipulation does not become effective in accordance with
Paragraph 2 above, it shall be null and void. This Stipulation is intended to relate only
to the specific matter referred to herein; no Party waives any claim or right, which it
may otherwise have, with respect to any matter not expressly provided for herein. No
Party or 4 representative thereof shall directly or indirectly refer to this Stipulation as
precedent in any other curvent or future proceeding before the Commission,

The Parties to this proceeding stipulate that all pre-filed exhibits and ple-ﬁled
testimony submitted by the Applicant will be made a patt of the record in this

proceeding.

The terms and conditions contained in this Stipulation shall inure to the benefit of and
be binding upon the respective successors, affiliatcs, owners, stockholdets, partners,
parents, subsidiaries, directors, officers, agents, employees, representatives, attorneys,
and assigns of the Parties. In addition, the terms and conditions of this Stipulation,
including all facts leading up to the signing of this Stipulation, shall bind the Parties,
including consultants, contractors, and retained professionals.

This Stipulation constitutes the entire agreement befween the Parties and shall be
deemed fo supersede any other understandings or agreements, whether written, oral,
expressed or implied, relating to the Applncanon This Stlpulatlon may not be
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terms and conditions of this Stipulation may not be given without the written consent

thereto executed by all Parties.

This Stipulation shall be interpreted and construed in accordance with the laws of the
State of South Dakota.

This Stipulation may be exccuted by electronic mail or facsimile and in multiple
counterpatts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which together
shall constitute one and the same document.

The Parties recognizo that the Commission. has granted intervention to Gerald Pesall,
James R, McKane, III, Clark T. Olson, Shuring Farms, Inc., Bradley R, Morehouse,
and Kevin Anderson (collectively “Intervenors™), The Intervenors are not parties to

this Stipulation.

10. The Parties agree that subject to the four elements of proof under SDCL § 49-41B-22,
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the Commission has the authority to grant, deny, or grant upon reasonable terms,
conditions or modifications a permit for the construction, operation, and maintenance

of the Pruject, The Parties further agree that the Applicant has met its burden of proof .

pursuant to SDCL § 49-41B-22 and is entitled to & permit to construct the Project as
provided in SDCL § 49- 41B-24, subject to the following:

I, TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE SETTLEMENT STIPULATION

1.
Applicant will obiain all applicable and necessary governmenfal permits, which
reasonably may be required by any governmental authority with jurisdiction, prior to engaging in
the particular activity covered by that permit.

2, '
Applicant shall construct, operate, and maintain the Project in a manner consistent with:
(1) descriptions in the Application, (2) Application supplements, (3) responses to data requests,
(4) the Terms and Conditions of the Permit to Construct Facilities, and (5) any applicable

industry standards,

3
Applicant agrees that the Commission's complaint process as set forth in ARSD 20:10:01
shall be available to landowners, other persons sustaining or threatened with damage as the result
of Applicant's failure to abide by the conditions of the Permit or otherwise having standing to
seck enforcement of the conditions of the Permit,

4. :
Applicant shall provide each landowner on whose property the Project is to be
constructed or located with the following information;

a) A copy of the Commission's Order Granting Permit to Construct Facilities;
b) Detailed safety information describing:

1) Reasonable safety precautions for activities on or near the Project,

2) Known activities or uses that are prohibited near the Project, and

3) Other known potential dangers or limitations near the Project;
¢) Construction/maintenance damage compensation policies and procedures;
d) Commission's address, website, and phone number; and

¢) Contact person for Applicant, inchuding name, e-mail address, and phone number.

Once the foregoing information has been provided fo the landowner, Applicant shall have no
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responsibility or duty to update such information except for changes to items b), ¢), and €) in this
paragraph 4. -

5.
In order to ensure compliance with the terms and conditions of this Permit pursuant to
SDCL § 49-41B-33, it is necessary for the enforcement of this Order that all employees,
contractors, and agents of the Applicant involved in this Project be made aware of the terms and

conditions of this Permit.
6.

Except as otherwise provided in the conditions of this Stipulation, the Applicant shall
comply with all mitigation measures set forth in the Application, in Applicant’s responses to
Staff data requests, Applicant’s responses to Intervenor’s discovery, and in Applicant’s prefiled
testimony and exhibits, Material modifications to the mitigation measures shall be subject to

prior approval of the Commission. \

7.

Applicant will negotiate road use agreements with applicable government authorities with
jurisdiction, if required during construction. Applicant will follow the terms of all road use
agreements. Applicant shall take appropriate action to mitigate wind-blown particles created
throughout the construction process, including but not limited to implementation of dust control
measures such as road watering, covering of open haul trucks when transporting material subject
to being windblown, and the removal from the road surface of any soils or mud deposits from the

road surface when necessary.

8,
Applicant shall comply with the following conditions regarding road protection;

)] Applicant shall acquire all applicable and necessary permits authorizing the
crossing of federal, state, county, and township roads.

b) Applicant shall coordinate road closures with federal, state and locel governments
and emergency responders.

c) Applicant shall implement & regular program of road maintenance and repair
throughout the active construction period to keep paved and gravel roads in an
acceptable condition for residents and the public,

d) After construction, - Applicant shall repair and restore deteriorated roads to the
conditions defined in the road use agreement, if applicable, resulting from
Applicant’s construction traffic, or compensate governmental entities for their
repair and restoration of deteriorated roads caused by Applicant, such that the
roads are returned to their preconstruction condition,

€) Privately owned arcas used as temporary roads during construction will be
restored to their preconstruction condition, except as otherwise requested or

agreed to by the landowner.
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f) Should Applicant need to widon any existing roadways during construction of the
Project, Applicant shali retwrn the roadways back to original width after
completion of the Project, unless otherwise agreed upon,

9,
will coordinate with pipeline owners to ensure that the Project does not cause

Applicant
1 work with pipeline owners to implement any

harm to existing pipeline facilities. Applicant wil
necessary and reasonable mitigation measures. .

10,
Apphcant will provide signage that identifies road closures and disturbances resulting
from the Project in accordance with the most recent edition of the Manual on Uniform Traffic
Control Devices as published by the Federal Highway Administration.

11.
Applicant shall promptly report to the Commission the presence of any critical habitat of
threatened or endangered species or native grasslands in the siting area that Applicant becomes
aware of and that was not previously reported to the Commission,

12.

Applicant agrees to avoid direct impacts to archaeological and architectural site features
that are listed on or that are eligible for listing on the National Register of Mistoric Places
(NRHP), and those that are not evaluated for listing on the NRHP, When NRHP-¢ligible or listed
sites cannot be avoided, Applicant will notify the State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) and
the Commission of the reasons that complete avoidance cannot be achieved in order to
coordinate minimization and/or develop treatiment measures.

13,

If, during construction, Applicant discovers what may be a cultural resource, human
skeletal remains, or associated funerary objects, Applicant or its agent shall immediately cease
work at the location and notify the landownex(s), the SHPO, and other authorities as appropriaie
(per SDCL § 34-27-25 and SDCL § 34-27-28 in the case of human burials), If it is determined, in
coordination with SHPO, that a significant resource is present, Applicant shall develop a plan
that is acceptable to the landowner and SHPO that minimizes the adverse impact or threat to the

regource,

14. -

Applicant shall follow a) all conditions required by any agency permits and b) all final
agency recommendations agreed o by Applicants through consultation with those applicable
agencies in Fxhibit 1, Appendix C. Applicant shall reasonably update the Commission if any of
the final agency recommendations agreed to by the Applicant as provided for in this paragraph
(14) change from Exhibit 1, Appendix C.
15.

Applicant shall confor with the applicable agencies in the implementation of measures for

the protection of avian specics consistent with “Suggested Practices_for Avian Protection on




Power Lines: The State of the Art in- 2006” and “Reducing Avian Collisions with Power Lines:

State of the Ast in 20127 prepared by the Avian Power Line Interaction Commiitee,

16,

Applicant shall provide the Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPFP) to the
Commission prior to submittal of an application for a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination
System (NPDES) general permit for construction activities. The SWPPP will outline the water
and soil conservation praciices that will be used during construction to prevent or minimize
erosion and sedimentation as required by the NPDES permit, All contractors will be given a copy
of the SWPPP and requirements will be reviewed with them prior to the start of construction,

‘ 17.
Applicant shall develop and implement a mitigation plan to minimize the spread of
soybean cyst nematode, consistent with Exhibit 23, in consultation with a crop pest control

expert,

18,

Applicant will repair and restore areas materially impacted by construction or
maintenance of the Project. Except as otherwise agreed to by the landowner, restoration will
include replacement of original pre-construction o equivalent quality topsoil to its original
elevation, contour, and compaction and reestablishment of original vegetation as close theteto as

reasonably practical, -

19.

Applicant's obligation with respect to restoration and maintenance of the right-of-way
(ROW) shall continue throughout the life of the Project for disturbances caused by the actions of
the Applicant, Where the soil is disturbed during construction or maintenance of the line,
Applicant shall restore vegetation as appropriate in and along the ROW, For a period of thirty-six
(36) months from the energization of the Project, if noxious weeds sprout in restored ateas,
Applicant will remove/eliminate them. Landowner permission shall be obtained before the initial
application of herbicides.

20,

When necessitated by Applicant’s actions, Applicant shall restore and clean-up the ROW

continuously throughout the duration of the Project's construction as the timing of construction

activities result in the need to do so.

21,

Applicant shall stage construction materials ih a manwer that minimizes adverse impact to
landowners as agreed upon between Applicant and the landowners. All excess construction
materials and debris shall be removed upon completion of the Project. In addition, any temporary
guard poles shall be removed, unless agreed upon otherwise. '

22.
Applicant shall, in a manner consistent with its easement agreement with a landowner,
repair or replace all privaie property existing at the time of construction, which is removed or
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damaged during all phases of construction, including, but not limited to the following; fences,
gates, utility, water supply systems, irrigation, or drainage systems. Applicant shall compensate
the landowners for damages or losses fo property existing at the time of construction or
maintenance that cannot be fully remedied by repair or replacement, including actual crop and

livestock Tosses.

23.

If it becomes nccessary to materially deviale from the described centerline (o
accommodate engineering and applicable safety and construction requirements based upon
conditions encountered duting construction, all landowners affected by the material deviation
and the Commission must be notified in writing at least five working days before the material
deviation s expected to occur, Unless otherwise notified by the Commission, the material

deviation is deemed approved. For purposes of this paragraph, the term "material deviations”

shall mean any action or activity outside the reasonable parameters of the Permit,

24.

Applicant shall locate all structures, to the cxtent feasible and prudent, to minimize
adverse impacts and interforences with agricultural operations, shelterbelts; and other land uses
or activities existing prior to the date of this Stipulation, unless agreed otherwise by the affected
landowner. Applicant shall take appropriate precautions to protect livestock and crops during

constrictiof,

235,

The terms and conditions of the Permit shall be mede a uniform condition of
construction, subject only to an affirmative written request for an exemption addressed to the
Commission. A request for an exemption shall clearly state which particular condition should not
be applied to the property in question and the reason for the requested exemption. The
Commission shall evaluate such requests on a case-by-case busis which evaluation shall be
completed within sixty (60) days unless exigent circumstances require action sooner.

‘ . 26.
If the presence or operation of the Project causes unreasonable interference with radio,

telovision, or any other licensed communication transmitting o receiving equipment, Applicant

shall take all appropriate action to minimize any such interference and shall make a good faith
effort to restore or provide reception levels equivalent to reception levels in the immediate areas
just prior to construction of the Project. This mitigation requirement shall not apply to any
dwellings or other structures built after completion of the Project.

27.

Applicant shall use appropriate preventative measures to prevent damage to paved roads
and to remove excess soil or mud from such roadways. Before commencing construction,
Applicant shall fornish an indemnity bond in the amount of $300,000 1o comply with the
requirements of SDCL § 49-41B-38. Such bond shall be issued in favor of, and for the benefit of,
such townships, counties, or other governmental entities whose property is crossed by the
transmission facilities or used by associated construction equipment, The bond shall remain in
effect until released by the Commission, which release shall not be unreasonably denied
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following completion of the construction and remediation perlod, Applicant shall give notice of
the existence and amount of the bond to all governmental entities whose property is crossed or

used by the Project,

28,
Applicant will provide Global Positioning System (GPS) coordinates of proposed
structure locations to affected landowners at any time during the life of the Project, Coordinates
will be provided in writing to landowners within 30 days of a request.

29,
Not less than 30 days prior to commencement of construetion work in the field, Applicant
will provide to Staff the most current pre-construction design, layout and plans, Applicant also
will provide such additional pre-construction information as Staff requests.

30.

Within 90 days of the Project's completion, Applicant shall submit a report to the
Commigsion that provides the following information; 1) as-built location of structutes and route,
including drawings; 2) status of remedial activities for alleged road damage, alleged landowner
property damage, alleged crop damage, alleged environmental damage, or any other alleged
damage that resulted from construction activities; and 3) a summary of known landowner

complaints and Applicant's responses.

31,

Prior to construction, Applicant will notify public safety agencies providing a schedule
and location of work to be performed within their jurisdiction, The agencies contacted will
include the South Dakota Department of Public Safety, Sheriffs of Brown, Grant, and Day
Counties, and Brown, Grant, and Day County Offices of Emetgency Management.

32.

Applicant shall provide all landowners information regarding the potential induction of
current/voltage on fences and metal objects and mitigation methods that can be applied to
eliminate the induction. Applicant will respond to landowners conceths regarding induced
current/voltage on fences or other structures within 100 feet of the edge of the right-of-way of
the Project and will assist those landowners in determining methods and implementation of

mitigation,

33.Applicant shall provide all landowners information regarding possible interference
with unlicensed agticultural navigation communication transmitting or receiving equipment and
mitigation methods that can be applied to minimize unreasonable interference. Applicant will
respond to landowners concerns regarding unreasonable interference with unlicensed agricultural
navigation communication transmitting ot receiving equipment and will assist those landowners
in determining methods and implementation of mitigation,

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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SETTLEMENT STTPULATION-DOCKET EL 13-028

Dated; & - 7’" /j/

Muoniana-Dakota Utilities Co.
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Dated:

SETTLEMENT STIPULAT YON-—~DOCKET EL 13-028

Otter Tail Power Company

T Presidept
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SETTLEMENT STIPULATION—-DOCKET EL13-028

pated: _Wire. 7 5?0/% | -
K -

- Kden B, Cremer -

Staff Altorney .
South Dalcota Public Utilities Commission
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are required under the Stipulation for approval of
material changes within the route.

Then just to give you very briefly the status as it
is ﬁoday on options signed on this project, I can tell
you that as of the 3rd of June we have 224 options
signed. That egquals roughly 60 percent of the total line
miles on this project. I know wé've executed a few more
today. I don't have those reflected in here. But so we
continue to make progress on getting options signed on
the project.

Now in terms of the Soybean Cyst Nematode Mitigation
Plan, you know, I admitted right away that when this
issue was raised by Mr. Pesalli's attorney this was not an
issue that the owners of this project or the Applicants
here were really aware of.

You know, we've bullt a lot of transmission line
throughout this area and ﬁhroughout Minnesota,

North Dakota, Montana. This 1is an issue that at least
has not come up in any particular proceeding or it is not
something that we have faced before on a project.

So as a result, we had to do a little bit of
research right away into this issue. And throﬁgh that
research -- and basicaliy what we did was we consulted
with South Dakota State University and thelr extension

service. They're well-aware of this issue, and they were
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able to give us, I think, some good education on this
issue as well as discuss with us what our mitigation plan
looks like and kind of give us a little bit of advice
there.

So as a result of those consultations, what we
really have determined here is that within the rcughly
160, 165 miles ¢f the route in Scuth Dakota -- or
throughout the whole prcject, for that matter, we have
determined that what needs to be done is that we need to
test each individual cultivated field for the presence of
the soybean cyst nematode.

So we've committed, you know, within the Stipulation
that we will follow this mitigation plan. We will test
essentially every cultivated field on this project.

Based on the results of that testing, we're going tec know
something more about kind of the density of this problem
within our route. In other words, we'll know if this
issue 1s confined to certain areas on the route, whether
it's every other fileld kind of a situation or whether
it's, you know, 10, 15 miles that is clean fields,
followed by 10, 15 miles of dirty fields.

The reason I say that i1s because in our
investigaticn we determined there are several ways to
mitigate the transference of the nematode from one field

to the other. And depending on the density of this issue

3
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along the route, that is going to determine what is the
pest method of mitigation or the best method that we will
apply to prevent this spread to the best of our ability
from a dirty field to a clean field.

There are several methods we're looking at that
we've found that other companies have used in other parts
of the country where this has been an issue in the past.
There are things like cleaning stations that you set up
at the edge of a so-called dirty field where you will
clean the equipment before they leave that field.
Therefore, they'll be clean and ready to go into a
noninfected or noncontaminated field and not transfer the
nematode.

There is also the option of what we call clean
crew/dirty crew. What that means is, there again,
depending on the density and the distribution of these
fields, you could actually set up a Crew that only works
within the clean fields. They don't ever go intoc a dirty
field and vice versa. You set up a dirty crew that their
purpose is to only work within the fields that are
contaminated and not cross into a field that is not
contaminated.

Those are a couple of the real, I think, successful
methods that have been used on other projects. There's

other possibilities such as matting where you're
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technically not driving in the field; you're driving on
wood matting. And that could be used in certain areas
maybe where the field conditions are wet enough that we
would have a greater concern of spreading contaminated
soils.

And, you know, I think there are some other things
out there that we've read about in terms of, you know,
potential lesser risk in, say, winter months when the
ground is frozen, things like that.

So our mitigation plan has laid cut this process
where we do the testing followed by an analysis of those
results to determine the best methods of mitigation to
use. And those methods could actually vary from one area
of the line to another, all dependent on, you know,
cost-effectiveness, project efficiencies, and just what
is the best method to use in that area.

So that's how we intend to proceed in mitigating the
nematode issue. That 1s Exhibit 23 also, and so we can
read that. And it's also included in paragraph 17 of the
Settlement Stipulatioﬁ.

S0 with that in mind, I guess, in conclusion I just
want to say that based on what we believe our Application
has done, what other filed testimony that we have filed
in this case, and the conditions in the Settlement

statement -—- or the Settlement Stipulation itself, we the
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Council was one that we had contacted. We did -- in
Appendix C of the Application, we did make contact with
the State -- 1f you just give me a second here, I think I
can find it. To the South Dakota Department of
Agriculture and South Dakcota Department cf Environment
and Natural Resources, those two agencies, which I assume
maybe would know something about it. At least the
Department c¢f Agriculture. 2Also the U.S. Department of
Agriculture was contacted.

CHAIRMAN HANSON: My recollection, the Soybean
Council was the first to have a publication on it,
though, in South Dakota. It was gquite a few years ago,
and they were talking about it in the socutheast part of
the country.

Woculd you please contact them and have
discussions with the Soybean Council as well?

THE WITNESS: (Nods head.)

CHAIRMAN HANSON: You spcke of cleaning
stations, clean and dirty crews, potential matting.
Counsel Pesall got into some specifics in that arena, a
number of areas that I'm concerned with. It doesn't --
the Exhibit 23 states that it may include some of the
c¢leaning stations, clean and dirty crews, things of that

nature,

Again, in this particular instance do you have
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any specific criteria?

The verbiage just did not leave me with a great
deal of confidence,. In fact, again, it states that it
may include, that you may include some of these items.

THE WITNESS: Yeah. I think as I stated in my
testimony, what we feel is critical here in determining
the type of mitigation is really the prevalence of the
nematode along the route.

8o if worst-case scenario let's say 100 percent
of the route is contaminated, then obviously there really
isn't mitigation that would be required.

But if we have long stretches of contamination
and long stretches of noncontaminated fields, then the
clean crew/dirty crew option may actually be the best
opticn to use.

The cleaning stations I think would be used more
in the situation where we have, what do you want to say,
oscillation between clean and dirty fields along the
route so that it is potentially impractical to use clean
and dirty crews.

So I guess the purpose of that language in the
plan is that we may as a result of determining the
density of the problem eliminate some of those mitigation
options. I mean, maybe we end up going to nothing but

cleaning stations, let's say, as an example,
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so T think we wanted to keep all of these
options on the table until we can really analyze, you
know, the significance of the problem along the route and
best determine, you know, how to mitigate.

CHAIRMAN HANSON: Just a comment. It would seem
that if you do find a nematode cyst, that you would only
use dirty crews in those areas and that you would use
clean crews in all of the other areas SO that there would
be no cross—-contamination.

I have a few other guestions, but I will
acquiescent to my fellow Commissioners at this juncture.

Commissioner Nelson, did you have guestions?

COMMISSIONER NELSON: Just a couple, Mr. Ford.

In your initial comments today you mentioned
that of the route'alternatives that you were looking at
there was only one that ended up being rejected. Is that
the Podoll area?

THE WITNESS: Yes, 1t is.

COMMISSIONER NELSON: And referencing your
June 5 and 6 letter to Mr. and Mrs. Lyle Podell, you
indicated that one of the reasons that you couldn’t go
with their alternative was that it would place them at
odds with landowners on the proposed southern route

change.

My recollection of Mr. Podoll's commentary at

T
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Sections 4, 19.1, and 20 of the Appiication, as well as
Responses to Staff's First Data Requests, paragraphs 3
and 8. Section 4 talks about the benefit of the project
through property taxes specifically.

Sections 19.1 provides a summary of the
socioeconomic conditions of the project and is very
typical of what you would see in the Application and is
very consistent with applications I've done in the
past.

Section 20 is employment estimates for the project.
and paragraph 5 in the First Data Request Response has
additional property and sales taXx information details.
And paragraph 8 has additional information on employment
estimates and impacts to local economy.

In regard to soilborne pests, after conversations
with over 500 landowners who attended our project open
houses, many of those which were farmers and the
consultation we requested with NRCS and Department of
Agriculture, we were not aware of any issues of soilborne
pests.

We've addressed the evidence and have responded to
the soybean cyst nematode issue as provided by
Dr. Tylka's testimony and haven't provided evidence on
the soilborne pests as we are not aware of the prevalence

of those specific issues raised.
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I was hired to work almost exclusively on that, and that
was my graduate training as well.

Q. Can you give the Commission a short explanation of
what the soybean cyst nematode is?

A. Sure. So generally I start off this explanation by
describing nematodes in general. These are microscopic
worms that live in water and soil, very common. And most
of them are good. They're beneficial.

But there are a subset of them that feed on plants.
And many of these plant feeding nematodes or plant
parasitic nematodes are native to the United States, and
they're commonly found in agricultural soils throughout
the United States.

But there also are a few that are introduced pests.
And soybean cyst nematode, which I'll probably refer to
as SCN from this point on, is one of those introduced
pests.

And introduced pests create unique problems in that
when they are introduced into a field first off they have
no natural enemies because they've never existed there
before. So many of the native plant parasitic nematodes
are not terribly damaging because there are other things
that live in the soil that eat nematodes for lunch, for
example.

But when you're a new introduced pest you have the

App 122




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

230

benefit of many years for not having any natural enemies.
And so that's one of the things that makes soybean cyst
nematode or SCN so difficult and so dangerous.

It also has aspects of its biology that make it very
unique and very damaging. Most nematodes are individual
worms that feed from the outside of the root and produce
five or 10 offspring. But soybean cyst nematode burrows
into the root. It attaches to the vascular tissue, which
is in the center of the root, and then the female swells
up to form who we refer to as a swollen female. And the
reason she swells up 1s because ovaries develop inside of
her that are very large.

Eventually the adult swollen female is about the
size of a printed period at the end of a sentence. So in
a book page or a newspaper. And that swollen female
fills up with eggs, 200 to 300 eggs. So a unigque aspect
of the nematode's biology is that it has a very high
reproductive potential.

Now the whole life cycle of SCN can be completed in
four weeks. So when you think about how many weeks a
soybean crop is grown in your state or mine that allows
for three or four or five turns of the 1life cycle,
generations. And so that adds to the potential for
explosive increases in numbers.

And then if mother nature didn't give us enough of a
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bad hand, that final aspect that makes it terribly
difficult to manage is the eggs inside the females. When
she dies those eggs can live 10 or more years without a
soybean crop being grown. Those eggs go dormant in the
soil.

So it's a very troublesome pest because of being an
introduced pest, having a high number of offspring per
individual, a short life cycle, and then very long lived
in the soil.

Management of soybean cyst nematode consists of
checking your fields to know if you have it or not, and
then once you've discovered you've got it, you're looking
at growing resistant soybean varieties or not growing a
host crop like soybeans or using a seed treatment, which
is a new management strategy that's just been brought on
to the market a couple of years ago.

So really check your fields, switch to a resistant
soybean variety, don't grow something that's a host crop,
or a seed treatment.

I want to just touch on the resistant soybean
varieties for a second because I don't want to give you
the impression that that's a cure. So resistant soybean
varieties suppress the reproduction of the nematode, but
it doesn't stop reproduction. And also it still suffers

some damage.
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And then as you use the resistance over time, the
nematode can become resistant to resistance. So in Iowa
where we grow 11 million acres of soybeans, soybean cyst
nematode is in 75 percent of the field. It's not a death
sentence, but it's a significant economic hit to the
soybean production in any field that has it because of
these things.

And the seed treatment, which is the newest
management strategy, in my mind at least the verdict is
still out on whether or not they provide any additional
benefit or not.

Because of everything I've Jjust said, I consider the
states of North Dakota, South Dakota, and parts of
Minnesota as being in a really unigue situation in that
there are large tracts of land growing soybeans that
don't have soybean cyst nematode yet. And so that's a
unique opportunity in terms of management. In many
respects the best way to manage soybean cyst nematode is
to delay its arrival into a particular field.

So I find myself sitting here listening to
proceedings thinking of my career in the early '90s in
Iowa when soybean cyst nematode wasn't very widespread,
and we really beat the drum and talked about managing the
movement of soil to slow the spread of the nematode.

Once the nematode is present then we've covered already
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what your management options are.

And as far as spread goes, as in my prefiled
testimony, anything that moves soil has the ability to
move soybean cyst nematode. I jJust want to bring you
back to a mental imagine of a female the size of a period
at the end of a sentence. And that little object has 200
to 300 offspring inside of her.

And so the smallest little particle that's able to
hold a period at the end of the sentence, that's the
amount of soil that could be moved to move the nematode.

Finally, one just short comment. I've heard

comments yesterday and today about farmers not mentioning

this in discussions and so forth. That doesn't surprise
me at all. Soybean cyst nematode has been in Iowa since
1978. And I arrived in 1990 and have devoted my career

to research and grower education on soybean cyst
nematode, and to this day I run into Iowa farmers who
were unaware of soybean cyst nematode.

So just because the farmer -- don't be alarmed or
don't let that throw you a curve ball. Soybean cyst
nematode is still somewhat unrecognized even in it the
State of Iowa among some farmers.

And that concludes the summary of my prefiled
testimony.

Q. Mr. Tylka, I have just a couple more questions for
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MR. SUTTON: Sure. It's relevant because the
basis for his assumptions are that when you dig into
the ground and go from field to field it spreads. My
point is there are many other mechanisms out there that
have been occurring and will occur, and we have not
developed the spread that he's indicating. That's the
relevance.

MR. SMITH: Do you want to repeat the question
and —--

MR. SUTTON: Would you like me to reask it?
Would that be easier?

MR. SMITH: Sure.

Q. Dr. Tylka, can you tell me how many miles of drain
tile have been installed in South Dakota since 1995 when

SCN became present?

MR, SMITH: I'm going to overrule the objection.

If he knows, he can answer. If he doesn't, he can
answer.

L. I do not know.

Q. Now the spread of SCN is caused by the spread of

soll particles; is that correct?

A, Reyond an inch, yes. It can conly spread on its own

power about an inch.
Q. And soil is moved by farm equipment?

A. That i1is correct.

e
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. And it can be moved by wind erosion?

A, Yes.

Q. Also by water erosion?

A. I agree.

Q. Will you look at paragraph =-- or your prefiled
d

irect testimony.

MR, SUTTON: Does he have that?

Q. Looking at paragraph 12 of Exhibit 101, that's the

direct prefiled testimony that you provided is
Exhibit 101, correct, Dr. Tylka?
A. The document I'm looking at has it as Exhibit 102

Q. Oh, you're right. You're right. Correct. Thank

you. Looking at paragraph 12 on page 3, you opine that

construction equipment used in the project like the
proposed BSSE line can cause SCN to spread farther or
more rapidly than ordinary farming practices.

Is that your opinion?
A, Yeah. Opinion, yes.
Q. And then you go on and page 3 and on to page 4 to
talk about the basis for that opinion; is that right?
A, Yes.
Q. And when we look at paragraph 12 in the first
paragraph underneath the actual number 12, you answer
opinion ves. And then you say "Soil disturbed by

construction equipment would likely result in greater

TTESE 17y
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spread of the nematode than soil disturbed by other

common occurrences by making the soil more friable,

easily crumbled and prone to erosion, compared to soil

that is left undisturbed or disturbed just minimally."
That's your opinion; correct?

A, Yeah,

Q. What do you mean by undisturbed?

A. Well, undisturbed would be a situation like no-till
farming or just not -- nothing dug into the soil.
Q. So, for instance, disturbing the soil through £ill

farming practices would disturb and similarly make the

soil friable, would it not?

A, I wouldn't say similarly is correct.
Q. It would make the so¢il friable; correct?
A. Yes.

Q. and it would disturb the soil?
A

Yes.

Q. You're not aware of any academic studies that have
been performed indicating construction practices result
in the spread of SCN; correct?

A. No. I believe I stated that in the prefiled
testimony.

Q. No is a little ambigucous to the record there, 3o
the answer to my guestion is correct; correct?

A. Correct.

R
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among the farmers I have had personal experience with.
and I guess I can say that relates back to my opening
comments . about the awareness of the nematode, and that's
what I meant by diligent.

Q. Now in your opening comments you also described some
mitigation techniques that farmers can employ if they get

SCN in their fields; is that right?

A, That's correct.

Q. and one of those is to grow nonhost crops such as
corn?

A, That i1s correct.

Q. And another option would bé to include nonhost crops

like corn as part of a crop rotation; correct?

A. Yes.

Q. And, in fact, you recommend that to producers who
have SCN?

A, That's correct.

Q. That's part of the techniques used to minimize the
effect?

A, Correct.

Q. Another option would be to plant SCN resistant

variety seed; correct?

A, Correct.

Q. And as part of your work you have completed academic

research about the success in using SCN resistant seeds;




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

256

absence of the nematode.
That has become less of an issue cver the past

20 years, but there still are some 3SCN resistant soybean
varieties that do not have top yield potential. So
that's my reason for my answer being it depends on the
variety that's chosen.
Q. Because of our growing season, as we move further
north into areas that have had less pressure from SCN,
would the varieties probably have more research done in
that area at this point?
A. The answer is yes. And there are much fewer
varieties available with SCN resistance in the maturity
groups grown in South Dakota relative to Iowa. Even
right now.

MR. SCHURING: Thank you.

MR. SMITH: Mr. Mcrehouse, any questions?

MR. MOREHOQUSE: ©Nothing. Thank you.

MR. SMITH: Staff, any questions?

MS. CREMER: Thank vyou.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MS. CREMER:

Q. Is there any way to determine how SCN is introduced

into a clean field?

A, I've never been asked that guestion in 28 years.

Q. Yay for me.
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CCMMISSIONER FIEGEN: Congratulations.

A, I don't think so. They all look the same and are
genetic the same. I don't think so.
Q. And is there any way to determine when SCN was

introduced into a clean field?
A. Not specifically. Although you could deduce socme
timing information based on the numbers that are
detected, It doesn't show up in full blown force in
terms of numbers. It starts out slowly and builds up.
Q. And then looking at your Exhibit 105, it's a map.
A, Yes.
Q. You have that? S8So i1f I understood your testimony
cerrectly, where it shows there is S5CN, there definitely
is in the dark portiocns of the map?
i It should be red if it were printed in color.
Q. Yeah. I printed mine black and white, but okay. If
I understood you correctly, those areas that show up
white, those may also have SCN and you just haven't found
it yet?
A, That's correct.
MS. CREMER: Okay. Thank you.
THE WITNESS: That's a correct statement.
MR, SMITH: Is that all the questions you have?
MS. CREMER: That's all I have. Thank you.

MR. SMITH: We'll turn then to Commissioner
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and research in fields, or does everything come in to
you?

THE WITNESS: ©No. Most of my field research is
done on farmers' fields.

COMMISSIONER FIEGEN: OCkay. So what precautions
de you take and your‘assistants -- I'm sure you have some
grad assistants with you.

What type c¢f precautions do you take on
vehicles, c¢lothing, work boots, all of that?

THE WITNESS: Just knock off as much dirt as
possible, as much soil as possible. Soil probes is
probably another thing that would accumulate soil. We
just make sure we're nct taking large clods of soil. But
we don't steam wash or power wash. We just -- we work in
fields with SCN. So we —-- yeah,

COMMISSIONER FIEGEN: It is really tricky
because when an egg of 200 eggs -- that swollen female.

THE WITNESS: Female.

COMMISSIONER FIEGEN: And it's a point of a
period, it is in your boots. Because when I wear work
boots they have groves,

THE WITNESS: Absolutely.

COMMISSIONER FIEGEN: I can knock off as nuch
spil as I can, but it's still there.

THE WITNESS: Yes.
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COMMISSIONER FIEGEN: S0 the precautions of the
research people are pretty much not going through the
washing but mostly knocking off the excess.

THE WITNESS: Yeah. And let's be specific. You
asked about my particular research group. There may be
other research groups in other states where they do use
plastic booties on their feet and they do more thorough
precautions than I do.

COMMISSIONER FIEGEN: Sure. Thank you.

THE WITNESS: Yes.

COMMISSIONER FIEGEN: Are you aware --
especially when I see commercial sprayers out there
across the State of South Dakota, but I'm sure across
Towa you have those big commercial sprayers. Are you
aware of any mechanisms they take to prevent the spread
of diseases?

Because, of course, they travel on rcads. Roads
have mud. So they're picking up things while they're
traveling to the farmers, let alone from farm to farm to
elevator, all cof that.

THE WITNESS: Yeah. The answer is no. And
forgive me if I'm over answering, but since you're
curious about that, the way I pitch managing the movement
of soil in Iowa is first in the context that

three~fourths of the fields have it. And that percentage
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g

maybe some of those nematodes could get baked near the
soll surface, and maybe the numbers would be lower than
if yecu had collected to a depth of 8 inches.

CHAIRMAN HANSON: ©Okay. Because there was some
discussion it sounded like there needed to be some
excavation of some sort in order for it to be
transported. But it sounds like -- that seemed to
conflict a little bit with one ¢f your cther answers when
you said -~ I believe it might have been Mr. Sutton's
guestion, could it be transported by the wind, and you
answered yes.

THE WITNESS: Yep.

CHAIRMAN HANSON: It could.

THE WITNESS: So my answer to your guestion, to
double back on your questicn, is it's present there at
the surface.

From a research standpoint where I'm measuring
numbers I would worry about only including that upper
inch because the numbers might be a little lower. But
it's present, and it's available to be wind blown, water
washed, all the things that we covered that move so¢il.

CHAIRMAN HANSON: So hunters going from cone
fiesld to the next, deer running from cne field to the
next, any animals, badgers, skunks, whatever, rabbits --

what about water fowl and birds? They could transport it

Tt
il

T




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

271

as well?

THE WITNESS: There's actually a paper where
somebody has picked through bird droppings and found dead
SCN females with live eggs.

CEATRMAN HANSON: It sounds like it's impossible
to stop this. This is terrible.

THE WITNESS: I mean, it is, but there are
certain parts of the country that are in a unique
situation. I would never say you can stop it or prevent
it, but there's things that could be done to slow it.

CEATRMAN HANSON: And it develops immunity to
herbicides and --

THE WITNESS: Well, to resistant -- I was using
the herbicides as an analogy. But it can develop
resistance to the resistant varieties.

CHATRMAN HANSON: What are some other host crops
besides soybeans that are grown in South Dakota?

THE WITNESS: What are the crops that are grown
in South Dakota?

CHAIRMAN HANSON: Sorghum, corn.

THE WITNESS: Wheat are not hosts.

CHAIRMAN HANSON: Wheat. What other --

THE WITNESS: So hosts are more into play when
you get into North Dakota and Minnesota and you talk

about edible beans. There's all kinds of different types
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Q. What do you mean "not as much"?
A. Well, I made the comment here a little bit at the
end here I said this project will take more from

agriculture and the state of South Dakota than it will

return.
Q. Well, as I understand it -- and we will get the
exhibits in front of you that are your land. They're

Exhibits 21A and 21B and 21C.

Do you have those exhibits before you?

A. Yes, I do. B.

Q. 21A, 21B, and 21C.

A. Yes. I have A in front of me.

Q. Is 21A a true and accurate representation of the

land in which the project seeks to put its structures?
A. I believe so.

Q. The project proposes to put two structures on your
property, and those numbers are 457 and 458. Is that
your understanding?

A. According to this map, vyes.

Q. And is that your field that's depicted in

Exhibit 21A7?

A. Yes, it is.

Q. Do you do till or no-till in that?

A. Depends on the year and the conditions of the soil.
Q. Do you do both then?
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EIGHTY-FOURTH SESSION
LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY, 2009

40000194
< SENATE BILL No. 62

Introduced by: The Committee on Commerce at the request of the Public Utilities
Commission

1  FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to repeal certain provisions regarding the delegation of

2 powers by the Public Utilities Commission.

3 BEIT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA:

4 Section 1. That § 49-1-17 be repealed.
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BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF ) NOTICE OF APPLICATION;
MONTANA-DAKOTA UTILITIES CO. AND } ORDER FOR AND NOTICE OF
OTTER TAIL. POWER COMPANY FOR A ) PUBLIC INPUT HEARING;
PERMIT TO CONSTRUCT THE BIG STONE ) NOTICE OF OPPORTUNITY TO
SOUTH TO ELLENDALE 345 KV )  APPLY FOR PARTY STATUS
)
)

TRANSMISSION LINE
EL13-028

On August 23, 2013, Montana-Dakota Ulilities Co., a Division of MDU Resources
Group, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and Otter Tail Power Company, a Minnesota corporation,
(jointly, the Applicants) filed with the South Dakota Public Utilitles Commission (Commission) an
Application for a Facility Permit for the Big Stone South to Ellendale 345 kV Transmission Line
project (Application) and a Motion to Schedule Prehearing Conference (Motion). The Apgplication
requests Commission approval of a permit to construct a 348-kilovoh (kV) transmission line of
approximetely 150 to 160 miles in South Dakota (Project). The line will cross the South Dakota
and North Dakota border in Brown County, South Dakota, and extend south and east through
Brown, Day, and Grant counties to the Big Stone South Substation in Grant County, South
Dakota, near Big Stone City. Modifications to the Project may occur depending on the final route
permitted, land rights, and final engineering design. The Commission has jurisdiction over this
matter pursuant to SDCL Chapters 1-26 and 49-418 and ARSD Chapter 20:10;22.

On August 26, 2013, the Commission issued a Notice of Application; Order for and
Notice of Public Input Hearings; Notice of Opportunity to Apply for Party Status (Order). On
August 28, 2013, the Commission electronically transmitted notice of the Application and the
intervention deadline of October 22, 2013, to interested individuals and entities on the
Commission's PUC Weekly Filings electronic listserv. On September 13,.2013, the Crder was
served on the goveming bodies of all counties and municipalities in the project area, and notices
of the public hearings were published in project area newspapers as provided in SDCL 49-41B-
5.2 and 49-41B-15. On September 13, 2013, the Commission issusd an Order Assessing Filing
Fee assessing a filing fee not to exceed the statutory maximum of $360,000 with a minimum fee
of the statutory $8,000 minimum. The public hearings were held as scheduled on October 17,
2013, in Aberdeen and Milbank. On October 18, 2013, Gerald Pesall fifed an Application for
Party Status. On November 6, 2013, the Commission issued an Order Granting Intervention and
Party Status to Gerald Pesall. On January 13, 2014, the Commission issued a Procedural
Scheduling Order setting the matter for formal evidentiary hearing on June 10-12, 2014, in
Room 413 of the State Capitol Building in Pierre beginning at 1:00 p.m. CDT with days two and
three beginning at 8:00 a.m. CDT. On January 27, 2014, Applicants filed a First Amendment to

Application (Amendment).

Due to Applicants having made some route changes in certain areas of the Project
which will result in some additional landowners coming within the half-mile Project corridor,
Applicants will be required to serve notice on such landowners and the Commission deems it
proper o hold an additional public input hearing. Pursuant to SDCL 49-41B-15 and 49-41B-16,
the Commission will hold an additional public input hearing on the Application on
Tuesday, May 20, 2014, at 6:30 p.m. CDT In Meeting Room D & H, Ramada Aberdeen
Hotel and Conference Center, 2727 Sixth Ave, SE, Aberdeen, 5.D. 57401.

T
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The purpose of this public input hearing will be to hear public comment regarding the
transmission line permit Application, the Amendment, and the Project. At the hearing, Applicants
will present a brief description of the Project, following which interested persons may appear
and present their views, comments and questions regarding the Application. A copy of the
Application is on file with the Brown, Day, and Grant County Auditors pursuant to SDCL 49-41B-
15(5) and at the Commission's office in Plerre. The Application and all other documents in the
case, including detailed maps of the Project, may be accessed on the Commission's web site at
www.puc.gd.gov under Commission Actions, Commission Dockets, Electric Dockets, 2013

Eleciric Docksts, EL13-028.

Pursuant to SDCL 49-41B-17 and ARSD 20:10:22:40, the parties to this proceeding are
currently the Applicants, Gerald Pesall, and the Commission. Any person residing in the area of
the Project, each municipality, county, and governmental agency in the area where the Project
is proposed to be sited; any non-profit organization formed in whole or in part to promote
conservation or natural beauty, to protect the environment, personal health or other biclogical
values, to preserve historical sites, to promote consumer interests, to represent commercial and
industrial groups, or to promote the orderly development of the area in which the Project is to be
sited; or any interested person, may be granted party status in this proceeding by making

-written application to the Commission. Applications for party status may be obtained from the
Commission’s web site or by contacting the Commission. Applications for party status must be

received by the Commission on or before April 16, 2014,

Foliowing the public input hearing, the Commission will hold a formal evidentiary hearing
as set forth above conforming to SDCL Chapler 1-26 to consider any issues ralsed by any
intervening party, Commission Staff, or the Commission itself. At such formal hearing, all parties
will have the opportunity to appear, present evidence, and cross-examine the other parties'
witnesses and exercise all other rights afforded by SDCL Chapters 1-28, 49-1, and 49-41B and
ARSD Chapters 20:10:01 and 20:10:22, including rights of appeal to the courts.

For approval, the Applicants must show that the propesed transmission Project will
comply with all applicable laws and rules, will not pose a threat of sericus Injury to the
environment nor to the social and economic condition of inhahitants or expected inhabitants in
the siting area, will not substantially impair the health, safety or welfare of the inhabitants, and
will not unduly interfere with the orderly development of the region with due consideration
having been given to the views of governing bodies of affected local units of government, Based
upon these factors, the Commission will decide whether the permit should be granted, denied,
or granted upon such ferms, conditions or modifications of the construction, operation or

maintenance as the Commission finds appropriate.

I is therefore

ORDERED, that the Commission will hold an additional public input hearing on the
Project on Tuesday, May 20, 2014, at 6:30 p.m. CDT in Meeting Room D & H, Ramada
Aberdeen Hotel and Conference Center, 2727 Sixth Ave. SE, Aberdeen, S.D. §7401.
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Pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act, these hearings will be held in physically
accessible locations. Please contact the Public Utilities Commission at 1-800-332-1782 at least
48 hours prior to the hearing if you have special needs so arrangements can be made to

accommodate you.

CERTIFICATE OF SERVIGE

The undersigned hereby ceriifles that this
document has been served today upon ali parties
of record in this docket, as listed on the docket
service list, by fecsimlle or by first class mall, In
property addressed envelopes, with charges
prepaid therson,

JEAC!

(OFFICIAL SEAL)
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Dated at Pierre, South Dakota, this n

day of March, 2014.

BY ORDER OF THE COMMFSSION'

o

CHRIS NELSON, Commissioner

0 oy

KRISTIE FIEGEN, Commissioner
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BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA |

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF ) ORDER GRANTING
MONTANA-DAKOTA UTILITIES CO. AND OTTER ) INTERVENTION AND PARTY
TAIL POWER COMPANY FOR A PERMIT TO ) STATUS
CONSTRUCT THE BIG STONE SOUTH TO )

ELLENDALE 345 KV TRANSMISSION LINE ) EL13-028

On August 23, 2013, Montana-Dakota Utilities Co., a Division of MDU Resources Group,
Inc., a Delaware corporation, and Otter Tail Power Company, a Minnesota corporation, (jointly,
the Applicants) filed with the South Dakota Public Utilities Commission (Commission) an
Application for a Facility Permit for the Big Stone Scuth to Ellendale 345 kV Transmission Line
project (Application} and a Motion to Schedule Prehearing Conference (Motion). The Application
requests approval of a permit to construct a 345-kilovolt (kV} transmission line of approximately
150 to 160 miles in South Dakota (Project). The line wiil cross the South Dakota and North
Dakota border In Brown County, South Dakota, and extend south and east through Brown, Day,

- and Grant counties to the Big Stone South Substation in Grant County, South Dakota, near Big

Stone City. Modifications to the Project may occur depending cn the final route permitted, land
rights, and final engineering design.

OCn August 26, 2013, the Commission issued a Notice of Application; Order for and
Notice of Public Input Hearing; Notice of Opportunity to Apply for Party Status (Order). On
August 29, 2013, the Commission electronically transmitted notice of the Application and the
intervention deadline of Qctober 22, 2013, to interested individuals and entities on the
Commission's PUC Weekly Filings electronic listserv. On September 13, 2013, the Order was
served on the governing bodies of all counties and municipalities in the project area, and notices
of the public hearings were published in project area newspapers as provided in SDCL 49-41B-
5.2 and 49-41B-15, The public hearings were held as scheduled on October 17, 2013, in
Aberdeen and Milbank. On October 18, 2013, Gerald Pesall filed an Application for Party
Status. The Commission has jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to SDCL Chapter 49-41B,
particularly 49-41B-17, and ARSD Chapter 20:10:22, specifically 20:10:22:40.

At its regularly scheduled meeting on November 5, 2013, the Commission considered
Mr. Pesall’s Application for Party Status. Applicants did not object. The Commission voted
unanimously to grant intervention and party status o Mr. Pesall. It is therefore

ORDERED, that Gerald Pesali's Application for Party Status and intervention is granted.

Dated at Pierre, Sodth Dakota, this ‘ 2% day of November, 2013

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE BY ORDER OF THE COMMISSION'

The undersigned hereby corfifies that this
document has been served loday upon all parties of
racerd In this docket, as listed gn the docket service
list, elactranically.

GARY H

CHRIS NELiON Comﬂ?suoner :

KRISTIE FIEGEN, Commlssmner

By:

Date;
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STATE OF SOUTH DAKQTA )

COUNTY OF DAY )

* * * * * *

GERALD PESALL,
Appellant,
Vs,
TAIL POWER, SCHURING FARMS, INC.,
BRADLEY MOREHCUSE, AND THE
SOUTH DAKOTA PUBLIC UTILITIES

COMMISSION,

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
MONTANA DAKOTA UTILITIES, OTTER )
)
)
)
)
)
APPELLEES. )

)

* * * * * *

December 23, 2014
2:00 p.m.

DATE & TIME:

TEE HONORABLE SCOTT

BEFORE:
CIRCUIT COURT JUDGE

IN CIRCUIT COURT

FIFTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
* * * * *

CIV. 14-53

ORAL ARGUMENT HEARING
ADMINISTRATIVE APPEAL

* * * * *

P. MYREN

Brown County Courthouse
Lberdeen, South Daketa 57401
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Mr. Smith, can you hear me?

MR. SMITH: I can, Your Honor.

THE COURT: And did you want to make éther
identifications on the record?

MR. SMITH: Well, I'm Jchn Smith, commission counsel for
the Scuth Dakota Public Utilities Commission representing
the South Dakota Public Utilities Commission this docket.
With me in the room today, and we're on speaker phone, is
And that's it.

Commissioner Chris Nelson.

THE COQURT: And I'll just make sure on the

Thank you.
telephone line, was there any other party or any other
perscn that wished to appear before the Court on this

matter? If so, just speak up.

There are no other appearances being noted on the

record.
ik aVe DGl a TR ol sy - T e L R T e - o - e T A e T larm oA +i~
LALINA il L Lo 4 VU LUNLLIIUUS JF S el AR N I N A O A v N - £L Vi liau LS
opportunity to review the entire record. And paying

particular attention, of course, to the evidentiary hearing

and the exhibits that were presented there. 2&nd I've also

received varlous briefings from all the parties, which I've

had a chance to review.
So with the understanding that I've been through all of
I will let each of the counsel make their

that materizl,

argument. And then as I, I think I explained earlier, I

will go back arcund one additional time for each of the

5 Kristi A, Brandt, RPR
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Application to the Public Utilities Commission of the
State of South Dakota for a Facility Permit *

MONTANA-DAKOTA UTILITIES CO. &
OTTER TAIL POWER COMPANY
Big Stone South to Ellendale Project
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South Dakota PUC Facility Permit Application

T

8.0 Alternative Sites (ARSD 20:10:22:12)

8.1 Route Identification and Selection Process

—
—

The South Dakota Facility route selection process centered on a multi-faceted approach in
which the Applicants considered state and federal requirements, public comments received
at public meetings, and extensive analysis of available environmental data. The route |
development process was primarily driven by extensive public participation and agency
coordination programs in both South Dakota and North Dakota. Table 5 provides a general
overview of the public involvement efforts undertaken by the Applicants for the Project.
Additional information on the public involvement activities conducted for the Project,
including materials used during open house meetings, are available on the Project website at —
www.bssetransmissionline.com. 'The South Dakota Facility defined in this Application is '

shown in detail in Exhibit 2. o

Table 5. Summary of Public, Agency, and Tribal Involvement Activities

 Year

Mounth Action

July e DProject notification letter mailed to North Dakota and South Dakota
state and federal agencies

August »  Project notification letter mailed to county, state, and local
representatives, and non-government organizations in North Dakota
and South Dakota

»  Held meetings with North Dakota and South Dakota county zoning
and planning representatives (Spink, Clark, Grant, Day, Hamlin,
Cedington, Brown, Deuel, Marshall, Roberts, Richland, Dickey, and .
Sargent counties)

2012 o Held two interagency meetings with state and federal agencies for

North Dakota and South Dakota —

September o Project website and toll-free Project information line made available to
the public {www.bssetransmissionline.com and 888-283-4678)

s Corridor notification letter for open house meetings mailed to the
public, county, state, and city representatives, and non-government
organizations in North Dakota, South Dakota, 2nd Minnesota

¢ Corridor notification letter for open house meetings mailed to
township representatives in North Dakota, South Dakota, and
Minnesota

Big Stone South to Ellendale Page 23 ~ August 2013 ;
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South Dakota PUC Facility Permit Application Pig Stane Soulh 1 Elenduic

Year Month Action

October ¢ Meeting with Sisseton Wahpeton Oyate and Standing Rock Sioux
Tribal Historic Preservation Offices (THPQOs) for Project introduction
and study area discussion

¢  Corridor notification postcard for open house meetings mailed to
landowners within the study corridors

*  Paid advertisements and press releases sent to North Dakota, South
Dakota, and Minnesota publications to notify the communities of the
study corridor open house meetings

¢ Corridor public open house meetings (October 15-18, 2012):

o Wheaton, Minnesota

Milbank, South Dakota

Webster, South Dakota

Aberdeen, South Dakota

Ellendale, North Dakota

Britton, South Dakata

2012

o 0CO0O0

November o Power Delivered Project Newsletter (Issue 1) was posted to the website
and hard copies were mailed to stakeholders in the Project open house
meeting attendees and those who had commented or signed up for the
mailing kst

December *  Pouer Delivered Project Newsletter from November sent electronically
to contact persons above who provided email addresses

January *  Conducted interagency meetings for North Dakota and South Dakota
state and federal agencies. Follow-up letter sent to agencies which
included the meeting minutes and letter from the Applicants

*  Hosted an online webinar and conference call with county
representatives in North Dakota and South Dakota including Day,
Brown, Grant, Dickey, and Marshall counties to describe the routing
process and gather input on preliminary routes followed up with
meeting minutes and a message from the Applicants

February s  Meeting with South Dakota State Historic Preservation Office
(SDSHPQO) to discuss expected cultural resource identification efforts
and tribal involvement

¢ Paid advertisements and press releases sent to North Dakota and
South Dakota publications to notify the communities of the routing
open house meetings

e Notification letter for routing open house meetings sent to
stakeholders including state, federal, and local agencies, elected
officials, and non-governmental organizations (NGOQs)

*  Notification postcards for routing open house meetings sent to
landowners within the preliminary corridors of the Project and active
participants who attended a meeting or submitted 2 comment

¢ Routing public open house meetings (February 25-27, 2013):

o  (Groton, South Dakota

Ellendale, North Dakota

Britton, South Dakota

Webster, South Dakota

Milbank, South Dakota

2013

O 00O
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linked together into numerous alternative preliminary transmission line routes. The
Applicants evaluated the preliminary routes, measuring them against both the transmission
line routing considerations for the State of South Dakota (SDCL 49-41B-22) and input on
sensitive and important resources identified by the public. The transmission line route in
South Dakota was selected based on several considerations, including the following:

¢ Minimizing total length and construction costs

o  Minimizing impacts to humans and human settlements, including (but not limited to)
displacement, noise, aesthetics, cultural values, recreation, and public services

¢ Consideration of effects on public health and safety

» Offsetting existing ROW (roadway or other utility ROW) or section lines to
minimize impacts to land-based economies, including (but not limited to) agricultural

fields and mining facilities

Minimizing effects on archacological, cultural properties, and historic resources
Minimizing itnpacts to wetlands, surface waters, and rivers

Minimizing impacts to rare ot endangered species and unique natural resources
» Minimizing effects to airports or other land use conflicts

During public open house meetings conducted during the route identification and selection
process, the public identified several criteria that were also considered in the routing process.
These critetia included:

s Constructing the transmission lines near existing roadway ROW or close to the half
section lines to minimize impacts to agricultural fields

¢ Placing structures to minimize impacts to agricultural production/allow for the
movement of farm equipment

* Avoiding a diagonal route across agricultural fields wherever possible

¢ Preference for mono-pole structures rather than H-frame structures

Upon determination of the preferred route, notifications were sent to federal and state
agencies in May 2013, requesting comment on the preferred route, as shown in Table 5.
A table outlining agency contact and copies of the agency material correspondences are

provided in Appendix C.
8.2 Alternatives Considered and Selected

'The Applicants initially considered multiple alternatives for the South Dakota Facility. The
Applicants evaluated preliminary routes in South Dakota based on the factors listed above
and the comments received from the public. The study corridor in Minnesota was
considered but not selected for the following reasons:

¢ Need to complete permitting process in an additional state

* Crossing of the Bois de Sioux and Minnesota Rivers which are classified as Section
10 Rivers, regulated by the United States Army Cotps of Engineers (USACE), and
requiting additional federal review and permitting

¢ Increased length resulting in increased potential effects and cost

¢ Engineering challenges associated with crossing Big Stone Lake north of Ottonville,
Minnesota

August 2013 Page 26 Big Stone South to Ellendale




STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA )

COUNTY OF DAY

GERALD PESALL

V5.

MONTANA DAKQOTA UTILITIES, OTTERTAIL POWER,
SCHURING FARMS INC., BRADLEY MOREHOUSE, SDPUC

IN CIRCUIT COURT
)

) FIFTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

18CIV14000053

ALPHABETICAL INDEX

NO.” | DATE. . - ["CHRONOFOGICALINDEX =" .~ & o7 |"NUMBER -
i, 09/23/13 Aberdeen American News' Affidavit of Publication 1068
2. 10/11/13 Aberdeen American News' Affidavit of Publication 1098
3, 04/23/14 Aberdeen American News' Affidavit of Publication 1858
4, 05/20/14 Aberdeen American News' Affidavit of Publication 3830
Aberdeen Public Hearing - Notice of Application; Order for and Notice
of Public Input Hearing; Notice of Opportunity to Apply for Party
Status; Application for Party Status; Sign-in Sheet Confidential (not
available to the public);Presentation by Otter Tail Power Co. and 1100-1102
Montana-Dakota Utilities Co.; Valuation Guidelines for Properties with | (Sealed
Electric Transmission Lines distributed by Dean Podoll, Aberdeen, S.D.; | envelope
Comments, photos, maps from Dean Podoll, Aberdeen, S.D.; Transcript | 1103-1108)
5. 10/17/13 of Public Input Hearing; and Exhibit 1 1109-1343
Aberdeen Public Hearing - Notice of Application; Order for and Notice
of Public Input Hearing; Notice of Opportunity to Apply for Party Status
Application for Party Status; Sign-in Sheet Confidential {not availabie to | 3560-3563
the public); Presentation by Otter Tail Power Co. and Montana-Dakota® | {Sealed
Utilities Co.; Lyle Podoil's Letter; Transcript; Exhibit 50 - Presentation by | envelope
Otter Tail Power Co. and Montana-Dakota Utilities Co.; and Exhibit 50A | 3564-3566)
6. 05/20/14 - Revised Potential Route Changes 3567-3828
Affidavit of Service; and Notice of Application; Order for and Notice of
7. 08/26/13 Public Input Hearings; Notice of Opportunity to Apply for Party Status 1040- 1043
Affidavit of Service; and Notice of Application; Order for and Notice of
8. 09/13/13 Public tnput Hearings; Notice of Opportunity to Apply for Party Status 1064-1067
9. 08/13/14 Agenda of PUC Ad Hoc Commission Meeting 8292-8293
10. | 08/10/13 Agenda of PUC Commission Meeting 1045 - 1048
11. | 04/30/14 Agenda of PUC Coemmission Meeting 3518-3521
12. | 08/06/14 Agenda of PUC Commission Meeting 8714-8219
13. § 11/05/13 Agenda to PUC Commission Meeting 1501-1506
14. | 09/19/14 Amended Certificate of Service 8345-8346

et ———————
PUC Alphabetical Index
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Amended Settlement Stipulation {Montana-Dakota Utilities Co. and
Otter Tall Power Company, and the Staff of the South Dakota Public
Utilities Commission); Redlined - Amended Settlement Stipulation
{Montana-Dakota Utilities Co. and Otter Tail Power Company, and the
Staff of the South Daketa Public Utilities Commission); and Certificate

7949-7972

15. | 6/20/14 of Service
Amendment to Application Dated January 27, 2014; Certificate of
Service; Amended Pages of Apgplication - Redlined ; and Amended
16. | 01/27/14 Pages of Application 1516-1539
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17.

06/03/14

Applicants Montana-Dakota Utilities Co. and Otter Tail Power
Company's Exhibit List and Certificate of Service; Exhibit 1 -
Application; Exhibit 1 - Project Overview; Exhibit 2 - Detail of South
Dakota Facility; Exhibit 3 — Topography; Exhibit 4 - MISO MVP Project
Map; Exhibit 5 - State and Federal Lands; Exhibit & - Bedrock Geology;
Exhibit 7 - Quaternary Surficial Geology; Exhibit 8 - Water Resources;
Exhibit 9 — Aquifers; Exhibit 10 - Land Cover; Appendix A - South Dakota
Facility Description; Appendix B - MISO Studies; B.1- Muiti-Value
Project Portfolio, Results and Analyses {Midwest ISO 2012); B.2 -
Northwest Exploratory Study completed during MISO Transmission
Expansion Plan 2005 (Midwest 150 2005); B.3 - Regional Generation
Qutlet Study completed during MISO Transmission Expansion Plan
2009 and 2010 {Midwest (SO 2010); B.4 - "Multi-Value Project Portfolio
—Results and Analyses" paraphrased in MISO Transmission Expansion
Plan 2011 (Midwest ISO 2011); Appendix C - Agency Material
Correspondence; Appendix D - South Dakota Soil Series Information;
Appendix E - Native Habitats Classification Memorandum Confidential
{not available to the public); Appendix F - Bald Eagle Stick Nest and
Sharp-Tailed Lek Survey Report Confidentia! (not available to the
public); Appendix G - Cultural Resources Level | Records Search
Confidential {not available to the public); Appendix H - Preliminary
Transmission Structure Typicai Drawings; Exhibit 1A - Amendment to
the Application; Exhibit 2 - Responses to First Set of Staff Data
Requests; Exhibit 3 - Responses to Second Set of Staff Data Requests ;
Exhibit 4 - Answers to First Set of Pesall Discovery ; Exhibit 5 - Answers
to Second Set of Pesall Discovery; Exhibit 6 - BSSE 9- Map Showing
Preferred Route; Exhibit 7 - Route Change Request Form; Exhibit § -
Pesall's First Requested Route Change; Exhibit 9 - Route Change Matrix
{BSSE 29- 31) Confidential (not available to the public) ; Exhibit 10 -
MISO Tariff Attachiment FF; Exhibit 11 - Affidavit of Malling for October
17 Public Input Hearing; Exhibit 12 - Affidavit of Mailing for May 20
Public Input Hearing; Exhibit 13 - Updated Table of Public Qutreach;
Exhibit 14 - Danny Frederick CV; Exhibit 15 - Jon Leman CV;Exhibit 16A -
Henry Ford Pre-filed Testimony Dated April 25, 2014; Exhibit 168 -
Henry Ford Pre-filed Rebuttal Testimony Dated May 9, 2014; Exhibit
16C - Henry Ford Pre-filed Supplemental Rebuttal Testimony Dated
May 23, 2014; Exhibit 17 - Jason Weiers Pre-filed Testimony Dated April
25, 2014; Exhibit 18 - Angela Piner Pre-filed Testimony Dated April 25,
2014; Exhibit 19 - Danny Frederick Pre-filed Testimony Dated April 25,
2014; Exhibit 20 - Jon Leman Pre-filed Testimony Dated April 25, 2014;
Exhibit 21A - Pesall Property Photograph - Looking North; Exhibit 21B -
Pesall Property Photograph - Looking Scuth; Exhibit 21C - Pesall Aerial
Map; Exhibit 22 - Morehouse and Schuring Aerial Map; Exhibit 23 - June
3, 2014 Draft of Soybean Cyst Nematode Prevention Plan; Exhibit 24 -
Power Point Presentation for October 17, 2013, Public Input Hearing;
Exhibit 25 - Route Map Dated june 10, 2014; Exhibit 50 - Power Point
Presentation from May 20, 2014, Public Input Hearing; and Exhibit 50A
- Revised Maps of Route Changes

3894-4735
{Sealed
envelope
4736-4912)
4913-5002
(Sealed
envelope
5003-5005)
5006-5566
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18. | 04/14/14 Application for Party Status (Bradley R. Morehouse) 1551
19, | 04/14/14 Application for Party Status {Clark T. Olson) 1549
20. | 04/14/14 Application for Party Status {James R. McKane Iil) 1548
21. | 04/14/14 Application for Party Status (Kevin Anderson) 1552
22. | 04/14/14 Application for Party Status {Schuring Farms, Inc.) 1550
Certificate of Service; Affidavit of Mailing of Landowner Notice Letter;
23. | 09/26/13 Exhibit A - Letter to Landowners ; and Exhibit B - Landowners 1069-1092
Certificate of Service; Affidavit of Mailing of Landowner Notice Letter;
Exhibit A - Letter to Landowners; Notice of Application; Order for and
Notice of Public Input Hearing; Notice of Cpportunity to Apply for Party
24, | 4/25/14 Status; Map Showing Route Changes; and Exhibit B - Landowners 1889-1900
8148-8149
(Seaied
Comments of Arnold and Darlene Dennert; and Comments of Arnold envelope
25, | 07/29/14 and Darlene Dennert Confidential (not available to the public) 8150-8151)
8203
{Sealed
envelope
8204)
8205
Comments of Carol Rydberg ; Comments of Carol Rydberg Confidential | (Sealed
(not available to the public); PUC Staff's Response to Carol Rydberg; envelope
PUC Staff's Response to Carol Rydberg Confidential (not available to 3206)
26, | 08/04/14 the public); and August 6, 2014, Agenda of Commission Meeting 8207-8212
27. | 06/13/14 Comments of Dakota Rural Action 7944-7946
7947
{Sealed
Comments of Grant Manhart; and Comments of Grant Manhart envelope
28, | 06/16/14 Confidential [not available to the public) 7948)
1497-1498
Comments of Parkshill Farms, LLC to Commissioner Hanson; and {Sealed
Comments of Parkshill Farms, LLC to Commissioner Hanson envelope
29. | 11/01/13 Confidential (not available to the public) 1499-1500)
Day County Auditor Letter; Farmington Township Board; Highland
30. | 04/29/13 Township; and Valley Township 1-3
: Direct Testimony of Angela Piner; Exhibit 11 - Affidavit of Mailing of
Landowner Notice Letter Dated September 24, 2013; Exhibit 12 -
Affidavit of Mailing of Landowner Notice Letter Dated April 22, 2014;
and Exhibit 13 - Updated Table 5 - Summary of Public, Agency, and
31. | 04/25/14 Tribal Involvement Activities 3429-3474
32. | 04/25/14 Direct Testimony of Danny Frederick; and Exhibit 14 - Curriculum Vitae | 3475-3493
33. | 04/25/14 Direct Testimony of Gerald Pesall; and Certificate of Service 1859-1864
Direct Testimony of Gregory Tytka and Certificate of Service; Gregory
Tytka Resume; and Amended Certificate of Service (was filed on 6/9/14
34, | 04/25/14 correcting typo) 1865-1888
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Direct Testimony of Henry Ford; Exhibit 1 — Application; Exhibit 1 -
Project; Overview; Exhibit 2 - Detail of South Dakota Facility ; Exhibit 3
~ Topography; Exhibit 4 - MISO MVP Project Map; Exhibit 5 - State and
Federal Lands; Exhibit 6 - Bedrock Geology; Exhibit 7 - Quaternary
Surficial Geology; Exhibit 8 - Water Resources; Exhibit 9 - Aguifers;
Exhibit 10 - Land Cover; Appendix A - South Dakota Facility Description;
Appendix B - MISO Studies; B.1 - Multi-Value Project Portfolic, Results
and Analyses (Midwest ISO 2012); B.2 - Northwest Exploratory Study
completed during MISO Transmission Expansion Plan 2005 (Midwest
ISO 2005}; B.3 - Regional Generation QOutlet Study completed during
MISC Transmission Expansion Plan 2009 and 2010 (Midwest I1SO 2010);
B.4 - "Multi-Value Project Portfolio — Results and Analyses”
paraphrased in MISO Transmission Expansion Plan 2011 (Midwest 1SO
2011) ;Appendix C - Agency Material Correspondence; Appendix D -
South Dakota Soil Series Information; Appendix E - Native Habitats
Classification Memorandum Confidential {not available to the public);
Appendix F - Bald Eagle Stick Nest and Sharp-Tailed Lek Survey Report
Confidential {not available to the public) ;Appendix G - Culturai
Resources Level | Records Search Confidential (not available to the
public); Appendix H - Preliminary Transmission Structure Typical

Drawings; Exhibit 1A - Amendment to Application; Exhibit 2 - 1901-2759
Responses to Staff's First Data Requests; Exhibit 3 - Responses to Staff's | (Sealed
Second Data Requests ; Exhibit 4 - Responses to Gerald Pesall's First Set | envelope
of Discovery Requests to Applicants; Exhibit 5 - Responses to Gerald 2760-2936)
Pesall's Second Set of Discovery Requests to Applicants; Exhibit 6 - Map | 2937-3028
of Preliminary Routes ; Exhibit 7 - Landowner Request Form; Exhibit 8 - | (Sealed
Map of Pesall Re-Route; Request for Confidential Treatment for Ford envelope

35. | 04/25/14 Exhibit 9; and Exhibit 9 Confidential {not available to the public); 3029-3031)
Direct Testimony of Jason Weiers ; and Exhibit 10 - Attachment FF -

36. [ 04/25/14 Transmission Expansicn Planning Protocol 3032-3428
Direct Testimony of Jon Leman ; Exhibit 15 - Curriculum Vitae; and

37. | 04/25/14 Certificate of Service 3494-3517
Docket EL13-028 - Comments and Responses (PUC Website -

38. | 08/23/13 http://puc.sd.gov/Dockets/Electric/2013/el13-028comments.aspx) 12
Docket EL13-028 - Electronic Docket Filings {PUC Website -

39, | 08/23/13 http://puc.sd.gov/Dockets/Electric/2013/EL13-028.as px) 4-11
Docket EL13-028 ~ Exhibits (PUC Website -

40, | 06/11/14 http://puc.sd.gov/Dockets/Electric/2013/EL13-028exhibits. aspx) 6134-6135

41. | 06/10/14 Evidentiary Hearing - Sign-In Sheet; and Transcript 5662-5828

42, 106/11/14 Evidentiary Hearing - Sign-In Sheet; and Transcript 5829-6133

43, | 06/11/14 Exhibit 10 - MISQO Tariff Attachment FF 7242-7604

44, | 06/11/14 Exhibit 101 - Gerald Pesall Prefiled Direct Testimony 7855-7860

45, | 06/11/14 Exhibit 102 - Gregory Tylka Prefiled Direct Testimony 7861-7867

46, | 06/11/14 Exhibit 103 - Gregory Tylka CV 7868-7882

47. | 06/11/14 Exhibit 104 - Gregory Tylka Prefiled Surrebuttal Testimony 7883-7886

48, | 06/11/14 Exhibit 105.- 2014 SCN Distribution Map 7387

438, | 06/11/14 Exhibit 106 - 1956 USDA Special Report on SCN 7888-7904

PUC Alphabetical Index
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50. | 06/11/14 Exhibit 107 - 1998 Soybean Digest Special Report on SCN 7905-7923

51. {06/11/14 Exhibit 108 - 1996 First Report of SCN in South Dakota 7924

52. | 06/11/14 Exhibit 209 - 2007 SCN University Fact Sheet 7925-7928

53. | 06/11/14 Exhibit 11 - Affidavit of Mailing for October 17 Public Input Hearing 7605-7626

54, | 06/11/14 Exhibit 110 - 1955 SCN Plant Disease Reporter 7929-7931
Exhibit 111 - Pesall's Insurance Policy Provisions; and Certificate of

55, | 06/27/14 Service 7981-8031

56. | 06/11/14 Exhibit 12 - Affidavit of Mailing for May 20 Public Input Hearing 7627-7636

57. | 06/11/14 Exhibit 13 - Updated Table of Public Qutreach 7637-7639

58. | 06/11/14 Exhibit 14 - Danny Frederick CV 7640-7644

59, | 06/11/14 Exhibit 15 - Jon Leman CV 7645-7655

60. | 06/11/14 Exhibit 16A - Henry Ford Pre-filed Testimony Dated April 25, 2014 7656-7677
Exhibit 16B - Henry Ford Pre-filed Rebuttal Testimony Dated May 9,

61. | 06/11/14 2014 7678-7680
Exhibit 16C - Henry Ford Pre-filed Supplemental Rebuttal Testimony

62. | 06/11/14 Dated May 23, 2014 7681-7683

63, | 06/11/14 Exhibit 17 - Jason Weiers Pre-filed Testimony Dated April 25, 2014 7684-7717

64, | 06/11/14 Exhibit 18 - Angela Piner Pre-filed Testimony Dated April 25, 2014 7718-7763

65. | 06/11/14 Exhibit 19 - Danny Frederick Pre-filed Testimony Dated April 25, 2014 7764-7782

66. | 06/11/14 Exhibit 1A - Amendment to Application 7155-7169

67. | 06/11/14 Exhibit 2 - Responses to First Set of Staff Data Requests 7170-7178

68. | 06/11/14 Exhibit 20 - Jon Leman Pre-filed Testimony Dated April 25, 2014 7783-7804

69, | 06/11/14 Exhibit 21A - Pesall Property Photograph - Looking North 7805

70. | 06/11/14 Exhibit 21B - Pesall Property Photograph - Looking South 7806

71. | 06/11/14 Exhibit 21C - Pesall Aerial Map 7807

72. | 06/11/14 Exhibit 22 - Morehouse and Schuring Aerial Map 7808

73. | 06/11/14 Exhibit 22A - Revised Morehouse and Schuring Aerial Map 7809
Exhibit 23 - June 3, 2014 Draft of Soybean Cyst Nematode Prevention

74. | 08/11/14 Plan 7810-7811
Exhibit 24 - Power Point Presentation for October 17, 2013, Public

75. | 06/11/14 Input Hearing 7812-7827

76. | 06/11/14 Exhibit 25 - Route Map Dated June 10, 2014 7828

77. | 06/11/14 Exhibit 3 - Responses to Second Set of Staff Data Requests 7179-7202

78. | 06/11/14 Exhibit 4 - Answers to First Set of Pesall Discovery 7203-7224

79. | 06/11/14 Exhibit 5 - Answers to Second Set of Pesall Discovery 7225-7235
Exhibit 50 - Power Point Presentation from May 20, 2014, Public Input

80. | 06/11/14 Hearing 7829-7852

81, | 06/11/14 Exhibit S0A - Revised Maps of Route Changes 7853-7854

82. | 06/11/14 Exhihit 6 - BSSE 9 - Map Showing Preferred Route 7236

83, | 06/11/14 Exhibit 7 - Route Change Request Form 7237

84, | 06/11/14 Exhibit 8 - Pesall's First Requested Route Change 7238

(Sealed

Exhibit 9 Route Change Matrix {BSSE 29- 31) Confidential (not available | envelope

85. | 06/11/14 to the public) 7239-7241)

86. | 08/22/14 Final Decision and Order; Notice of Entry; and Exhibit A 8324-8341

87. | 10/18/13 Gerald Pesall's Application for Party Status 1477

- _________ _ ______ ___ ___________ __________ _____ . ___________ _ .. . ]
PUC Alphabetical Index
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Gerald Pesall's Exhibit List; Certificate of Service; Exhibit 101 - Gerald
Pesall Prefiled Direct Testimony; Exhibit 102 - Gregory Tylka Prefiled
Direct Testimony; Exhibit 103 - Gregory Tylka CV; Exhibit 104 - Gregory
Tylka Prefiled Surrebuttal Testimony; Exhibit 105 - 2014 SCN
Distribution Map; Exhibit 106 - 1956 USDA Special Report on SCN;
Exhibit 107 - 1998 Soybean Digest Special Report on SCN; Exhibit 108 -
1996 First Report of SCN in South Dakota; Exhibit 109 - 2007 SCN
University Fact Sheet; and Exhibit 110 - 1955 SCN Plant Disease

88. | 06/05/14 Reporter 5567-5639
89. | 07/18/14 Gerald Pesall's Post-Hearing Initial Brief; and Certificate of Service 8075-8093
90, | 08/01/14 Gerald Pesall's Post-Hearing Rebuttal Brief; and Certificate of Service 8160-8168
91, | 10/11/13 Grant County Review's Affidavit of Publication 1099
92, | 05/20/14 Grant County Review's Affidavit of Publication 3829
93, { 05/09/14 Henry Ford Rebuttal Testimony; and Certificate of Service 3526-3530
Joint Motion for Approval of Settlement Stipulation (Montana-Dakota
Utilities Co, and Otter Tail Power Company, and the Staff of the South
Dakota Public Utilities Commission}; Settlement Stipulation; and
94, | 06/09/14 Certificate of Service 5646-5661
8187-8190
(Sealed
envelope
8191-8194)
Lyle Podoll's Email regarding Public Hearing on May 20, 2014; and Lyle | 8155
Podoll's Email regarding Public Hearing on May 20, 2014 Confidential {Sealed
(not available to the public); PUC Staff's Response to Lyle Podell; and envelope
PUC Staff's Response to Lyle Podell Confidential (not available to the 8196}
95. | 08/04/14 public) and August 6, 2014, Agenda of Commission Meeting 8197-8202
Milbank Public Hearing - Notice of Application; Order for and Notice of | 1344-1346
Public Input Hearings; Notice of Opportunity to Apply for Party Status; | {Sealed
Application for Party Status; Sign-in sheet Confidential {not available to | envelope
the public); Presentation; Transcript of Public Input Hearing; and 1347-1351)
96. | 10/17/13 Exhibit 1 1352-1476
97. | 08/13/14 Minutes of PUC Ad Hoc Commission Meeting 8294-8295
98. | 09/10/13 Minutes of PUC Commission Meeting 1049-1052
99, | 04/30/14 Minutes of PUC Commission Meeting 3522-3524
100. | 08/06/14 Minutes of PUC Commission Meeting 8220-8224
101. | 11/05/13 Minutes to PUC Commission Meeting 1507-1512
Montana-Dakota Utilities and Otter tail Power Company’'s Exhibits
(Evidentiary Hearing} - Exhibit 1 - Application and Attachments {Exhibit
1-10 and Appendix A, B, C, D, and H); Appendix E - Native Habitats
Classification Memorandum Confidential {not available to the public);
Appendix F - Bald Eagle Stick Nest and Sharp-Tailed Lek Survey Report | 6136-6979
Confidential (not available to the public); and Appendix G - Cultural (Sealed
Resources Level | Records Search Confidential (not available to the envelope
102.) 06/11/14 public) 6980-7154)

L ——— e}
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103.

08/23/13

Montana-Dakota Utilities Co. and Otter Tail Power Co.'s Application -
Cover Pages; Application; Exhibit 1 - Project Overview; Exhibit 2 - Detail
of South Dakota Facility; Exhibit 3 - Topography; Exhibit 4 - MISO MVP
Project Map; Exhibit 5 - State and Federal Lands; Exhibit 6 - Bedrock
Geology; Exhibit 7 - Quaternary Surficial Geology; Exhibit 8 - Water
Resources; Exhibit 9 — Aquifers; Exhibit 10 - Land Cover; Appendix A -
South Dakota Facility Description; Appendix B - MISO Studies

B.1- Multi-Value Project Portfolio, Results and Analyses (Midwest I1SO
2012); B.2 - Northwest Exploratory Study completed during MISO
Transmission Expansion Plan 2005 (Midwest ISO 2005); B.3 - Regional
Generation Qutlet Study completed during MISQ Transmission
Expansion Plan 2009 and 2010 (Midwest ISO 2010); B.4 - "Multi-Value
Project Portfolio — Results and Analyses" paraphrased in MISO
Transmission Expansion Plan 2011 {Midwest 1SO 2011); Appendix C -
Agency Material Correspondence; Appendix D - South Dakota Soil
Series Information;(Begin confidential in sealed envelope) Appendix E -
Native Hahitats Classification Memorandum Confidential (not available
to the public); Appendix F - Bald Eagle Stick Nest and Sharp-Tailed Lek
Survey Report Confidential {not available to the public) ; Appendix G -
Cultural Resources Level | Records Search Confidential (not available to
the public) (end confidential sealed envelope); and Appendix H -
Preliminary Transmission Structure Typical Drawings

13-851
{Sealed
envelope
852-1026)
1027-1032

104.

06/06/14

Montana-Dakota Utilities Co. and Otter Tail Power Co.'s Letter
regarding Commissioner Nelson's Inquiry During the May 20, 2014
Public Input Hearing; and Henry Ford's Letter to Lyle and Catherine
Podoll dated June 6, 2014

5643-5644

105.

05/19/14

Montana-Dakota Utilities Co. and Otter Tail Power Co.'s Presentation
for Public Hearing on May 20, 2014; and Certificate of Service

3534-3559

106.

08/01/14

Montana-Dakota Utilities Co. and Otter Tail Power Company Post-

Hearing Reply Brief; and Certificate of Service

8169-8186

107.

10/21/13

Montana-Dakota Utilities Co. and Otter Tail Power Company's
Responses to Staff's First Data Requests Dated September 19, 2013;
BSSE 1 - Exhibit 1 of Data Request 2 - Geologic Cross Section Big Stone
South to Ellendale 345 kV Transmission Line Project - Map; BSSE 2 -
Exhibit 2 of Data Request 2 - Geologic Cross Section Big Stone South to
Ellendale 345 kV Transmission Line Project - Elevation Chart; BSSE 3 -
‘Brown County Water Supply; BSSE 4 - Day County Water Supply; BSSE 5
- Grant County Water Supply; Exhibit BSSE & - Resources Providing
Information for Water Supply Source; BSSE 7 - Exhibit 1 of Data
Request 9 Preliminary Routes Big Stone South to Ellendale 345 kv
Transmission Line Project; BSSE 8 - Sample Photograph ; and Certificate
of Service

1478-1496

o T o e e e o]
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Maontana-Dakota Utilitles Co. and Otter Tail Power Proposed Findings
of Fact and Conclusions of Law; Proposed Order Granting Permit to
Construct Facilities; Montana-Dakota Utilities Co. and Otter Tail's
Motion for Leave to Submit Documentary Evidence; Exhibit 26 - Big
Stone South to Ellendale 345kV Transmission Line Project Route
Change Reqguest Denial; Exhibit 26A — Map; Exhibit 301A - Amended
Settlement Stipulation; Montana-Dakota Utilities Co. and Otter Tail

108. | 07/18/14 Initial Post-Hearing Brief; and Certificate of Service 8094-8144
Montana-Dakota Utilities Co. and Otter Tail Power's Request for
Confidential Treatment of Information of Documents Produced in
Response to Staff's Second Set of Data Requests and Certificate of
Service; and Montana-Dakota Utilities Co. and Otter Tail Power 1553-1577
Company's Responses to Staff's Second Data Requests Dated March 10, | (Sealed
2014; Response 2-11 - BSEE 329 - 331 Confidential {not available to the | envelope
public); Response 2-11 - BSSE 64-267 Confidential {not available to the | 1578-1784)
109. | 04/15/14 public);Response 2-16 - BSSE 268-332; and Certificate of Service 1785-1845
Morehouse Exhibit - Exhibit 207 - BSSE OVERVIEW Peterson Farms Re-
110. | 06/11/14 Route (Preliminary) 7932
Motion to be Offered by Commissicner Nelson at the August 13 Ad Hoc
111. | 08/11/14 Meeting 8291
112.| 08/23/13 Motion to Schedule Prehearing Conference 1036
Notice of Appearance (Thomas Welk, Jason R. Sutton, lennifer O,
113. | 08/23/13 Smestad, Daniel S. Kuntz) 1037
‘ Notice of Application; Order for and Notice of Public Input Hearing;
114, | 03/17/14 Notice of Opportunity to Apply for Party Status; and Affidavit of Service | 1540-1544
115. | 03/18/14 Notice of Public Hearing 1545-1546
116. | 09/13/13 Crder Assessing Filing Fee 1062-1063
117. | 06/09/14 QOrder Changing Hearing Location 5645
118. | 05/19/14 Order for and Notice of Hearing 3531-3533
119. | 11/06/13 Order Granting Intervention and Party Status (Gerald Pesall) 1513
Order Granting Intervention and Party Status (James R. McKane lll,
Clark T. Olson, Schuring Farms, Inc., Bradley R. Morehouse, and Kevin
120. | 05/01/14 Anderson) 3525
121.§ 09/19/14 Pesall’'s Email; Notice of Appeal; and Certificate of Service 8342-8344
122. | 06/05/14 Prehearing Conference Order 5640-5642
123. | 01/13/14 Procedural Scheduling Order 1514-1515
PUC Staff's Letter regarding Initial Post-Hearing Brief and Proposed
124.| 07/18/14 Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law 8145
PUC Staff's Letter to Aberdeen American News regarding Notice of
125, | 09/11/13 Public Hearing; and Notice of Public of Hearing 1059-1061
PUC Staff's Letter to Aberdeen American News regarding Notice of
126. | 04/16/14 Public Hearing; and Notice of Public Hearing 1855-1857
PUC Staff's Letter to Grant County Review regarding Notice of Public
127.| 09/11/13 Hearing; and Notice of Public of Hearing 1056-1058
PUC Staff's Letter to Grant County Review regarding Notice of Public
128.| 04/16/14 Hearing; and Notice of Public Hearing 1852-1854
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PUC Staff's Letter to Webster Reporter & Farmer regarding Notice of

129.1 09/11/13 Public Hearing; and Notice of Public of Hearing 1053-1055
PUC Staff's Letter to Webster Reporter & Farmer regarding Notice of
130. | 04/16/14 Public Hearing; and Notice of Public Hearing 1849-1851
8152-8155
PUC Staff's Response to Arnold and Darlene Dennert; and PUC Staff's {Sealed
Response to Arnold and Darlene Dennert Confidential (not available to envelope
131.| 07/31/14 the public) 8156-8159)
Randy Schuring's, Schuring Farms, Email regarding August 6, 2014,
132. | 08/06/14 Commission Meeting 8213
Replacement Page 20 for Montana-Dakota Utilities Co. and Otter Tail
Power Company's Responses to Staff's Second Data Requests Dated
March 10, 2014 which was filed on April 15, 2014; and Certificate of
133. | 04/16/14 Service 1846-1848
134. | 08/23/13 Request for Confidential Treatment of Information 1038 - 1039
135.| 07/11/14 Schuring Farms' Common Crop Insurance Policy 8035-8074
Schuring Farms' Email regarding Crop Insurance Policy; AgriDex's Fax;
136. | 06/20/14 and USDA's Article 7973-7976
137. | 06/26/14 Schuring Farms' Insurance Policy Provisions 7977-7980
138. | 07/11/14 Schuring Farms' RCIS - MPCI Policy Review/Change Form 8032-8034
Schuring Farms, Inc.'s Prefiled Exhibits; Exhibit 201 - 49-41B-4.4, Trans-
State Transmission Facility--Eminent Domain--Acquisition of Fee in
Land Contiguous to Right-Of-Way--Divestiture of Agricultural Land;
Exhibit 202 - 49-41B-4.2, Trans-State Transmission Line--Criteria
Required; Exhibit 203 - ARSD 20:10:22:12. Alternative Sites; Exhibit 204
- ARSD 20:10:22:18. Land Use; Exhibit 205 - ARSD 20:10:22:23.
Community Impact; and Exhibit 206 - ARSD 20:10:22:13. Environmental
139. | 06/03/14 information 3886-3893
140. | 08/23/13 | Service List 1033-1035
141.1 06/11/14 Staff's Exhibit - Exhibit 301 - Settlement Stipulation 7933-7943
Supplemental Rebuttal Testimony of Henry Ford; and Certificate of
142, | 05/23/14 Service 3881-3885
Surrebuttal Testimony of Gregory Tylka; Map - Current Presence of SCN
in Eastern South Dakota; Historic, Archived Documents; and Certificate
143. | 05/23/14 of Service 3831-3880
144, | 08/13/14 Transcript of PUC Ad Hoc Commission Meeting 8296-8323
145, | 08/06/14 Transcript of PUC Commission Meeting of 8/6/14 8225-8290
' Webster Reporter & Farmer's Affidavit of Publication; Aberdeen
American News' Affidavit of Publication; Grant County Review's
146. | 10/08/13 Affidavit of Publication; and Certificate of Service 1093-1097
147. | 07/18/14 Webster Reporter and Farmer's Affidavit of Publication 8146-8147
148. | 08/29/13 Weekly Filing for the Period August 22, 2013, through August 28, 2013 | 1044
149. 1 04/14/14 Wiles & Rylance's Letter regarding Applications for Party Status 1547

m
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BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION
OF MONTANA-DAKOTA UTILITIES CO.
AND OTTER TAIL. POWER COMPANY FOR
A PERMIT TO CONSTRUCT THE BIG
STONE SOUTH TO ELLENDALE 345 KV

TRANSMISSION LINE

e o S e Vac

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE
EL13-028

|, Joy Lashiey, under path, do swear, that on August 26, 2013, | by mailing the same to them by
United States Post Office First Class Mail and electronically served, Notice of Application; Order
for and Notice of Public Input Hearings; Notice of Opportunity to Apply for Party Status and
Affidavit of Service to the iist of persons below. | further swear that the attached list is a frue and
correct list of all persons who are parties in Docket EL13-028. '

" Ms. Patricia Van Gerpen
Executive Director

South Dakota Public Utilities
Commission :

500 E. Capitol Ave.

Pierre, SD 57501
patty.vangerpen @stats.sd.us

Mr. Brian Rounds

Staff Analyst

South Dakota Public Utilities Commission
500 E. Capitol Ave.

Pierre, SD 57501
brian.rounds @ state.sd.us

Mr. Thomas Welk

Boyce, Greenfield, Pashby & Welk, LLP
P.O. Box 5015

Sioux Falls, SD 57117-56015

tiwelk @ bgpw.com

Ms. Jennifer Smestad
General Counsel

Otter Tail Power Company
215 S Cascade St.

Fergus Falls, MN 56538-0496
jsmestad @ ottertail.com

Ms. Karen Cremer
Staff Attorney

.South Dakota Public Utilities

Commission

500 E. Capitoi Ave.
Pierre, SD 57501
karen.cremer@ state.sd.us

Mr. Darren Kearney

Staff Analyst

South Dakota Public Utilities Commission
500 E. Capitol Ave,

Pierre, SD 57501

darren.kearnsy @state.sd.us

Mr. Jason Sutton

Boyce, Greentfield, Pashby & Welk, LLP
P.O. Box 5015

Sioux Falls, 8D 57117-56015

irsutton @ bgpw.com

Mr. Daniel 8. Kuntz _
Associate General Counsel
MDU Resources Group, Inc.
P.O. Box 5650

1200 West Century Avenue
Bismarck, ND 58506-5650
dan.kuntz @mduresources.com

001040
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Ms. Maxine Fischer
Brown County Auditor
25 Market St. Ste 1
Aberdeen, SD 57401

" maxine.fischer @ browncounty.sd.gov

Ms. Karen Layher
Grant County Auditor
210 E. Fifth Ave.
Milbank, SD §7252

karen.layher@state.sd.us

" Subscribed and sworn to
before me this _2&6™day
of August, 2013.

TM% Quzﬁ/"‘

Notary Public - SoutifDakota

(SEAL)
: e NA DOUGLAS
My Commission Expires . mission Expires
)’. : 0 p Wy c%"ﬁnm:zw

Fierre, SD 57601

Ms, Sandra Raap

Day County Auditor

711 W, First St. Ste. 204
Webster, SD 57274
deaud @ ifctel.com

an
ssion
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BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF ) NOTICE OF APPLICATION;
MONTANA-DAKOTA UTILITIES CO. AND )} ORDER FOR AND NOTICE OF
OTTER TAIL POWER COMPANY FOR A ) PUBLIC INPUT HEARINGS;
PERMIT TO CONSTRUCT THE BIG STONE ) NOTICE OF OPPORTUNITY TO
SOUTH TO ELLENDALE 345 KV ) APPLY FORPARTY STATUS
' )
)

TRANSMISSION LINE
EL13-028

On August 23, 2013, jointly Montana-Dakota Utilities Co., a Division of MDU Resources
Group, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and Otter Tail Power Company, @ Minnesota corporation,
{jointly, the Applicants) filed with the South Dakota Public Utilities Commission (Commission) an
Application for a Facility Permit for the Big Stone South to Ellendale 345 kV Transmission Line
project {Application) and a Motion to Schedule Prehearing Conference (Motion). The Application
requests Commission approval of a permit fo construct a 345-kilovolt (kV} transmission line of
approximately 150 to 160 miles in South Dakota (Project). The line will cross the South Dakota and
North Dakota border in Brown County, South Dakota, and extend south and east through Brown,
Day, and Grant counties to the Big Stone South Substation in Grant County, South Dakota, near Big
Stone City. Modifications to the Project may occur depending on the final route permitted, land
rights, and final engineering design. The Commission has jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to
SDCL Chapters 1-26 and 48-41B and ARSD Chapter 20:10:22,

Pursuant to SDCL 49-41B-15 and 49-41B-16, the Commission will hold public input
hearings on the Application on Thursday, October 17, 2013:

(1) at noon (12:00 p.m. CDT} in the Centennial Rooms of the Student Center onthe campus of
Northern State Unlversity, 1200 South Jay Street, Aberdeen, 8.D, (parking available without
permit in the lot along Washington Street between 12" and 14" Avenues - driving directions’
and map at http;//www.northern.edu/about/pages/directions.aspx and

http://iwww.horthern.edufabout/Pubiishingimages/wirelessmap.pdf)

(2) at 7:00 p.m. CDT in the Community Room of the Milbank Visitor Center, 1001 East Fourth

[ AL

Avenue, Milbank, S.D.

The purpose of these public input hearings will be to hear public comment regarding the
transmission line permit Application and the Project. Atthe hearings, Applicants will present a brief
description of the Project, following which interested persons may appear and present their views,
comments and questions regarding the Application. A copy of the Application is on file with the
Brown, Day, and Grant County Auditors pursuant to SDCL 49-41B-15(5) and at the Commission's
office in Pierre. The Application and all other documents in the case, including detailed maps of the
Project, may be accessed on the Commission's web site at www.pug.sd.gov under Commission
Actions, Commission Dockets, Electric Dockets, 2013 Electric Dockets, EL13-028.

Pursuant to SDCL 49-41B-17 and ARSD 20:10:22:40, the parties to this proceeding are
currently the Applicants and the Commission. Any person residing in the area of the Project; each
municipality, county, and governmental agency in the area where the Projectis proposed to be sited;
any non-profit organization formed in whole or In part to promete conservation or natural beauty, to
protect the environment, personal health or other biclogical values, to preserve historical sites, to
promote consumer interests, to represent commercial and industrial groups, or to promote the
orderly development of the area in which the Project is to be sited; or any interested person, may be
granted party status in this proceeding by making written application to the Commission.
Applications for party status will be available at the public input hearings or may be obtalned from
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the Commission's web site or by contacting the Commission, Applications for party status must be
received by the Commission on or before Cctober 22, 2013.

Following the public input hearings, the Commission may schedule a formal evidentiary
hearings conforming to SDCL Chapter 1-26 to consider any issues raised by any intervening party,
Commission Staff, or the Commission itself. At such formal hearing, all parties will have the
opporiunity to appear, present evidence, and cross-examine the other parties' witnesses and
exercise all other rights afforded by SDCL Chapters 1-28, 49-1, and 49-41B and ARSD Chapters
20:10:01 and 20:10:22, including rights of appeal to the courts. Absent a contesied issue, the
Commission will schedule the matter for decision at a regular or speclal meeting of the Commission.

For approval, the Applicants must show that the proposed transmission Project will comply
with all applicable laws and rules, wili not pose a threat of serious injury to the environment nor to
the social and economic condition of inhabitants or expected inhabitants in the siting area, will not
substantially impair the health, safety or welifare of the inhabitants, and will not unduly interfere with
the orderly development of the region with due consideration having been given to the views of
governing bodies of affected local units of government. Based upon these factors, the Commission
will decide whether the permit shouid be granted, denied, or granted upon such terms, conditions or
modifications of the construction, operation or maintenance as the Commission finds appropriate. It

is therefore

ORDERED, that the Commission will hold public input hearings cn the Project at noon (12:00
p.m. CDT) in the Centennial Rooms of the Student Center on the campus of Northern State
University, 1200 South Jay Street, Aberdesn, 8.D. and at 7:00 p.m. CDT in the Community Room of
the Milbank Visitor Center, 1001 East Fourth Avenue, Milbank, S.D. It is further

ORDERED, that pursuant to SDCL 49-41B-17 and ARSD 20:10:22:40, applications for party
status must be filed on or before Qctober 22, 2013, and that pursuantto SDCL 49-41B-17.1, a party
who wishes fo receive personal service of all material filed In this matter shall make a specific
request to the Commission for personal service, which may be included in the application for party

status.
Pursuant to the Americans with- Disabilities Act, these hearings will be held in physically

accessible locations. Please contact the Public Utflities Commission at 1-800-332-1782 at least 48
hours prior o the hearing if you have speclal needs so arrangements can be made to accommodate

you,
Dated at Pierre, South Dakota, this ?—(0 day of August, 2013.

BY ORDER OF THE COMMISSION:
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE .
The undersigned hereby cartifies that this

document has been served today upon all partles of /Qj’l O{ ¢4

record in this docket, as lisied on the dockst service
list, by facsimile or by first class mail, In properly GARY.HANS Cha"'man
addressed envelopes, with chargas prepald therean. /é

: .

’PM CHRIS NELSON, Comi??sioner

:LO%QLD . } ?) -Dcéfv

(OFFICIAL SEAL) KRISTIE FIEGEN, Commissioner
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IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION
QOF MONTAN-DAKOTA UTILITIES CO.
AND OTTER TAIL POWER COMPANY
FOR APERMIT TO CONSTRUCT THE BIG
STONE SOUTH TO ELLENDALE 345 KV

BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITES COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA

TRANSMISSION LINE

Pursuant to SOCL 49-41B-17 and ARSD 20:10:22:40, ééz z é% é % . % _

Rl WP O I

{N

APPLICATION FOR PARTY
. STATUS

EL13-028

ame ol App!icam)f

petitions the Public Utitties Gommission o be granted party statuss in the above-referenced facility permit pr ing. -

{Seal)

NOTE:

Signature of Applicant

Coppld. Zepnfl

Print or Type Name

Adthess: /4= 6.2 :450%

%A&wﬂ#
o5 357 —~ /63 7 o

£hone Number

E-mall Addrass

Warma of Organization {if applicable)
Jo=-17-/3.
Date

Subscribed and sworn to befare me this [ day of __{ 2{ ;]:Q ber , 2013,

[t
:I
|
[
[
.

----------------------

N.BOBPESALL

3 NOTARY PUBLIC 3
H\SRAL) SOUTH DAKOTA by

----------------------

----------------------

Notary Pyblic

My Commission expires;__ &~ 20~/ g

Consistent with SDCL 49-418-17 and ARSD 20:10:22:44), this application must be flled with the Public Utiltiss Commission with
60 days from the date the application was filed, unless the deadline is extended by the Commission.

Executive Director
South Dakola Public Utlites Commission

500 East Capitol

Pigrre, SD 57501-5070
Fax: §66-757-6031

Elactronic Filing: http:fpuc.sd.gowEFlingOplions. asp
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Looking south on Pesall property, from north end of property. Culvert indicated at post in ditch.
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BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF ) ORDER GRANTING
MONTANA-DAKOTA UTILITIES CO. AND ) INTERVENTION AND PARTY
OTTER TAIL POWER COMPANY FOR A PERMIT ) STATUS

TO CONSTRUCT THE BIG STONE SOUTH TO )

ELLENDALE 345 KV TRANSMISSION LINE ) EL13-028

On August 23, 2013, Montana-Dakota Utilities Co., a division of MDU Resources, and
Otter Tail Power Company {jointly, Applicants) filed an application with the South Dakota Public
Utilities Commission (Commission) for a permit to construct a 345 kV transmission. line of
approximately 150 to 160 miles in Brown, Day, and Grant counties to the Big Stone South
Substation in Grant County, South Dakota, near Big Stone City (Project). On October 18, 2013,
an Application for Party Status was filed by Gerald Pesall. On November 8, 2013, the
Commission issued an Order Granting Intervention and Parly Status to Gerald Pesall. On
January 27, 2014, Applicants filed a First Amendment to Application. Due to Applicants having
made some route changes in certain areas of the Project which will result in some additional
landowners coming within the half-mile Project corridor, Applicants have served notice on such
landowners, and the Commission has scheduled an additional public input hearing on May 20,
2014, at Aberdeen, S.D. An intervention deadline of April 16, 2014, was set.

On April 14, 2014, James R. McKane 1ll, Clark T. Qlson, Schuring Farms, Inc., Bradley
R. Morehouse, and Kevin Anderson filed Applications for Party Status. The Commission has
jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to SDCL Chapter 49-41B, particularly 49-41B-17, and
ARSD Chapter 20:10:22, specifically 20:10:22:40.

At its regularly scheduled meeting on April 30, 2014, the Commission considered James
R, McKane Ill, Clark T. Ofson, Schuring Farms, Inc., Bradley R. Morehouse, and Kevin
Anderson's Applications for Party Status. Applicants did not object. The Commission voted
unanimously to grant intervention and party status to James R. McKane lll, Clark T. Olson,
Schuring Farms, Inc., Bradley R. Morehouse, and Kevin Anderson. It is therefore

ORDERED, that James R. McKane 1ll, Clark T, Otson, Schuring Farms, Inc,, Bradley R.
Morehouse, and Kevin Anderson’s Applications for Party Status and intervention are granted.

Dated at Pierre, South Dakota, this l > day of May, 2014.

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE BY ORDER OF THE COMMISSION:

Tha undersigned hershy cerfifles that this : 7 10 ’ 7
document has been served today upon all parties of
record In this docket, &s listed on the docket service ]
list, electronically. GAR S hairman
By: A
el n.?

1AL vl - CHRS NELSON, Commissioner
BA () i3
"~ KRISTIE FIEGEN, Comm

(OFFICIAL SEAL)
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Tnfiie Matter of the “Tianstission Perml for the BLE3-028
15 Storis Sonthio Bileidale Piajest e
()N'I’AI%-‘"]? R TIESCO

¥ SIFTEMBER 19, 015

 Mintana-Dakota Tilies Cosand:Qtter Tail Bower-Cormpany, £51ts regponsssta Bafls
Piast. Date Retgynes daedd Saptonibon 19, 2013, stares-e fllosws:
) PeiARSD 2010122510, plihss “piicvide o dasoriptionobpisssncend esehmared oonisitio
oo wnd sstieared Aimue arorpynesds of thoseonstomens o beitently seived by thie.
propoesifiiliy.”

RESPONBL The Big StoricBonth-—Ellendale3qs KV project involves:n high.
: eramstsgion. fing; davelsped collabordtively as.a MISO: M“‘t il ol

VP to Susrense-transmission sapaelly o provide Breentic
InfrastFcHiveERed 10 Bippovt i ronswableanergy

dh VSO Foniprint Thwmeed for tha:proposed
, Tine:ds:@iven By:demand soross tie VIS tootprint:

The planning:study v HeMVP portfolle l!l@ludad fransmilssion projesty s
Al i -staten: i this VLSO footprint,. The % aneratlon. asurBpHoNs: dy
nluell aliout 590 WISV of faburs gorerativn b South Dakots “byrthg:y«; y2 , _'
oven T400; MW by the yoar 2026 'that «coulil ‘be: delivered an i

fhron ];fjtm* “mseﬂM' $ proiectsy veldil didlids g St .
298KV line, The Big Stone Kouth — Ellendale 345 KV e will. sflow. fufure
gbnél*amt's Lo IterooRIEt to thie taikmidsion kystond,

Im 40 thig Tnterconnusted: wativy oF Ehie transission sysonm, the -,}:mjmt Wil s
pport the transmisston system. ontside of MISO in Spatl Dakota and: Noxth
l)akﬁta Ty providiigauilew igh voltage sovrey tothe axistmg Frsnsilsslan systein,
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the wulerlying Plryre: Shale i
Phie-secbind ouounE newy Mils:s:

2y Please provide ciniss seotioty of the bediock geologyandsirfiohitgeology o depivt: the:

Twejbirsubsifice: variations th acoordamee it ARSI 204 0:2HALE). An sxample:flom

_ dﬁﬁkei EL09 D18 Ts:attached,

RSP ( In pecordanoeywith ARSI 20:10: itk
6f the weolngieal featiues of the Flant, Wit ; Yitisslon slte wsing:
fm mphio map: as.1 haso: slowing 'ilw'betlrmlé genlogy and surfioiul geology wi
ant erhsssedtions:to d';p‘ict the inajor-guls ' atigats in-the sitin .~ar¢a
iy pnwi ool 5 HSSE 12, T geolcr%w iy sostion of B South Dikotn Fmﬂllty
syan: prépaved mshig publoally. avallable dab swrface. olevationy fopth -fo
Vediool, Sueficil goology; il beargale.geclo 6o bidtehiol dIath: hias ot et
s wollootell fax P Profect, dutailed geulugly information was nok availible to
conytrngt Hioreross:section, Therelove, Hhie- crass section F:‘o los- & generalized view.
of el wniderlying geology wlong the Houth Dakos Faviliry (BSSYE 1.2y Limitutions
to- thesernss:sextion: thal may exlst including il mcallzeu yarlations in beifvosl
fedlapy AlG- Mok shown, "The: ia‘i?ei‘bflhg icoiolidated watoxin wleo Vil . locally
alqn o Sowth Dakota Vavillty from silts and ol to sand pui gravel; ik for
? v ‘these pinterigly Tinyo: Teon shown. @y oive unit, ealled Iirnconso!ldated
BYST 20, T wddition, formiation on iliknesses of the wnderiylig
bedrosk wittsmlong:tio Bowth Dakota Exolity was notavailable: Boonyse of thicand
1o-voll a Jarge: vertignl expggeritlon, the thivinessss dEth wnjts:avenot accirately
IO o Pl erosy Seoffow Ttliess dnlaiowiy are show with guestion marke ora
dgsheé g mot considersd 'u siguificnnt: imitation: sinve he

o on: BEBE ), |
o skiivetiyee foumtintions il likely b 80-festedlee ov-less,

Avens o ghallow. betivock Closs thin 50 feet) 'were identifiod in two. distinct areas
Along ie:South Dalkota Foollity: Tho fiest i Innuted fi-thie vichity of Mile-d, whiere

poximately 30 feet from: the surface ?ISEE 2)..
"Mile-65, whiare i eyl bedvoviclslo the
Plovre Bl anil oan bologs thay ﬁﬂ feet from theswelhios mwm 2

Sourees:
alid Bediock. Contours; South Dikiota. Depaitiient of

1. Beiroek. Geology -
Euiviommont: and. Natwdl Resvaxces, Geologionl Survey, Link to. tiafile -

s udu/pulis!pdflmlhcdrugl' 40 ip
; Butichl Grology, Vnited Sttes @mmglaalssméy, Qusitariny
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Rl The Wilinage ptterns as shown oo Txhibit § of e
Apnhmfm repneseut Lokl bedbre sndl after construction draimage patterns, s
Applicants do notantivipate chunges to:drainage:patterns.after: eonstrudtion.

P ARSI20;1022: 18CLIGR; ploase provide o map-withthemunivipal watersupply-and
wat@l apuwcs For organlzed:rural waker dishdots

' See attached water supply maps for Day, Grant and Brown
Cﬁunties ummbm*eu BESH: 35,  The wttckied anaps wein deviloped. by KLJ

ingiweering: The resources that were nsed fo fevelop these maps pre ound on
attacheil BSSLE.G,

Per ARS
Irupaet of property.anid. other taxes of Hie affested taxing jurisdiofions,

D 20 10:80:98(2), plonss provide foreeasty:on the fininediate and long-nge

Prolmrty taxes in South: Dakota for a transmission Jine; prqjaet
8 i i 4 Mg thie project willlietotated;, "Elie! tﬁxbill s
m*t&pm'eﬂ el -eountyfsbsed -on oty adlfor townshipmill Jovys. The
walte. bagi wed. by the Gounty*is ﬂetel.;mincﬂ Ly $hie Sta i)
A dRntihl ASAsRRIEnt RICGS Aoi prajevts:of thivtyp
appifes to:the project is based on o mumbyrof oriter
kit piogene:ds Well H Iﬁﬂiﬁathi‘$=6ﬁ hﬁw tl Woriipi

Fulligators sugh a8 Market Cosk and Faged stermingtion, The
assessed value:in onch ounty s then calculateil on per ille-bhis for-the. prgjoct
¥kl etk :-sm.m;f "Thie: Staee e nmv'n‘laﬁ st asonsed. valwe o srch affeciod

) il Tevy o off thestime; Bused on
- jatos: for Sonth Didleatn, We antlinaee 4. ymly
pmnﬁxtyf @RS O o $225 million.. Thisequalsan, apgrmmm
taxeper-mile-of: ‘Eransmisston Hnoihwthexange of: L $11,200-to-§1 4;5004m: South Dakota
bused o apprositely 158 ey oF Bue: On | ANy Iay county kg, i

eleulates to property taxes of qpproximately $715,000 to $885,000. for: Brown.

Conity, $535,000 to-8785,000 for-Dy Covntys. i $490,000 o $60%:000:508 Grant
County:

The Applieanty pesliminary jrofuetiong of salevine taxve and contractor exoive
tnxos:palil during:the project range:from 55,8 million to:39-million,

" ineluding ‘thedtotal tuvestment
tanidls o Fiiassieln) Tase,

Sigwside-finther suppoit et teansmisslon liries do:noatfert land/proprny valies as
idenititied in seotlon19:3:2;
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'Ithai? “Tle South Dakota § Tacility is not expenterl to have significant: shori<or: lungn

tevin effoety on ol valieset,  The A 'pln:atltm does: ot agate. that the
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temyel bvaiflon alte ventals, mowls gus and noscellannyy supplics, Theddmpuot:fo the
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SPONSE: Section 1942 of the Application states, awong other things,
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s thie AppHisantawatsttio nesd 16 oty .angadditiornal poverimentel sititiesd

Yow,. deoidntalenllision with a stiotur would ban sufby vonase

distnée betyveent fhe subiStaricie sxceets approXimately 75 niiles. Typivalftber optle;
; Falie
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‘di':’&t’!zll’.‘ﬂt—’ii’!tﬁs-.‘ -

- iorosyed 'lai‘jgpr pmeui ns of




T

A [

STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA )
COUNTY OF _ B LIZe/if

Henry Ford, being duly sworn is the authorized agent of Montana-Dakota Utlhtles Co,,
- for purposes of the tesponse

He statas that he does not have personal knowledge of all the facts recited in the
foregoing Responses of Montana-Dakota Utilities Co. and Otter Tail Power Company to Staff's
First Date Requests; but the information has been gathered by and from employees, contractors
of the owners of Big Stone South to Ellendale Project; and that the information is verified by him
as being true and correct on behalf of the owners of the Big Stone South to Ellendale Project.

Dated this 21 day of October, 2013.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 52[ day of Qctober, 2013,

DENTS SORVIARTE
St it Dot /\QMWDQQJLM

My Commission Explres December 31, 2018 Notary Public L South)Dakota .
(SEAL)

r / . ;
My Commission Expires: / 69/5 / / /5 ' -

oy
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SIATE OR MINNESOTA "
e 188,
COUNPY O SIERINL )

Toson Welers; betngs dully. sswors s s authortzed agentof Omer Thl Powar Company, for

‘purposes-of the.response,

Me sfafes that bw, doss nob Have ‘porsondl, knowleder of wll thordhdls rpuited o the
‘foregeing Responses ofiMontana-Dikota Lititifies Co. and'Ottex Fall Power Company fo Staff’s
Bkt Informacon has been gafhetod By and. fiom employess, sonraciors

the informetion:is yerified by him

Tist Dt Reiquasts, b
anbiathg i and vasract o BebislFof the.owsy Tty Big Stoiie SouthtoBlistdale Projest,

oftigowng ig Southto BllendaleProject; and;

Dated-this: /8" day of Ootober, 2013,

My Gommilssion Expires: 4105

ROL 4 kg
Neltary Bigbiinog

; @fd §




BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA

In the Matter of the Transmission Permit for the E1.13-028
Big Stone Scuth to Ellendale Project

MONTANA-DAKOTA UTILITIES CO.
AND OTTER TAIL POWER
COMPANY'S RESPONSES TO STAFF'S
SECOND DATA REQUESTS DATED
MARCH 10, 2014

Montana-Dakota Utilities Co. and Qtter Tail Power Company, for its responses to Statf™s

Second Data Requests dated March 10, 2014, states as follows:

2-1)

Referring to page 103 of the Aberdeen Public Hearing tanseript, what criteria
eliminated a route from Ellendale, ND 1o Havana, ND, then cutting diagonally across
the Coteau Iills to Sisseton, and then following the slope rail line from Sisseton to
Milbank?.

'RESPONSE: Page 103 of the transcript contains a gencral potential route as

suggested by Mr, Lyle Podoll, Based on the general route description of Mr,
Podoll, the following explanation is provided as to why the final preferred route

A2 seind Fall nA. 4 P
fiid not foliow M 1 sdoll’s pr%pese{! roule corridor

o A study corridor and preliminary routos were considered from Ellendale,
ND to the general Havana, ND arca, but eliminated as the preferred route
dup to constraints as deseribed in the third paragraph of the Applicant’s
response to Question 14 of the first sof of SDYUC data requests, As stated
froim the vesponse to data request 1-14 of the Staff’s first data requests:
“The alternative routes through Dickey and Sargent counties reqoire a
crossing of the U.S, Fish and Wildlife Sorvices’ (USFWS) Dakota Lake
National Wildlife Refuge and U.S. Bureau of Reclamation Oakes
Research Area in North Dakota, Tn addition, one of the alternalive rontes
would be located closc to or potentially cross the Hecla Sand Prairic area
in northwostern Marshall County, which is an area of conservation
interest to the USFWS and they hold many geassland easements on the
land. The South Dakota Game, Fish, and Parks Department also had
concerns with the alternative routes in Marshall County being located

g %BIT
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close to waterbivd colonies. Lastly, the alternative routes would cross
more prairie or grassiand areas through western Marshall County and |
Sargent and Dickey counties in North Daketa compared to the preferred
route.”

s 'The Coteau Hills area was eliminated from consideration during the
study corridor development phase, because of concerns expressed by
several state and federal agencies and Native American tribes due to the
velatively high density of protected species, high quality prairie habitat,

" federally and state owned and managed lands, and potential culfural
resources. In addition, there were engineering concerns with the steep,
rolling topography and numerous bodies of water and drainage ways,

e The slope rail line from Sisscton to Milbank was not considered for
several reasons, including the fact that it crosses through several towns
and a relatively high density of federally owned and managed Iands,
Additional information on why active railroads were not carried forward
for the final preferred route is included below in the response to the
Staff’s Data Request 2-31.

Referring to pages 69-75 of the Aberdeen Public Hearing transcript, Mr. Jones
proposed an alternate route with the Applicant, Did the Applicant review Mr. Jones’
alternate route? If so, what was the outcome of the route review?

TV o
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RESPONSE; Yes, the Project has reviewed Mr, Jones’s requested changes to
the proposed route. The Project has been working to try fo develop a change to
the proposed route through the Jones Family proporties and is in disoussions
with him, Three potentinl routes options have been discussod, including voute
proposals by Mr, Jones and his son. The Project continucs to evaluate these
propesed routes with Mr. Jones.

Please explain what factors eliminated the options of overbuilding or reconductoring
existing transmission lines that ave located in the siting area.

RESPONSE;  Using existing transmission corvidors fo double circuit high
voltage transmission lines were excluded from the routing criteria duc te
concerns relating ¢o dogradation of the system reliability, operational challenges,
and a higher cost, as discussed more fully below, Furthermore, most existing
(ransmission lines are not owned by either of the Owners and thus Owners do
not have the right to use many of these existing lincs.

Relinbility Concerns



Double-cireuiting (“overbuilding”) the Big Stone South to Ellendale 345 kV line
with portions of other existing transmission lines may be feasible, but bencfits of
the Project sre diminished. Generally, double ecircuiting high voltage
transmission is net preferred due to the possible degradation of system
roliability, For cxample, if a structure with two transmission lines is
compromised (or both lines are out of service becaunse of a lightning strike or
other event), the reliability of the transmission system is compromised. Buflding
the Projoct on separate structares and within a separate route Is impoxtant for
making sure the existing and the new cireuits are both available, don’t Interfere
with cach other, and previde back-up transmission paths for outages of other
area transmission civeuits.

Furthermore, an interim challenge with overbuilding an existing transmission
ling is the extended outage time of existing transmission lines associated with the
construction period of the Project. This extended outage time of existing
transmission cireuits can last several months thus jeopardizing the reliability of
the system, The fransmission system is generally planned and operated to
provido reliable service without an interruption of service for single (N-1)
contingencies. Having an existing transmission line de-energized for an
extended period of time puts the transmission system in a vulnerable state due to
the increased lkelihood of another outage concurrent with the existing cirenit
boing everbuilt (N-2) with the new Project. Oufages of 2 or more circuits
simultancously raises significant reliability comcorns that could lead to an
interruption of service to customers due to depressed voltages or overloaded
facilitics. Therefore, extended outages of existing transmission lines causcs

| RN

inferim operating concerns when overbuilding existing tines with the Project,

Operational Challenges ' ‘
Maintenance activities would be challenging when overbuilding existing

transmission lines, Muintenance relaied activitics on a jinc that is adjacent to an
energized circuit is dangorons, It requires special equipment, specially trained
personnel, and extraordinarily rigorous safety measurcs, These special
requirements also inerease the cost of maintaining the system,

Higher Cost

Double circuit construction or reconductoring existing circuits is also more
costly than single cirenit construction, Having fwo separate circuits on a
common structure requires more robust structures to safely handle inereased
mechanical loadings due to wind and ice. These robust structures typieally
requirc stronger foundations. Reconductoring existing lines is also probilematic
given the design voltage of the Project (345 KV) and operating voltage of existing
lines in the area (highest voltagoe of 230 kV). Reconductoring existing Hnes to a
higher voltage would require converting several existing subsintions to a higher
voltage (from 230 kV to 345 KkV), which would require installing new equipment
at these existing substations.
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___ with _interaction _from .a

The factors discussed above lead fo diminished reliability benefits, more
operational challenges, and # highor cost when econsidering the opiions of
overbuilding or reconductoring existing lines than by building the Projocet along
an entirely new corridor. As a result, the Owners have adopted design and
routing criterla that, except in extraordinary circumstances, exclude these

options from consideration,

Please explain the MISO MTEP planning process-and summarize the findings of the
MTEP 11 report, cleatly stating in language that the public can understand the need
for the transmission line. In addition, please clealy identify what transmission grid
constraints will be resolved, what NERC contingencies will be mitigated, what public
policy objectives will be achieved, and what wholesale electric market benefits are
expected as a result of constructing the line. '

RESPONSE:

MISO MTEP Plapning Process

MISO’s planning process is based on an annual cyele that is referred to as the
MISO Transmission Expansion Planning (MTEP) process. The MTEP process
adheres to the nine planning principles outlined in FERC Ovder No. 890." These
planning principles result in an open and transparent regional pianning process

recommendations for transmission expansion that are reported in the MTEP
report and submitted for approval to the MISO beard of directors. The annwal
planning process typically concludes with MISO board ef dircctor approval

occarring in December of each year,

Findings of MTEP11 Report

The MVP portfolie analyses evaluated the cxpeeted future condifions on the
MISO regional transmission grid, The analysis found that the Project will be
needod in order to ensure the continued relinble operation of the Otter Tail
Power Company and Montana-Dakota Utilitics Co. transmission systems into
the futnre. Furthermore, the MVP portfolio allows for a more efficient dispatch

of generating resources, spreading the benefits of low cost generation to South

Dakota and throughout the MISO feotprint. These benefits were outlined
through a scries of studies that guantified the cconomic benefifs of the low cost

generation resources that can be reliably delivered with the addition of the MVP-

transmission.

Y preventing Undue Discrimination and preference In Transmission Service, Qrder No. 890, FERC Stats. & Regs. %
31,241, order on reh’g, Order No, 890-8, 123 FERC 4 61,209 (2008), order on rel’y, Order No. 890-C, 126 FERC Y
61,228 {2009), order on clarification, Order No. 890-D, 129 FERC 9 61,126 {2008},
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broad _stakeholder_ group, which _results_in ..



Tyansmission Constraints Resolved

The construction of the Project will enable Otter Tail Power Company and
Montana-Dakota Utilities Co, fo reliably deliver the encrgy this area nocds today
and into the future, 'The Project improves the rclinbility of the bulk clectric
system in the arca. Reliability studies performed by MISO for the Froject have
identified the following fransmission issues are mitigated as a result of the
Projcet during contingencies prescribed in the NERC transmission planning
standards (referred to as single contingency (N-1) and double contingency cvents
(N-2)):

o Oakes — Ellendale 230 kV Line
Aberdeen — Eliendale 115 kV Line
Osnkes — Forman 230 kV Line
Forman 230/115 kV Transformer
Aberdeen Jet. — Aberdeen 118 kV Line
Forman 230 kV Bus Tic
Elendale 230/115 kV Transformer
Heskett 230/115 kV Transformer

e & % @ & & o

The construction of the Project will address these loading issues by providing an
alternative transmission path for energy to flow during contingencies,

Public Policy Objectives

Throughout the course of the MVDP studics, public policy objectives were considored
as state Renewable Portfolic Standards (RPS) that are in place across the MISO
footprini, The MVP portfolio is a group of seventeen transmission projects
distributed across the MISO footprint that enables the refiable delivery of the
aggrogate of current state RPS within MISO. The study results indicate that the
MVP portfolio will enable transmission of 41 Million Megawatt hours (MWh) of
wind encrgy por year across MISO. As determined threugh the MVP studics, this
amownt of wind energy is auticipated to mest state renewable encrgy mandates
across the MISO reglon heyond 2026,

Furthermore, construction of the Project will contribute to a robust transmission
system across MISO that will be available to provide nceded transmission capacity
to maintain reliable service in the cvent that logislation or environmental regalation
leads to the retirement of some coal-fired generating plants and the addition of gas-
fired generating plants. This Project, along with the rest of the MYP pertfoliv offers
a versatile transmission pian that will be effective regardless of future generation

fucl-types.
Wholcsale Electric Market Benefits



The wholesale clectric market benetits that are expected as a result of constructing
the Projeet in conjunction with the rest of the MV?P portfolic are primarily
associated with savings realized by reduced fransmission congestion and incronsed
fuel savings. As mentioned previously, the MVP portfolio altows for &2 more cfficient
dispatch of generation resources, opening markets to competition, and spreading the
benefits of low cost generation throughout the MISO footprint.

In addition to congestion and fuel savings of an estimated $12.4 - $40.9 Billion in
present value benefits, the MISQO studics have also shown guantifinbic benefits as a
result of the MVPs for the fellowing generation and transmission aspects as well,

1. Operating Reserves
a. The MVP portfolio decreases congestion on the system, increasing the

transfor capability into several key areas that would otherwise have to
maintain additional operating reserves under certain system condltions,
i, A reduction in operating reserves results in estimated present
value benefits of $28M - $87M,
2, System Planning Reserve Margin _

a. The MVP portfolio reduces congestion across MISO thereby reducing the
amount of gencration required to meet the planning reserve margin for a
one day in 10 years loss of load expectation,

i, A reduction in the system planning reserve margin results in
estimated present value benefits of $1.08 - §5,1B,

3, Transmission Line Losses
a. The MVP portfolio reduces the overall system losses, which also reduces

The generation needed fo serve the load and losses on the system,
i. A reduction in transmission line losses vesults in estimated present
value benefits of $111M - §396M.
4. Wind Turbine Investment
a, The MVP portfolio allows a balance of wind turbine investment between
remote gencration placement relying on transmission for delivery to load
and lecal generation closer to load. Placing wind regionally te leverage
the bost available wind resources requires a robust transmission system,
i, Leveraging wind turbine installations in optimal lecations across
MISO resulis in estimated present value bencefits of $1.48 - $2.58,
5. Transmission Investment
a. ‘The MVY portfolio will eliminate some future relinbility upgrades.
i, Eliminating future transmission upgrades results in estimated
prosent value benefits of $226M - $794M.

The analysis performed by MISO has found that the MVP porifolio overall will
produce an estimated $15.5 to $49.2 Billion in present vale benefits to the
aggregate MISO footprint under existing encrgy policies (See Figure 1), This range
of savings is derived based on the period over which benefits are calculated,
disconnt rates applied, and assumptions about growth rates of encrgy and demand.?

% see MVP Report,

- -
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Figure 1 — Estimated Present Value Benefits of MVP Portfolio

When compared o the present value of the revenuc requirements for the MVDP

portfolio, the porifolio produces total benefits of between 1.8 to 3,0 times the costs

on a present value basis, undor existing policies, When these system-wide

benefits were evaluated for their distribution within the MISO footprint, benefits
to Local Resource Zone 1 were botween 1,6 and 2.9 times the portfolio costs to
Local Resource Zone 1. Zone 1 is comprised of MISO member companies within
Minnesota, South Daketa, North Dakota, and parts of Wisconsin and Mentana,

(sce Figure 2)

3 5ae MVP report - Beneflt-Cost ratlos are shown on page 6 of the publicly avallable document.
7
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Figure 2 — Bencﬁt«Cost Ratms to Local Resouree Zones Across MISO

The application provides L50 audible noise, which means that 50% of the expected
data points are greater than the stated value. Please provide the worst-case (i.e.
maximum) noise level landowners can expect to be exposed to during the life of the

2-6)

factlity; as-well-asthe L1H0-(if available); forbotirfairand -fourweather condititis!

RESPONSE: Only L30 audible noisc values were calenlated for the
transmission line. ‘The neise exposure of an individual depends on their position
with respect to the transmission line and weather conditions. The transmission
line noise levels at the edge of the right-of-way are shown on Table 17 contained
in Section 14.3.2 of the Application, as amended.,

Footnote 1 of amended Table 17 (pg. 59 of the Application) identifies that the Noise
levels are representative of a current of 500 amps, Footnote 3 of amended Table 22
(pg. 94 of the Application) identifics the Maximum Operating Condition is based on
~2,000 amps. What is the maximum amount of current that will flow on the line
during the life of the facility? Further, please explain how any expected additional
cutrent flow (beyond 500 amps) will affect noise levels if not already answered in
response to data request 2-5.

RESPONSE; Current flow is not expected to exceed 2,000 amps during the life
of the facility. Audible noise of transmission lines is not a function of the curvent

Hi

|
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flowing in the conductors. Therefore, higher current will not cause higher
audible noise levels nor will lower currents reduce the audible noise levels,

Please provide a lst of requested route changes that {ncludes: 1) location of the
requested route chenge, 2) a brief description of the request, 3) current status of the
request, 4) how the Applicant responded to the request, and 5) a justification for
either approving or denying the request, Purther, ensure the list includes the following
requested rovte changes that PUC Stafl is aware of:

| Throo miles east of Garland Township, 9-125-63, (120" Street and 390"

Ave), and
it. % of a mile east out of Westport,

RESPONSE: Sce BSSE 329 to 331, which describes the proposed route
"changes,” the location of the route change, a brief description of the route
change request, current status of the request, how the Owners responded to the
roguest, and a justification for either approving or denying the request, The
Owners request confidential treatment of this document pursuant to ARSD
21:10:01:41, Owners ave separately filing a request for confidential treatment,

If not already provided in response to data request 2-7, please provide any known

I

M1
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route changss that deviate from the route set forth in the initially filed application.

RESPONSE: None, other than the route changes {dentified in response to data

' request 2-7,

Please provide any known landowner concerns, how the Applicant is addressing the
concerns, and when the Applicant believes the concerns will be resolved,

RESPONSE: [t is unelear what is meant as landowner “concerns,” Coneerns
could include requests for route changes, questions about the Project, and
comments relating to the Project. The Owners have in the past and will continue
in the future to work to address Jandowner concerns and comments through
continued public meetings, posting frequently asked questions on the Project
webgite, sonding newslctters, communicating with landowners through the
website and hotline, having personal mectings with the landowners, and written
and telephonic communieations with landowners, Due to the size of the Projeet,
Owners believes that landowner concerns will continue to be raised prior to
permitting, after permitting, before, during and after construction, and post-
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construction, Some landowner eoncerns can and have been resolved. Some
landowner concerns may not be able to be resolved, Once construction
commences, the Projeet anticipates developing a process fov the landowners
affected by the construction to submit comments or coneerns.

As to some of the specific concerns or comments raised by landowners, some of
these concerns or comments were made at the public input hearings in Aberdeen
and Milbank on October 17, 2013. Some of the comments are indicated in the
discussion of the routc change requests discussed in the response to Staff's Data
Request 2-7, Regarding Gerald Pesall, his coneerns are addressed in his answers
to the Ownors' interrogatories, The Project mot with Mr. Pesall and his counsel
on April 10, 2014, in an otfort to address his concerns, The discussions with Mr,
Pesall during this meeting are confidential settlement discussions.  Finally,
additional comments and concerns are discussed in response to Staff’s Data
Request 2-29 addressing why landowners have not yet signed options. "~

Please ¢cxplain the Applicant’s average response time for inquiries that were
submitted by the general public through the BSSE's toli-free information ling and

website written inquiry processes.

2-11)

RESP(f)‘ljﬁEr‘l‘HFPW']WWEWYEWEWWrougn which the general
public ¢an submit comments, including a toll-free information line, a comment
form on the project website, an email address, comment forms at open houses,
and » mailing address. Response time data through all channels shows that the
overall average time from when the Projeet reccived 8 comment to the first
response to the commenter was approximately 10 days.

Referring to page 93, line 9, of the Aberdeen Public Hearing {ranseript, please
provide the study referenced by Mr. Fasteen that determined the easerent prices
heing offered.

RESPONSE: Mr. Fasteen was referring to countywide appraisal documents,
which are produced at BSSE 64 to 267 . The Owners request confidential
treatment of these documents pursuant to ARSD 20:10:01:41, The Owners are
separately filing a request for confidential treatment. Mr, Fasteen also was
referring to USDA/NASS, South Dakota Field Office, South Dakota 2012 County
Level Land Rents and Values (“USDA Survey”). Mr, Fasteen viewed the USDA

10
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survey previously, but no longer has it in his possession, and he can no longer
access the version of USDA study viewed on line,

Refesring to page 95, line 9, of the Aberdeen Public Hearing transcript, please
provide & summary of any follow-up discussions that ocourred between the Applicant
and Mr, Sperry regarding irrigation conter pivot plans and plans for instailing a corner
syslem.

RESPONSE: The Project had multiple communications with Mr, Sperry
regarding this matter in December of 2013, The Project evaluated placing
structures to adjust the span length such that the transmission lin¢ structures
could be installed without impacting the anticipated center pivot unit of the
corner system, Currently, a potential route change is being evaluated by the
Praject that would climinate the need to cross the applicable property.

Please explain how residences that are focated within 500 feet of the transmission
line, yet not required to sign an easement as the line does not cross their propeity, are
compensated for any potentlal future losses to property values.

RESPONSE: Only landowners from whom an easement is needed to encumber
their property to construct the Project receive compensation, As stated in
response to data request 1-6 from the Staff's first sct of data requests, the

R
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Ownors do not expecet that the Project will have significant short or long term
effects on property values,

Please provide a description of setback requirements for each township road, county
road, or state road the preliminary route parallels. If no set back requirements will be
of factor, please identify such,

RESPONSE:  The preferred route paralicls various roads, including township
roads, county roads, and state roads in each of three counties: Brown, Day, and
Grant. Pursuant to SDCL Ch, 11-2, the regulations of the set back from the
right-of-way of all highway, roadweys, roads, and strects, including state and
township roads, are cstablished by the respective county’s commission and/or

_ planning commission. Ench of the counties throngh which the preliminary route

is located employs county ordinances rclating fo zoning and cerlsin use
regulations. The setback requircments vary by county and also, to a lesser
degree, by zoning districts within cach county. Roads the proferred route is
anticipated fo paraliel in Brown County are located in Ag Preservation and
Mini-Ag Zoning Districts, which have a one hundred foot (100") setback

1
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requivement as required in Scctions 4.0606 and 4,0706 of the Brown Couvaty
Zoning Ordinances. In Day County, pursuant to Section 2601 of the Day County
Ovdinances, the preferred route is required to be setback fifty feet (50%) from ali
roags designated by Day County to be part of the Day County Highway System.
This fifty foot (50°) requirement does not apply to other roads lo¢ated in Day
County. In Grant County, pursuant to Section 1101.04(2) of the Zoning
Ordinances for Grant County, there is a requirement for a one hundred foot
(100°) front yard in property zoned “A’ Agricultural District,

Please explain the factors that resulted in tho need to paralle] an existing transmission
line located along the south side of 148" St, beginning at the Hwy 12 and 148" St
split, as shown on Exhibits 2.33 through 2.35 of the Application. Does puralicling an
existing transmission line create any additional risk to public safety?

RESPONSE:
T'he reason to be on the south side of 148™ Street (Exhibit 2.33 and 2.34) was to

maximize the distances from the lnrgest number of homes possible,
Furthermore, there is also a cemetery located on the north side of 148" Street
cast of 472 Ave. that was alse avoided. In this location, the linc being paralieled
is not a {ransmission line but a distribution line. The paralleling of the Project
with a distribution line does not ereate a safety issuc. In some instances,

paralleling a transmission line can create veliability concerns for the

2-16)

transmission system as discussed in the responsc to the Staff’s second set of data
requests number 2-3, The pavalloling of this distribution line do¢s not, however,
create such reliability concerns or other safety concerns.

Please provide a list of all units of local government that have formally expressed
concern reg_arding the project, Please include any related record of correspondence,

RESPONSE: Scc BSSE 268 to 320 which includes correspondence from
Farmingten Fownship, Highland Township, and Vailey TFownship, and the
Project’s correspondence with the board of supervisors or hoard chairman for
those townships and the board chairman,

Prior to filing the Facility Permit Application, the concorns raised by
Farmington, Highland and Valley Townships were incorporated into the
application, Agricultural coneerns raiscd by Farmington, Highland, and Valiey
Townships were addressed in sections 14.4 and 19,2, The application also
addressed the concerns of Iighland and Valley Townships regarding safety and
property valuation in sections 23,4 and 19.1.2 respoctively. The website also

12
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includes answers in our FAQs related to agriculture and health and safety, One
time payments were addressed in the October 2013 Power Delivered newsletier,
which is contained at BSSE 321 to 322,

Has the Applicant, ox its agents, trespassed on private property?

RESPONSE: To the best of the Ownors’ knowledge at this time, no trespassing
has oceurred.

How will the Applicant ensure soil and plant-bon pests are not ransmitted from field
to field?

RESPONSE: As stated in the answer to interrogatory number 9 in Gerald
Pesall's Second Set of Discovery to Applicants: “The Owners contend that the
construction of the Project will have no impact on the field-to-ficld transmission
of soil and plant borne pests. Based on the Applicants’ experience in
construeting, operating, and maintaining 5,700 miles of transmission lines in
North Dakota, South Dakota, Minnescta, Montana, and Wyoming, the
construction and maintenance of these lines has not materially contributed to the
field-to-field transmission of soil or plant-born pests. Any field-to-ficld
transmission of soil or plant-born pests would be no greater than would be

2-19)

oxpected s w result-of standard fariming praciices; SuTras wioving farniing
equipment between fields.”

Has the Applicant, in its experience in building and operating high voltage
transmission lings ever experienced complaints of radio, TV, communications (e.g.
CBs, two way radios, cell phones, etc.), daity electronics, or GPS (including GPS,
differential GPS and RTK) surveying or navigation interference? Please specify to
what extent and how the Applicant handied such interference.

RESPONSE: The Qwners operate approximately 5,700 milcs of transmission
lines and are not aware of any complaints in regards to interference with t¢ TV,
communication, dairy electronic, or GPS systems, The Owners have had
oceasions where AM radio reception is impscted, but after passing under the
line veception is immediately restored. The general public will notice this
momentary interference in their vohicle radio in some instances when traveling
under or near transiission facilities,

13
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Referring to page 115 of the Aberdeen Public Hearing transeript, did the Applicant
follow up with Ms, Seurer regarding her question about dairy electronics? How was
this resolved?

RESPONSE: The Project communicated with Ms. Scurer at the Aberdeen
Public Hearing, The Project also is continwing to work to schedule # mecting
with Ms. Seurer to review and better understand her technology. In owning and
maintaining over 5,700 miles of transmission lines, the Owners have not
expericnced any negative affects of the transmission line on diary clectronics,

Will the proposed facility increase the potential for liability of the affected
landowners? Why or why not?

RESPONSE: The proposed facility will not increase the potential for liability
for the affected landowners, The Owners maintain property, casualty, and
linbility insurance coverage customary for the utility industry, Operational risk
management procedures are in place to help protect life and property
throughout construction and operation of the proposed transmission line,

IHow will the Applicant mitigate lost agriculture production associated with the
project’s operation, specifically as a result of farming around poles placed within
fields?

2-23)

RESPONSE; The anticipated lost agricultural preduction associated with
farming around polcs is being included as part of the easement payment
provided by the Project,

Please provide a doscription of how the Applicant intends to monitor and mitigate
construction impacts on roadways.

RESPONSE: As stated in answer to intervogatory nmnber 8 to Gerald Pesall’s
Second Set of Discovery Requests to Applicant: “As part of the construction of
the Project and the use of best management practices during the construction, it
is expected that road damage, it any, will be minimal, Nevertholess, a person or
party (le, engincer, project manager, construction manager, construction
contractor) will be assigned responsibility to monitov any roud damage. At this
time, the identity of the person or party responsible for monitoring any road
damage has not boen determined, The Project will work with the ontity that has
puthority over the road in making a damage assessment. The Project plans to
repair voad damage either through either the use of a confractor or by
compensating the government cntity to vestore the road. In addition, the bond

14
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requirced by the Commission in connection with the issuance of the permit will be
available to provide sceurity of payment for any road damage.”

Please provide an explanation of how pole placement is discussed with alfected
Jandowners, including who contacts the landowner, when the contact is made
(specifically in relation to the timing of the landowner signing an gasement), and how
the landowner’s feedback is taken into account in the final placement.

0 T

RESPONSE: The discussion of pole placement varies from landowner to

Jandowner, Initially, when land agents for the Project first started contacting

landowners, the preliminary pole locations hiad not been determined, Asa

resalt, the Project did not discuss the placoment of pole locations with the

landowners. The land agents instead showed a map indicating the proposed

route, withount any indication of pole placement. The land agents communicated

to landowners that they could reasenably expect approximately 3 pole stractures _
per mile, Some landovnevs signed options based on these initial
corhmunications, and thus, the Project may not have discussed pole placement

with the landowners.

Later, when the Projeet determined the preliminary placement of the pole
siructures, land agents werc providoed a map detailing the proposed route and

the prellminary structure Jocation, The scale on the map prevents determining
the exact pole location on a parcel of property, During face to face meetings
with landowners, land agents would show them the preliminary pole placements
if requested. Land agents also provided copies of maps showing preliminary
pole placemenis to requesting landowners, The final pole locations are not
reflected on these preliminary maps, Additional landowners have signed the
options after secing the preliminary pole locations,

If requested by a landowner, the Project also has offered and will provide
staking of preliminary pole locations on landowner property once the Project is
able to survey the property.

The final pole structure location will not been determined, however, until the D
final design stage. If the landowner has expressed concerns about the pole -
piacement during the option discussions, their input would be considered in the
final location, The timing of the final design stage vis-h-vis signing of easements
has not been determined but the Project has and will continue to discuss pole
placement with landowners,

T
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2-25)

If landowners prefer to have poles placed along a fence line rather than out in a field,
how does the Applicant accommodate such a request? Has the company macle any
route changes as a result of such requests to date?

RESPONSE: Each proposed route change is analyzed to see what, if any,
impacts could result from the landoewner’s request, A design goal is te run the
centerline as straight as possible between the dead-end structurcs, which are
approximately five (5) miles apart, Therefore every route change request goes
¢through a standard review process, This review process involves a committee
consisting of a company vepresentative from each Owner, design engincer,
environmental, rightsof-way, and legal teams. This committee considers the
following review criterin when evaluating route changes:

o Safety, proximity to state, county township roadways

» Zoning resirictions

o Effect of other existing easements or encumbrances, if any

¢ Othor option agreements that have been obtained with the adjoining
landowners :

o  Whether the affected landowners within 1-2 miles along the route on
cither side of the property agree with the proposed route change

2-26)

* Wheth.cr_thom-al:u..any_em\rimonmcnta-Limpacts--aausetl--by-tho—proposed
route change ’

»  Whether any cultural resource impaets are caused by the proposed route
change

¢  Whether the line be constructed and maintained at the requested location

+ Economie considorations

1f it appears there sre no identifiable impacts with the request after this review
is completed, the right-of-way land agents will visit the neighboring landowners
to obtain their opinion of o route change on their property as well. If practical
to honor the request to move the route change, the Project will attempt to do so.
If the impacts arc too great, or if the route change is not mutually agreed upon
by adjacent landowners, the requested relocation might not be possible, The
Projoct has made some route and pole changes to honor requests placing the
structurcs near fonce lines rather than in the fietd. Scc also the response to Data

Reguest 2-7.

At the public hearing in Aberdeen, the Applicant was asked to consider easement
terms that were not perpetual, similar to the 99-year term in North Dakota. las the
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2-2T)

Applicant made any changes to the easement telm Jengths it is offering to landowners
along the route?

RESPONSE: No, becanse the Project expeets that the useful life of the
transmission line may exceed 99 years,

On page 60 of the Aberdeen Public Hearing transeript, Mr. Ford stated “if maybe this
parcel of land is becoming unfarmable because of these reasons, we need 1o look al
something different” in response fo Ron Ringgenberg’s concern of not being able to
utilize aerial spraying as a result of the facility. Since the heating, has the Applicant
worked with Mr, Ringgenberg or other similarly situated landowners to solve these
types of problems? If so, ploase explain how the Applicant plans to mitigate the
impact of these problems.

RESPONSE: There have been personal conversations with all landowners who
arc willing to meet and discuss their specific concerns,

The installation of a transmission line does not prevent acrial applications. A
transmission lino has a similar, but porhaps lesser impact to aerial applications
as a tree row if installed in the dircetion of the farming application. Tho
applieators are able to fy parallel to the transmission linc and Yet the chemical
spray drift under the line to effectively treat their erops.

il
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2-29)

At this fme, the Project has not identificd any locations, including but not
limited to Mr. Ringgenberg’s property, where the transmission fine wifl prevent
aerial spray applications,

Please provide an update on progress the applicant has made on easement acquisition,

RESPONSE: Currently the Project is only obtaining options rather than
casemeonts, Landowncrs whe have signed options have commiticd themselves to
signing of casements, Approximately 55% of line miles worth of pareels have
signed options through April 10, 2014.

For easements (or easement options) nol yet acquired, please provide an explanation
as to why the landowners have not yet signed and, further, if any landowners are

vefusing to work with the Applicant.

RESPONSE: As indieated In response to Staff’s Drta Request 2-28,
approximately 55% of the line miles have been signed as of April 10, 2014,

17



There are several reasons for landowners not signing the pasement option, Some
landowners ave waiting to sec if the Facility Permit from the State is issued,
Other landowners are waiting on a person or event unrelated to the Project,
such as, but not limited to whether other landewners are going to sign options
and review of the easement options by the landowner’s attorney, family member
or renter. Other landowners are waiting on changes to the option and easement
documents to reflect their individualized concerns, Other landowners are
waiting for evaluation of a proposed route change,

Regarding thie small percentage of landowners who have stated opposition to the
Project, there are s multitude of reasons they have not signed the options. While
some landowners have cxpressed general objection to the project, others have
expressed more specific objections, Some of those objoctions were
communicated at the public input hearings occurring on Octoher 17, 2013, at
Aberdeon and Milbank, The more specific objections fall into several geneval
categories:

s Objections to the location of ¢he line

» Economic concerns, including but not limited to complaints that the amount
of the ensement payment is not sufficient, devaluation of property, and
request for annual payments, effect on whether the landowner will obtain

wind farms or subdivide their property _

e Concerns that the project will negatively affeet farming practices, such as but

not limited to effect on cfficiency of farming equipment, affect on GPS .
guidance, loss of yiold, impacts on aerinl spraying, effect on center pivot
units, and impact on livestock

e Concerns about the effect of the transmission line on human health

e Concerns asbout the impact of the transmission line on wildlife

e Tffects of the construction process on both their farm property and the roads

» Peer pressure fron: other Jandewners, neighbors, family, and landowners not
to sign the options

The Project has and will continue to work with landowners te address these
concerns, '
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2-31)

Did the Applicant consider following abandoned railroad right-of-way in determining
the route? If o, for what reasons did the Applivant choose not to utilize it?

RESPONSE; The Applicant did consider following abandened rallrond right-
of-ways as part of the routing process for the Project. Overall the preferred
route selectod reflects the best balance of the project routing criteria,
Preliminary routés along abandened railroad tracks were not carried forward
for the preferred route for a variety of reasons, inchuding the fact that railroads
tend to run through towns that the Project would have to be routed around,
Additionally, the terrain near abandoned railroads may have steep side slopes
away from the railroad bed that may not accommodate preferred construction
or maintenance methods. In other arens the abandoned vailroad right-of-way
have been complotely plowed under by the landowner in some parcels, and a
transmission Kine would therefore cut through the middle of a cultivated ficlds, A
comment from many landowners was to follow field lines and secetion lines fo

avoid diagonally traversing a cultivated ficld.

Did the Applicant consider following railroad rights-of-way that are currently in usc?
If so, for what reasons did the Applicant choose not to utilize them?

RESPONSE: The Applicant did consider following active railroad rights-of
way in the routing process for the Project. As stated in the response to Staff’s
Data Requost 2-30 and 2-32, long stretehes of routes along railroad tracks were
removed from consideration for a variety of reasons, inclading the fact that
raliroads tend to run through towns that the Project would have to be routed
around. T was also determined that construction of the transmission line would
not be feasible aleng the railvoad in the Waubay area duc to the increasing water
Jevels in the sarrounding lakes, Ficld surveys confirmed that certain route
segments along the railroad were also removed from consideration because of
the presence of homes, businesses, and water challenges, The Project also
considered the induction effects and the safety concerns presented by the Project
being located parallel te an cxisting railroad.

Additional enginecring challenges and safety concerns that were considered as
well, As stated above in the answer to Staff’s Data Request 2-30, the terrain near
railronds may have steep side slopes away from the railroad that may not
accommodate preferved construction or maintenance methods. In addition,
railvoad right-of-way widths vary along a railroad and it would be very difficult
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2:32)
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2.34)

to shave right-ot-way with a railroad. Thercfore the transmiasion line would
likely have many bends and inflections to follow the railvoad right-of-way,
and/or be further out inte a cropped field in aress where the right-of-way is
wider, And finpHy, trains that derail where # transmission Hine runs pawallel to i
could potentially cause a disruption in cloctrical serviee and a safety hazard if
derailed cars webe to collide with & nearby transmission line strweturo,

If induction of rails is a veason listed in the previous two guestions, what steps could
the Applicant take fo mitigate issues with induction and, further, what impact would

those steps have on project costs?

RESPONSY: The bost method for reducing the effects of Induced voltage in
parallel facilities such ns railronds is to voute the transmission line so thatitis a
safe distanes away from the railread or applicable pavallel facility. 1fa
transmission Hno remains close to the railroad then a study must be performed
1o svaluate induced voltago issues. Mitlgation techniques and costs ean vary
significantly depending on the resulis of the study and perticilars of the
situation, Options for mitigation includos instnllation of a grounding comductor,
replacement or upgrnde of railroad sigonling equipment, installation of AC
drain filters, and reconfiguring the size of the signal track blocks, Costs can be
into the millions of dollars deponding on the leve! of mitigation roquired,

——2-33;_-Per—t-he--suggestion-by-Mr:-Welk-onp'ages'l'f}?Tfﬂﬂ"‘l‘l’Oﬁf‘tﬁé‘?% bordeen Public

Heating franscript, was u lettor provided to Mr, Teickeit regarding disbursement of
praporty taxes? If so, please pravide the leitor. 1f not, please provide the information
requested,

RESPONSE; A lettor has been sent to Mr. Foickert, which iy attached at BSSK
323 to 328 and which contains the requosted information as to the disbursement

of property taxes,

Are corner structures going to have guy-wires? 1f 5o, what additional impacts would
guy-wites have on landowners and/or farming operations? Fuither, will the Applicant
construct a corner stiuctute withoul guy-wires should a landowner request such?

RESPONSE; Corner structares locatod on enltivated land will not have guy-
wires. Cowney structines located on non-cultivated land conld hive guy wires
depending upon the tervain and lovation of the structure. If n landowner with
corner structures on non-enltivated land veguosts a structure without guy-wires,
thon the Projoct may consider that roquest on a case-by-tnse basis,
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STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA )
88, =

COUNTY OF ‘ )

Henry Ford, being duly sworn is the anthorized agent of Montana-Dakota Utilities Co, —
for purposes of the response, —

He states that he does not have personal knowledge of all the facts recited in the
foregoing Responses of Montana-Dekota Utilities Co. and Otter Tail Power Company to Stafl’s —
Second Data Requests, but the information has been gathered by and from employees,
contractors of the owners of Big Stone South to Ellendale Project; and that the information in the
is verified by him as being true and correot on behalf of the owners of the Big Stons South to

Ellendale Project.
M‘ONWAKOTA U
By ALY . ¢l

fa L,
/I-fenr_)gr/:n'd
its Divector {(Blechic Transmission Engineering

Dated this 15 day of April, 2013,

. 6&\4
Subscribed and sworn to before me this {_“__ day of Apil, 2013,

) } . L -
Notary Public /i
(SEAL)
My Commission Expires: <
SHELLEY R. VETYE
Natary Public
State of North Dakota

q, My Commisalon Expires May 10, 2019 !
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$TATE OF MINNESOTA )
' :88.
COUNTY OF e 7o/ )

Tason Wejers, being duly sworm is the authorized agent of Otter Tail Power Company, for
purposes of the response.

He states that he does not have personal knowledge of all the facts recited in the .

foregoing Responses of Montana-Dakota Utilities Co. and Otter Tail Power Company to Staff’s
Second Data Requests, but the information has been gathered by and from employecs,
contractors of the owners of Big Stone South to Ellendale Projeet; and that the information in the
is verified by him as being true and correct on behalf of the owners of the Big Stone South to

Ellendale Project.
Dated this 15" day of April, 2013,
OTTER TAIL POWER COMPANY

B jﬂm a 54.2‘4442
’ Jason Wedtrs

..... ﬁ&izmym_f [an noing

b
Subscribed and sworn to before me this £5__ day of April, 2013,

e il
e YK LN N SEVERSON 1 Yy
P NOTARY PUBLIO-HINESOTE ‘ VAL m rz{wwm/ wgwéwa

oy oS JAN. 31,2016
Y W Conwission B1PF Notary Public
- (SEAL)

My Commisston Fxpires«Ja s . 31, 205
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

1, Thomas J. Welk, do hereby cextify that 1 am a momber of the law firm of Boycee,
Greenfield, Pashby & Welk, LLP, attoineys for Montana-Dakota Utilitles Co. and Otter Tail
Power Company and that on this 15" day of April, 2014, & tue and cotrect copy of Montana-
Dakota Utilities Co, and Otter Tail Power Company’s Responses to Staff’s Second Set of Data
Regquests to Applicants Dated March 10, 2014 was served via e-mail and first-class mail as well
ag a CD) containing BSSE 64 to 267 and BSSE 329 to 331, for which confidential treatment has
been requested, and a CI) containing BSSE 268 to 328 was transmitted via first-class mail (o the

following addresses listed:

Ms. Patricia Van Getpen Mes. Karen Cremor

Executive Director Staff Attosney
South Dakota Public Utilities Commission South Dakota Public Utilities Commission

500 E. Capitol Ave.
Pierre, 8D 5751
kamn,g;:gmer(a}slgmgm

500 E. Capitol Ave,
Piorre, SD 57501
attv.vangerpen(@state,sd.us

Mr, Brian Rounds Mr, Darren Kearney

Staff Anglyst Staff Analyst

South Dakota Public Utilities Commission South Dakota Public Utilities Cominission
500 E. Capitol Ave. 500 E. Capitol Ave,

Pierre, SD 57501 Pierre, SD 57501
brianrounds@state.sd.us Darren.kearney@state.sd.us

And @ true and correct copy of Montana-Dakota Utilities Co. and Otter Tail Power Company’s
Responses to Staff’s Second Set of Data Requests to Applicants Dated March 10, 2014 was
served via e-mail and first-class mail as well as a CD containing BSSIT 268 to 328 was
transmitted via first-class mail to the following addresses listed:

Ms. Jennifer Smestad

General Counsel

Otter Tail Power Company
215 S Cascade St.

Fergus Falls, MN 56538-0496

jsimestad(@ottertail.com

Ms. Maxine Fischer
Brown County Auditor
25 Market St., Ste 1
Aberdeen, SD 57401

magxine. fischer@browncoun!y.sd.gov

'Mr. Daniel S. Kuntz

Associate General Counsel
MDU Resources Group, Inc.
P.0O. Box 5650

1200 West Century Avenue
Bismarck, NID 58506-5650

dan kuntz@mduresources.com

Ms, Sandra Raap

Day County Auditor

711 W, First St,, Ste, 204
Webster, S 57274

deaud@itctel.com
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Ms, Karen Layher Mr, Bob Pesall - Representing: CGretald Pesall

Grant County Anditor Pesall Law Firm

210 E. Fifth Ave. PO Box 23

Milbank, SD 57252 Flandreau, SD 57028
karen.layher(@state.sd.us bob@pesall.com

.-r"""wl

Thbmés J. Weik /
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BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA

In the Matter of the Transmission Permit for the EL13-028

Big Stone South to Ellendale Project
MONTANA-DAKOTA UTILITIES CO,.

AND OTTER TAIL POWER
COMPANY’S ANSWERS TO GERALD
PESALL’S FIRST SET OF DISCOVERY
REQUESTS TO APPLICANTS DATED
JANUARY 28, 2014

Montana-Dakota Utilities Co. and Otter Tail Power Company (colleotively “the
Owners™), for its Responses to Gerald Pesall’s First Set of Discovery Requests to Applicants

datéd January 28, 2014, states as follows:

ANSWERS TO INTERROGATORIES

1. State the name, title, contact information and relationship to the applicants of each
individual, other than counsel, who asgists in preparing answers fo fhese discovery
requests.

ANSWER: The answers were prepared based on the knowledge of employees of
Otter Tail Power Company, Montana-Dakota Utilities Company, Power Engineers,
Ine., Kadrinas, Lee & Jackson and HDR Engineering, Inc. as # whole, The primary
persons are as follows, who do not have personal knowledge of all the answers,

Terry Fasteen,

Kadrmas1 Lee & Jackson, ROW Services
3203 32" Ave, South, Suite 201

Fargo, N.D. 58106

Phone: 701-232-5353

terry.fasteen@klieng.com

EXHIBIT

|
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Henry Ford, Dircctor
Divector Electric Transmission Engineering
Montana-Dakota Utilities Co.
400°N, 4th Street
Bismarek, ND, 58501-4092
Phone; 701-222-7944
. henry ford@mdu.com

Mark Shaw, Project Manager
Power Engineers, Inc,

14220 Ladue Road
Chesterfield, MO 63017
Phone: 405-330-3089

mark.shaw@powereng.com

Dean Pawlowski, Transmission Project Manager
Principal Engineer

Otter Tail Power Company

P.O. Box 496

Fergus Falls, MN 56538-0496

Phone: 218-739-8947

dpawlowski@otpco.com

Angela Piner, Project Manager Environimental Scientist
Associate Vice President

HDR Engirneering, Inc,

701 Xenia Avenue South — Suite 600

Minneapolis, MN 55416

Phone; 763-591-5478

angela.piner@hdrine.com

Jason Weiers, Manager — Delivery Planning

Otter Tail Power Company

P.O, Box 496

Fergus Fally, MN 56538-0496 . )
Phone; 218-739-8311

jweiers@otpco.com

2. Describe the impact, if any, applicants contend the installation of the proposed
transmission line will have to property values for real property lying under or within %2
mile of the proposed route, and any facts, studies, or expert opinions upon which that
contention is based, Include in your answer both urban and rural property values.

ANSWER: Section 19,1.2 of the South Dakota Facility Permit Application (“the

Application”) states, among other things, that "The South Dakota Facility is not
expected to have significant short- or long-term effects on . . . land values . ., .”
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Qwners believe that the South Dakota Facility will not have significant short- or
long-term cffects on land values due to the relatively minimal footprint¢ of the
Project, The Project anticipates constructing approximately 5 or 6 monopoles per
mile with a span of 700-1,200 feet between poles. The permanent impact is less than
5 acres of the nearly 1,600 acres temporarily and permanently affected by the

Project.

3, Describe the impact, if any, applicants contend the installation of the proposed
transmission line will have on common species of livestock, including cattle,
horses, swine, and poultry which are, or may be, kept under or within Y% mile of
the proposed route, and any facts, studics, or expert opinions upon which that
contention is based.

ANSWER:  As stated in sections 19,2,2 and 23.4.5 of the Application, no impacts
are anticipated to livestock operations due fo the Project for the reasons stated in
these sections of the Application.

4 Desctibe the level of soil compaction, if any, applicants contend will result from
construction and maintenance of the transmission line, the impact that compaction
may have on the productivity of the property, the time, effort, and cost which
would be required to restore the soil to its original condition, and the facts,
studies, or expert opinions upon which that contention is based.

ANSWER: Soil compaction likely will only occur during construction of the
Project, As stated in section 10.3 of the Application, any temporary compaction
impact caused by the construction process will be decompacted and restored to
preconstraction contours to the extent practicable. No long term impacts from soil
compaction are expected because of the decnmpaction and remediation process
described in section 10,3 of the Application,

5. State whether applicants have prepared any estimates, and if so, provide those
estimates together with the facts, studies, or expert opinions upon which they are
based, as to the total dollar value for:

a. Annual lost productivity due to proposed transmission line's impact on
livestock along the entire lengthy of the proposed line,

b. Annual lost productivity due to soil compaction and interference with
farming operations caused from construction and ongoing maintenance
along the entire lengthy of the proposed line.

G Total reduction in real property values along the entire length of the
proposed line, both for property lying under the proposed route and for
adjacent property within Y2 mile.
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ANSWER: As discussed in sections 14.1.2 and 19,2 of the Application, and as
indicated in answers fo interrogatories numbers 2, 3, and 4 above, the permanent
impact is expected to be minimal. The Owners have not prepared annuel estimates
of lost productivity, and no such annual estimates are required to be prepared.

6, State the impact on road maintenance requirements and costs, if any, which the
applicants contend will be incurred by state and local governments as a result of
increased road use during initial construction and as a result -of ongoing
maintenance, and the facts, studies, or expett opinions upon which that contention
is based.

ANSWER: As indicated in Scction 19.3 of the Application, there will be ne
impacts on road maintenance requiremernts and costs, While the roads in the
vicinity of the Project will see incréased usage during the construction phase of the
Project, the Owners do not anticipate any permanent impacts to the area road
maintenance. Any damage fo area roads will be monitored and repaired during
~construction and following completion of construction of the Project,

7. State the number of actual residential or commercial customers in South Dakota
which applicants contend will benefit from the construction of the proposed line,
the facts, studies, or expert opinions upon which that contention is based, and
describe in detail;

a. The current and projected increase in service reliability those residential
and commercial customers will experience, if any,

b. The curtent and projected average cost for electrical services those
residential and commeroial customers will experience, if any.

G, Any other measurable benefits that those residential and commercial
customers may be able to observe,

ANSWER: The Project involves a high voltage transmission line, developed
collaboratively as a MISO Multi-Value Project (MVP) to increase transmission
capacity to provide the entire MISO foofprint (“Midwest Region™) the
infrastructure needed to support the renewable energy mandates for all the states in
the Midwest Region,

The Owners are not able to identity the number of actual residential or commercial
customers in South Daketa that will benefit from the construction of the Project
because ¢(ransmission system modeling involved in identifying high voltage
transmission facilities is not done to the individual customer level, Rather, benefits
from the construction of a transmission project are identified on the basis of
geographic areas. Since ¢the need for the Project is driven by demand across the
Midwest Region, benefits are quantified regionally rather than on a state-by-state
basis.




The numerous benefits offered by this Pro;ect and the rest of the Multi-Value
Projects ("MVPs") are described more fully in the report issued by MYSO called
“Mulii-Value Project Portfolio — Results and Analyses” included as Appendix B.1 to
the Application (specifically, see Section 8 of this report for the quantifiable benefity
of the MVPs to the Midwest Region).

b,
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Maintaining reliable service to customers is always a high priority of the
Owners, As stated in Section 6.1 of the Application (Page 19), the comnstruction
of this Project will benefit the Owners’ customers by enhancing connections
across the transmission system to be better able to withstand system failures,
Additionally, the Project will remove overloads on local transmission facilities as
more generation facilities ave constructed in the region. Furthermore, due to the
interconnected nature of the transmission system, the Project will also support
the transmission system outside of MISO by providing a new high voltage source
to the existing transmission system,

As stated in sections 4.0 and 6,0 of the Application, the Big Stone South te
Ellendale project is onc of seventeen MVPs approved by MISO, The pitrpose of
these MVPs is to reduce the wholesale cost of cnergy delivery for the consumers
across the Mitwest Region by enabling the delivery of low-cost generation to
load, reduce congestion costs, and increase system reliability. Because the
benefits of the MVPs are spread throughout MISO, the costs of these MVPs are
shared among all customers who are served by ufilities that are members of
MISO. Therefore, all customers in the state of South Daketa who are served by
utilities within MISO will receive quantifiable benefits and a portion of the costs
associated with the MVPs, OQOutside of OTP and MDU, the Owners are not
familiar with the portion of MVP costs other South Dakota customers will
receive from these other MISO member utilitics and therefore are not able to
quantify the current and projected average cost for electrical services for all
customers in South Dakota vesulting from the Project or the rest of the MVPs,

In addition to the beneﬁts discussed above and found within the MISO report of

Appendix B.1 of the Application, other benefits of the Project are discussed in
sections 4.0 and 19.1.2 of the Application, These included both short-term and
long-terin benefits, The presence of this Project in South Dakota will allow for
flexibility in serving customer growth and new generation resources in the State
by having access to a robust transmission line bolstering the existing
transmission system, Interconnections to this line will be open to any interested
party on a nen-discriminatory basis in accordance with rules established by the
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) and administered by MISO on
behalf of the Owners, Local commerctal residents are expected to reap the
benefits of local economic development as a result of the Project, namely from
lodging, meals, and other consumer goods and services of the approximately 75-
150 workers involved in activities leading up to and directly involved with the
construction of the Project. The impact to the local economies, not including
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property taxes, from the Project is estimated to range from 33 million to $7
million through the construetion period of the Project.

Long-term benefits to residential and commercial customers also will include a 1
varlety of taxes (property taxes, contractor tax, excise tax, sales tax, and use tax) —
which will increase the tax base for counties in which this facility is located. —
Based on the current effective composite tax rates for South Dakota, the Owners
estimate a yearly property tax payment in the range of $1.75 to $2.25 million.
This equals an approximate tax per mile of iransmission line in the range of
$11,200 to $14,500 in South Dakota based on approximately 135 miles of line,
On a county by county basis, this calculates to property taxes of approximately
$715,000 to $5885,000 for Brown County, $535,000 fo $755,000 for Day County,
and $490,000 to $605,000 for Grant Connty.

Furthermore, the Owners’ preliminary projections of sales/use taxes and
confractor excise taxes paid during the project range from 3$5.5 million to $9
million, ‘ '

8. State the number of actual residential or commercial customers in Minnesota
which applicants contend will benefit from the construction of the proposed line,
the facts, studies, or expert opinions upon which that contention is based, and
describe in detail:

a. The curent and projected increase in service reliability those residential
and commercial customers will experience, if any.

b. The current and projected average cost for electrical services those
residential and corhmercial customers will experience, if any,

c. Any other measurable benefits that those residential and commercial ;
‘ customers may be able to observe, P

ANSWER: The Project involves a high veltage transmission line, developed
collaboratively as a MISQO Multi-Value Project (MVP) to increase tramsmission
capacity to provide the entire Midwest Region the infrastructare needed to support
the renewable energy mandates for all the states in the Midwest Region,

The Owners are not able to identify the number of actual residential or commercial

customers in Minnesota that will benefit from the construction of the Project

because transmission system modeling involved in identifying high voltage

transmission facilities is not done to the individual customer level, Rather, bencfits

from the construction of a transmission project are identified on the basis of
geographic areas, Since the need for the Project is driven by demand across the :
Midwest Region, benefits are quantified regionally rather than on a state-by-state L
basis, —




The numerous benefits offered by this Project and the rest of the MVPy are
described more fully in the report issued by MISO called “Multi-Value Project
Portiolic ~ Resulés and Analyses” included as Appendix B.1 to the Application
(specifically, sce Scetion 8 of this report for the quantifiable benefits of the MVPs to

the Midwoest Region).
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c.

Mairitaining reliable service to customers i3 always a priority of the Owners. As
stated in Section 6,1 of the Application (Page 19), the construction of this Project
will benefit the Owners’ customers by enhancing connections across the
transmission system to be better able to withstand system failures, Additionally,
the Project will remove overloads on local transmission facilitics as more
generation facilities are constructed in the region, Furthermore, due to the
interconnected nature of the transmission system, the Project will also support
the transmission system outside of MISO by providing a new high voltage source
to the existing transmission system.

As stated in sections 4.0 and 6.0 of the Application, the Big Stone South to
Ellendale project is one of seventeen MVPs approved by MISQ, The purpose of
these MVPs is to reduce the wholesale cost of energy dolivery for the consumers
across the Midwest Region by enabling the delivery of low-cost generation to
load, reduce congestion costs, and increase system reliability, Becawse the
benefits of the MVPs are spread throughout MISO, the costs of these MVPs are

shared among all customers who are served by utilities that are members of

MISO. Therefore, all customers in the state of Minnesota who are served by
utilitics within MISO will receive quantifiable benefits and a portion of the costs
associated with the MVPs. Outside of OTP, the Owners are not familiar with
the portion of MVP costs other Minnesota customers will receive from these
other MISO member wtilitics and therefore are not able to quantify the carrent
and projected average cost for electrical services for customers in Minnesota
resulting from the Project or the rest of the MVPs,

In addition to the benefits discussed above and found within the MISQ report of
Appendix B.1 of the Application, other benefits of the Project are discussed in
sections 4.0 and 19.1,2 of the Application. These included both short-term and
long-term benefits. Although these benefits will not be as great as the states in
which construction will occur, it is feagible that Minnesota may reap the bencfits
of some local economic development as a result of the Project, namely from
lodging, menls, and other eonsumer goods and sexvices of some workers involved
in activities leading up to and directly involved with the construction of the
Project, Furthermore, the Project will improve the ability to serve present and
future economic development in the area. Electricity is one of the foundations of
the economic development in the country,

9. State the number of actual residential or commercial customers in North Dakota
which applicants contend will benefit from the construction of the proposed line,
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the facts, studies, or expert opinions upon which that contention is baged, and
describe in detail:.

& The current and projected increase in service reliability those residential
and commetcial customers will experience, if any,

b. The current and projecied average cost for electrical services those
residential and commercial customers will experience, if any,

ANSWER: The Projoct involves a high voltage transmission line, developed
collaboratively as a MISQ Multi-Value Project (MVP) to increase transmission
capacily to provide the cntive Midwost Region the infrastructure needed to support
the renewable energy mandates for all the states in the Midwest Region,

The Owners are not able to identify the nuniber of actual residential or commercial ,

customers in North Dakota thut will benefit from the eonstruction of the Project
because transmission system modeling involved in identifying high voltage
transmission facilities is not done to the individial customer level. Rather, benefits
from the comstruction of a transmission project arc identified on the basis of
geographic areas. Since the need for the Project is driven by demand across the
Midwest Region, benefits are quantified regionally rather than on a state-by-state
basis.

The numerous benefits offered by this Project and the rest of the MVPs are
described more fully in the report issued by MISO called “Multi-Value Project
Portfolio — Results and Analyses” included as Appendix B.I to the Application
(specifically, see Section 8 of this report for ¢the quantifiable benefits of the MVPs fo
the MISO region).

a. Maintaining reliable service to eustomers is always a priovity of the Owners. As
stated in Section 6.1 of the Application (Page 19), the consiruction of ¢his Project
will benefit the Owners' customers by enhancing connections across the
transmission system to be better able to withstand system failures, Additionally,
the Project will remove overloads on local transmission facilities as more
generation facilities are comstructed in the vegion. Furthermore, due fo the
interconnected nature of the transmission system, the Project will also support
the transmission system outside of MISO by providing a new high voltage source
to the existing transmission gystem,

b. As stated in sections 4.0 and 6.0 of the Application, the Big Stone South to
Ellendale project is one of seventeen MVPs approved by the MISO. The
purpose of these MVPs is to reduce the wholesale cost of energy delivery for the
consumers across the Midwest Region by enabling the delivery of Jow-cost
generation fo load, reduce congestion costs, and increase system reliability,
Because the benefits of the MVPs are spread throughout MISO, the costs of
these MVPs are shared among all customers who are served by utilitics that are
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members of MISO, Therefore, all customers in the state of North Dakota who
are served by utilities within MISO will receive quantifiable benefits and a
portion of the costs associated with the MVPs, Outside of OTFP and MDY, the
Owners arc not familiar with the portion of MVP costs other North Dakota
customers will receive from these other MISO member utilities and therefore
are not able to quantify the current and projected average cost for electrical
services for customers in North Dakota resulting from the Project or the rest of
the MVPs,

¢, In addition to the benefits discussed above and found within the MISO report of
Appendix B.1 of the Application, other benefits of the Praject are discussed in
sectlons 4,0 and 19.1.2 of the Application, These included both shorg-term and
long-term benefits. The presence of this Project in North Dakota will allow for
flexibility in serving customer growth and new generation resources in the State
by having access to-a robust transmission line bolstering the existing
transmission system, Interconnections to this line will be open to any interested
parties on a non-discriminatory basis in accordance with rules established by the

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) and administered by MISO on.

behalf of the Owners. Local commercial residents are expected to reap the
benefits of local economic development as a result of the Project, namely from
lodging, meals, and other consumer goods and seivices of the workers involved
in activities leading up to and direetly involved with the construction of the

Project,

Long-term benefits to residential and commercial customers also will include a

variety of taxes which will increase the tax base for Dickey County,
Furthermore, the Project will improve the ability to serve present and future
économic development in the area, Electricity is one of the foundations of the
economic development in the country,

10, Describe in detail nature of the Ellendale substation, to which the proposed
transmission line is projected to connect, end any other transmission lines,
generating facilities, or other facilities which will be directly connected to that

~ substation,

ANSWER: The Ellendale 345-kV Substation will be constructed and owned by
Montana-Dakota. It will be located about 1.5 miles west of Ellendale, North Dakota,
along the west side of 87th Avenue SE in Section 9, Ellendale Township (Township
129N, Range 63W), Dickey County, and sacross the street from the existing
Montana-Dakota Ellendale 230-kV Substation, which is located in Section 10 of
Ellendale Township, The footprint of the substation will be approximately 11.3
reres, Construction of the new Ellendale 345-KV Substation will involve the
installation of ¢two 345-KkV circuit breakers, one 345-kV line termination structure,
five 345-kV disconnect switches, one 345-kV/230-kV 300/400/500 Megn Volt Ampere
(MVA) Auto-Transformer, a 345-kV Shunt Lino Reactor, cight 230-kV circuit
breakers, twenty-one 230-kV disconnect switches, four 230-kV line termination
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structuies, associated arresters, Capacitive Voltage Transformers (CVTs), bus
work, and protective relaying and controls required to support the circuit breakers,
The existing Merricourt, Tatankn, and Hankinson 230-kV lines will be relocated to

terminate in this substation, as well as an Ellendale 230-kV tie line back to the

original Ellendale 230-kV Substation.

11, Describe in detail nature of the Big Stone substation, to which the proposed
ransmission line is projected to comnect, and any other transmission lines,
generating facilities, or other facilities which will be diteetly connected to that

substation.

ANSWER: The Big Stone South substation will be a 345/230kV substation that
will be constructed to allow two new 230kV lives and two new 345kV lines, The
230KV lines will extend between the existing Big Stone Power plant and this new
substation. One 345kV line will connect this facility to the new Ellendale 345kV
substation and the second 345kV line will conneet this facility to the Brookings
County 345kV substation,

This new substation will be located in the NE1/4 of the NW1/4 of section 24,
Township 121N, Range 47W. The new substation includes four 230KV breakers
for the incoming 230KV lines from the existing Big Stone Power plant 230kV
substation. Two 345/230/13.8 kV, 448MVA ¢ransformers, with 25 Mvar reactors,
will step-up the voltage to 345kV for two new 345KV lines. The 345kV bus will
have four 345kV breakers to provide proteciton for these transformers and the
new 345KV lines. A new control house and a fenced area of approximately 600 x
600 feet and will be located on 39 acres.

12, Deseribe in detail the impact, if any, applicants contend that the proposed
transmission line would have on the usability and productivity of agricultural
equipment which is guided by global positioning systems (GPS), or by ground
base transmitter systems, when used under or within % mile of the transmission
line. Identify any facts, studies, or expert opinions upon which that contention is

based.

ANSWER: Section 14.4 of the Application addresses any impact of the Project
on the use of global positioning systems (GPS). There are two possible impacts
to GPS systems: (1) a line-of-sight obstruction; and (2) electric field corena from
high voltage power lines. The Project will have no effect on the nsability and
productivity of GPS or ground bused transmitter systems,

Regarding “line of sight” obstructions, the Project’s impact fo GPS systems is
similar to the impact from trees, buildings or other line-of-sight obstructions,
Any limited line of sight impact on the GPS system caused by the Project’s
structures is expected to be temporary and will be eliminated once the
equipment or GPS receiver moves such that the structure no longer impedes the
line of sight between the roceiver and the GPS satellites at lssue,
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Some GPS systems also make wse of real-time kinematic (RTK) systems to
improve the accuracy of the GPS system by making use of the wltra-high
frequency radlo communication range, RTK systems are ground based GPS
systems, RTK signals are transmitted from antennas that ave typically only a
few moters high, and thus, transmission line towers are not expected to produce
much blocking of the line of sight signals from these sources either,
Repositioning of the RTK base station antenna should resolve any line of sight
interference issues if they cceur,

Regarding electric field corona from the Project, there is no expected impact.
Electiic field corons from high voltage transmission lines can produce radio
frequency cmissions, but they are primarily below the frequencies used for
satellite and pround based GPS systems. Therefore, the radic frequency
broadcast produced by high voltage power lines is very unlikely to interfere with
or overcome GPS signals,

The Application references an IEEE study by Silva & Olsen, 2002, that studied
the impact of overhead conductors on GPS signals, The study found that the
overhead conductors did net block or affect the use of GPS satellite signals.

13. Describe in detail the impact, if any, applicams contend the proposed fransmission
line will have on wild game species common to the area where the line is to be
constructed, including but not limited to its impact on whitetail deer, walleye
pike, northern pike, ring-neck pheasant and Canadian geese.

ANSWER: Section 11,0 of the Application describes the anticipated effects to
water resources, including fishery resources. Because the Project will span all
streams and lakes, no impacts to fish species or fishing uses will occur,

Section 12.0 of the Application also describes the anticipated impacts o
terrestrial wildlife species, including game species. Once constructed, the
transmission line could result in impacts to avian game species through
collisions. The Project will work with proper wildiife authorities, both State and
Federal, fo identify areas where bird diverters may need to be installed to
minimize potential collisions. In addition, the transmission line will be designed
considering the Avian Power Line Interaction Committee’s Suggested Practices
for Avian Protection On Power Lines: State of the Art in 2006 to minimize the
potential for electrocution,

The Project is not anticipated to affect the population of any game species in the
region it crosses.

14, Describe in detail the methodology used to select the proposed route, the specific
factors by the applicants in selecting the proposed route, including but not limited
to total cost, engineering constraints, and legal concerns,

11

T

i




ANSWER: Section 8.1 of the Application lays out the detailed methodelogy used to
select the proposed rouie. As listed on page 26 of the Application, the line route in
South Dakota was selected based on several factors, in¢luding:

¢ Minimizing total length and construction costs

e Minimizing impacts to humans and human settlements, inclading (but not
limited to) displacemont, noise, aesthetics, cultural values, recreation, and public
services

e Consideration of offécts on public health and safety

Offsetting existing ROW (roadway or other utility ROW) or section lines to

minimize impacts to land-based economies, inclading (but not lisnited to)

agricultural fields and mining facilitics

Minimizing effects on archaeological, cultural properties, and historic resources

Minimizing impacts to wetlands, surface waters, and rivers

Minimizing impacts to rare or ondangered species and unigue natural resources

Minimizing effects to airports or other land vse conflicts

Constructing the transmission lines near existing roadway ROW or close to the

half section lihes to minimize impacts to agricultoral fields

¢ Placing structures to minimize impaets to agricultaral production/allow for the
movement of farm equipment

* Avoiding a diagonal route across agricultural fields wherever possible
Preference for mono-pole structures rather than H-frame structures

As described above, enginecring constraints and costs were two of many criteria
considered, Legal concerns. considered in the routing process included confirming
potential routes could be construeted consistent with applicable federal, state, and
local laws and regulations. The proposed route was selected based wpon the
cvaluation of the foregoing routing criteria,

The Owners continue to evaluate possible changes to the proposed route based upon
discussions with landowners. The changes to the route may occur both before the
hearing on the Application, and after the hearing. If a material change in the
proposcd route is adopted by the Owners before the hearing, the Owners will
identify that change to the proposed rouse as part of the prefiled testimony
consistent with the deadlines imposed by the Commission or at the hearing, For
material route changes after the hearing, the Owners will update the Commission
through the appropriate processes,

- 15, Describe each alternative proposed route considered by the applicants prior to
selecting the currently proposed route,

ANSWER: The attached map numbered BSSE 9 shows the preliminary routes
~ that were considered by the Owners prior fo selecting the preferrcd route.
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Between the Ellendale Substation and the general vicinity of the town of Bristol,
there were two main route alternatives considered; one that follows the ultimately
selected route south into South Dakota, and one that heads east from the Ellendale
area for approximately 35 to 40 miles before turning south into South Dakota, This
second main, route alternative had several smaller altermative sogmenits. One
location with alternative segments occurs approximately ten miles east of Ellendale,
where the alternatives are located 0.5 to 1 mile apart, Another set of alternative
segments is located at the North Dakota/South Dakoeta border crossing area, where
the alternatives parallel each other at a distance of approximately 2 to 5 miles apart,
for a length of approximately twenty miles,

Between the Bristol arca and the Big Stone South Substation, there were several
other areas with minor route alternatives, These respective areas usually consist of
parallel route alternatives, gencrally 0.5 to two miles apart,

16. For each alternative route so-identified, describe in detail how the factors set out
in your answer to request #14 were considered, and the reason(s) why that
alternative route was ultimately rejected.

ANSWER: Section 82 of the Application describes the methodology used in
selecting the proposed route and rejecting the alternative routes,

The routes through western Marshall and the northwestern portion of Day counties
was not selected because the preferred route is shorter in length, and expected to
have better soils for construction activities and structure foundations, The Owners
received soveral comments regarding very wet soils in the western portion of
Marshall County. Additionally, from a constructability perspective, the northern
portion of Day County confains many large surface waters and wetlands that would

be challenging to span and may require more structures to be placed within surface

waters or wetlands.

The alternative routes through Dickey and Sargent counties would require a
crossing of the U.S, Fish and Wildlife Services’ (USFWS) Dakota Lake National
Wildlife Refuge and U.S, Burean of Reclamation Onakes Research Area in North
Daketa, In addition, one of the alternative routes would be located close to or
potentially cross the Hecla Sand Prairie aren in northwestern Marshall County,
which is an area of conservation interest to the USFWS and they hold many
grassland casements on the lands, The South Dakota Game, Fish, and Parks
Department had also had concerns with the alfernative routes in wesiern Marshall
County being located close to water bird colonies. Lastly, the alternative routes
would cross more prairie or grassiand areas through western Marshall County and
Sargent and Dickey counties in North Dakota compared to the preferred route.

13

App 72




Additionally, the proposed route differs from the preliminary route for
approximately six miles in T120N R56W (Highland Township) and T120N RS7W
(York Township) in Day County. The preliminary route was rejected in this aren
because of enginecring mid consfructability constraints associnted with erossing the
Horseshoe Lake area,

17, Identify any state or federal renewable eneigy standards which applications
contend the proposed line will enable them to meet,

ANSWER: The proposed line is one of the MVPs which, in total, will enable the
most economic development and consiruction of rencwable energy projects in
the Midwest Region, This includes a combination of local and regional
gencration projects detailed in section 4.2 in the MYP report included as
Appendix B.1 of the Application, In order to spur renewable energy projects,
many states have adopted renewable enorgy standards, which are laws which
mandate that a certain amount of energy proditced or purchased by its regulated
electric utilities must be generated by qualifying renewable encrgy projects. The
transmission studles performed by MISO used in the identification of the Big
Stone South to Ellendale projoct, along with the balance of the MVPs, were
based on existing state rencwable cnergry standards in place during the course of
the stedy (primarily during 2011), The study results indicate that the MvVP
portfolio will cnable fransmission of 41 Million Megawatt hours (MWh) of wind
energy per year across the Midwest Region. As determined through the MVP
studies, this amount of wind energy Is anticipated to meet the state renewable
energy mandates across the Midwest Region beyond 2026,

Additional informatlon related to the state remewable energy standards
facilitated by the I'roject and the rest of the MVPs can be found in sections 4 and
7 of the MVP report, included as Appendix B.1 of the Application,

18, With respect to the energy to be transmitted on the proposed line, identify the
existing or anticipated generating facilities from which that energy will be
produced, and the amount of energy anticipated from each,

ANSWER: The Big Stone South to Ellendale 345 kV line will be an integral part
of the high voltage transmission system, As such, the line will be available to
carry energy from a variety of generating facilities, regardless of fucl typo. Due
to the interconnected nature of the regional transmission system, the generation
that will flow on this line will depend on a number of variables, Too many
variables- exist fo definitively identify the existing or anticipated gemerating
facilities that will have energy transmitted on the Big Stone South to Ellendale
345 KV line, These variables include {among several other factors) generation
patterns; load levels, and outages of existing generation or transmission,
Therefore, identifying the exact amount of energy from a specific generator
flowing across a particalar transmission line is not possible. However, if wind-
rich areas in eastern South Dakota are developed with future renewable
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generation, this future generation will have energy transmitted along this
Project given its geographic proximity to these wind-rich areas. BSSE 11
attached is 8 wind resource map with the route corridor of the Project shown on
the same map, As stated in Section 4 of the Application, the Project will increase
System capacity which in turn allow for additional opportenities for

dovelopment of generation, including renewable energy sources, in South -

Dakota,

19, Desoribe in detail the percentage of the total energy to be transmitted on the
proposed transmission line which will pass to or from the Big Stone South to
Brookings County, and/or Brookings County to South East Twin Ciiles lines once
all three projects enter service, and annually thereafter through the year 2024.,

ANSWER: Once these three separate Multh-Valne Projects (MVPs) are
constructed, the total energy transmitted nlong these three projects will be highly
correlated to one another, given their geographic location and electrical
connectivity, The Big Stone South to Ellendale 345 KV line will share a common
termination poing with the Big Stone South to Brookings County 345 kV line at the
Big Stone South substation, Likewise, the Big Stone South to Brookings County 345
k¥ line will share a common termination point with the Brookings County to South
East Twin Cities line at the Brookings County substation. Identifying expected or
even anticipated emergy transmitted on the Big Stone South to Ellendale line in
comparison to the other two projects will depend on a number of variables (as
described in interrogatory #18).

Based on knowledge of the transmission system in this region, the flow of energy in
this area will generally be from northwest to sontheast, flowing from Ellendale to
Big Stene South to Brookings County and then to the Southeast Twin Cities,
However, transmission facilities often oxperience bi-directional flows and therefore
could also flow from southeast to northwest depending on the conditions present on
the transmission grid,

20, De§cribe in detail the insurance policies or other liability protections, if any,
applicants will maintain for themselves against claims which relate to the towers,
wires, and other components of the proposed transmission line, and the means by
which that protection will be maintained through the useful life of the proposed

transmission line,

ANSWER: The Owners maintain preperty and casualty insurance coverage
customary for the utility industry, Operational risk management procedures are in
place to help protect life and property throughout construction and operation of the
proposed transmission line,

21. In the event that agricultural production activities near the proposed transmission

line damage or interfere with the operation of the line (including, for example, a
GPS guided tractor colliding with a monopole), describe in detail any liability
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protection which applicants will provide to agricultural producers in the event of
third party claims against those producers for intertuption of service or other

damages.,

ANSWER: The Owners maintain property and casualty insarance coverages
customary for the utilities industry, including general lability insurance, In fhe

event of a claim that falls within the scope of this coverage, the law of torts would -

apply.

22, Describe in detail the anticipated maintenance schedule for the towers, lines,
substations and other components of the proposed transmission line, and the
amount of time ¢ach are anticipated to remain in operation,

ANSWER: The Owners anticipate they will inspect the fowers, components, and
conductors at a minimum of twice a year associated with routine maintenance, A
patrol typically would be conducted in the spring and fall of each year to minimize
the environmental impact. These patrols/inspections typically take two to three
weeks per year and are for the most part confined to the facility right of way, If
problems are discovored during these inspections, and are not emergency in nature,
typically repairs can be scheduled in fall or winter, If for some reason repairs would

have to be scheduled when the crops are still in the field the Iandowner would be

corpensated for any damages associated with those repairs.

The right of way would be managed as part of the Owners vegetation management
program which consists of removal of trees and other vegetation that conld interfere
with the reliability of the facility, which uswally occurs on a four year cycle, This
typleally takes around three or four wecks per cycle and s scheduled o he
performed in the fall or winter,

The substations maintenance congists of inspections, vegotation nmanagement,
equipment testing, ete. and is typically confined to the fenced ares within the
substation with the exception of vegotation management which includes just outside
the fence and driveways, These items are completed throughout the year and
typieally take around eight weeks to complete,

The Owners expect the line to be in service for perpetuity, There are not currently
have any plans to romove any of our transmission system. However, as noted above,
the facilities will require ongoing maintenance in order to operate safcly and
reliably,

RESPONSES TQO DOCUMENT REQUESTS

L, Tower components, insulators, footings, foundations, guy-wires, and any other
attachments for the towers which will be used genetally to construct the proposed
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fransmission line and those which would be specifically used upon property
owned by Gerald Pesall.

RESPONSE: Scc BSSE 10 attached.

The exaot location where the lines and towers for the proposed transmission line
would be located in located Day County, South Dakota for the currently selected
route and any alternative routes being considered,

RESPONSE: Sec BSSE 12 to 63, These documents reflect the preliminary
cstimates of the location of the lines and towers. The exact location of the
lines and toweyrs in Day County has not yet been determined,

The Big Stohe Substation, including a description of any transmission lines other
than the proposed transmission line which will directly connect to it

OBJECTION: Owners object to production of these documenis, which are
critical energy infragtructure information which is subject fo restricted
access by applicable federal regulations, including 18 CFR 388,113,

The Brookings County substation, inctuding a description of any transmission
lines which will directly connect to it

OBJECTION: The Owners object to disclosing this information because the
Brookings County substation is not part of the Project, and the requested
documents exceed the scope of permissible distovery under SDCL 15-6-26(b)
and ARSD 20:10:01:01.02, The Owners further objeet to production of these
documents, which are critical energy infrastructure information which is
subject to restricted access by applicable fedoral regulations, including 18
CFR 388.113,

The Ellendale Substation, including a descripﬁon of any transmission lines other
than the proposed transmission line which will directly connect to it,

OBJECTION: Owners objeet to production of these documents, which are

critical cnergy infrastructuro information which is subject fo restricted
access by applicable federal regulations, including 18 CFR 388,113,
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STATBOFNORTHDAKOTA )
88,
COUNTY-OF (R4 r')t"}qh )

Jay Skabo, being.duly swoin is'the authiotlzed: agent. of Morntaia-Dakota. Utilities Co,, for
purposes.of the response,

He statgs that he -doos not have. personal knowledge of all the faets reclted in the

foregoing Resporises of Montana-Dakota Utilifles Co.-and Otter Tall Power Coiripany to, Gerald

- Posall’s- Discovery Rgquests, but the information hes besn gathered by and from employeos,

contractors of the owtiers.of Big. Ston South to Eliendale Project;. and that the information is

verified by him as being frue and correct on bishdlf of the ownes of the Big Stone South to
Ellendate. Project.

Dated this2 & day of February, 2014

MONTANARAKOTA UTJLITIES CO,

By

Jﬁy :
Its ___Vice President - Electic Sipply

Subseribed and sworn to-before me thlsg_-/kQ day of February, 2014,

e ;mgm
Notary Public - ¢

(SEAL)
My Commission Expires: q Al
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STATE OF MINNESOTA )
i . :88S,
COUNTY QF #7281/ )

Jason Weiers, being duly sworn is the authorized agent of Otter Tail Power Company, for
purposes of the response.

He states that he does not have personal knowledge of all the facts recited in the
foregoing Responses of Montana-Dakota Utilities Co. and Otter Tail Power Conipany to Gerald
Pesall’s Discovery Requests, but the information has been gathered by and from employees,
contractors of the owners of Big Stone South to Bllendale Project; and that the information is
verified by him as being true and correct on behalf of the owners of the Big Stone South to
Ellendale Project.

Dated this 26_day of Februaty, 2014,
OTTER TAIL POWER COMPANY

By _ Fosor . htbgurs’

” '
Jason Waeiers _
s Ma naj&f'; B&!{V&r}y }’Icmfuy

. & .
Subscribed and sworn to before me this i‘j‘day of February, 2014,

B VICK) LYNN SEVERSON A -
) NOTARY PUBLIC~MINNESOTA %&% ;?;,MJ cgawv«-)
% py Gomroisston Expires JAN. 81, 2016 Notary Public ~ South Dakota
. ' (SEAL)

My Commission Expites: . 87, ofaos™

19

AT A R B

pre



AS.TO OBJECTIONS:

Dated February 26, 2014

BOYCE, GREENFIELD, PASHBY & WELK, LLP
P.O, Box 5015

Sioux Falls, SD 57117-5015

(605) 336-2424

Jennifer O, Smestad

General Counsel :
Otter Tail Power Company
215 8 Cascade St.

Fergus Falis, MN 56538-0496
(218) 739-8892

Daniel 8, Kuntz

Associate General Counsel
MDU Resources Group, Inc.
P,0O. Box 5650

1200 West Century Avenue
Bismarck, ND 58506-5650
(701) 530-101¢6
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, Jason R, Sutton, do hereby certi

Greenfield, Pashby & Welk, LLP, attorn

fy that 1 am a member of the law firm of Boyce,
eys for Montana-Dakots Utilitles Co, and Otter Tail

Power Company and that on the 26t day of February 2014, a true and correct copy of Montana-
Dakota® Utilities Co. and Otter Tail Power Company’s Answers to Gerald Pesall’s First Set of
Discovery Requests to Applicants Dated Janvary 28, 2014 was served via first-class mail to the

following addresses listed;

Ms, Patricia Van Gerpen

Executive Director

South Dakota Public Utilities Commission
500 E. Capitol Ave.

Pietre, SD 57501

. patty. vangstpen(@state 8d.us

Mr. Brian Rounds
- Staff Analyst
South Dakota Public Utilities Commission
S00 E. Capitol Ave.
Pierre, SD 57501

- brign.rounds@state.sd.us

Ms, Jennifer Smestad

General Counsel

Otter Tail Power Company
215 8 Cascade St.

Fergus Falls, MN 56538-0496

ismestad(@ottertail.com

Ms, Maxine Fischer
Brown County Auditor
25 Market St., Ste 1
Aberdeen, SD 57401

maxine fischer@browncounty,sd.gov
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Ms, Karen Cremer

Staff Attorney

South Dakota Public Utilities Commission
500 E. Capitol Ave,

Pierre, SD 57501
karen.cremer(@state.sd,us

Mt. Darren Kearney

Staff Analyst

South Dakota Public Utilities Commission
500 E, Capitol Ave.

Pierre, SD 57501

Datron.kearney@state, sd.us

Mr. Daniel S, Kuntz
Asgsociate General Counsel
MDU Resourcss Group, Inc.
P.O. Box 5650

1200 West Century Avenue
Bismarck, ND 58506-5650

dankuntz@mduresources.com

Ms, Sandra Raap

Day County Auditor

711 W, First St., Ste, 204
Webster, SD 57274

dcaud@itetel.com
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Ms. Karen Layher
Grant County Auditor
210 E. Fifth Ave,
Milbank, SD 57252

karen.layher@state.sd.us
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Mr. Bob Pesall - Representing: Gorald Pesall

Pesall Law Firm
PO Box 23
Flandreau, SD §7028
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BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA

In the Matter of the Transmission Permit for the EL13-028
Big Stone South to Ellendale Project
MONTANA-DAKOTA UTILITIES CO.
AND OTTER TAIL POWER
COMPANY'S ANSWERS TQ GERALD
PESALL’S SECOND SET OF
DISCOVERY REQUESTS TQ
APPLICANTS DATED MARCH 5, 2014

Montana-Dakota Utilities Co. and Otter Tail Power Company {(collectively “the
Owners”), for its Responses to Gerald Pesall's Second of Discovery Requests to Applicants

dated March 5, 2014, states as follows:

ANSWERS TO INTERROGATORIES

l. State the name, title, contact information and relationship to the applicants of each
individual, other than counsel, who assists in preparing answers to these discovery
requests,

ANSWER: The answers were prepared based on the knowledge of employecs of
Octer Tail Power Company, Montana-Dakota Utilities Company, Power Engineers,
Inc,, Kadrmas, Lee & Jackson and HDR Engineering, Inc. as a whole. The primary
persons are as follows, who do not have personal knowledge of all the answers.

Terry Fastcen,

Kadrmas, Lee & Jackson, ROW Services
3203 32" Ave. South, Suite 201

Fargo, N.D, 58106

Phone: 701-232-5353

terry.fasteen@kljeng.com
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Henry Ford, Director ,
Director Electric Transmission Engineering
Montana-Dakota Utilities Co,

400 N, 4th Street

Bismarck, ND, 58501-4092

Phone: 701-222-7944

he ford@mdu.com

Mark Shaw, Project Manager
Power Engliieers, Ing,

14220 Ladue Road
Chesterfield, MO 63017
Phone: 405-330-3089

mark.shaw@powereng.com

Dean Pawlowski, Transmission Project Manager
Principal Engineer

Otter Tail Power Company

P.O. Box 496

Fergus Falls, MN 56538-0496

Phone: 218-739-8947

dpawlowski@otpco.com

Angela Piner, Project Manager Environmental Scientist
Associate Vice President

HDR Ingineering, Inc.

701 Xenfa Avenue South - Suite 600
Minneapolis, MN 55416

Phone; 763-591-5478

angela piner@hdrine.com

Jason Weiers, Manager — Delivery Planning
Otéer Tail Power Company

P.O. Box 496

Fergus Falls, MIN 56538-0496

Phone: 218-739-8311

iweiers@otpeo.com

2. State the full name, address, telephone number, and occupation of reach witness and/or
expert from whom you intend to present testimony in this proceeding, and provide a
summary of the facts and opinions which each is expected to provide

ANSWER: At this time, Owners intend to call the tollowing witnesses who are all
qualified as experts:



Henry Ford, Director

Director Electrie Transmission Engineering
Montana-Dakota Utilities Co.

400 N, 4th Street

Bismarck, ND, 58501-4092

Phone: 701-222-7944

henry.ford@mdu.com

Jason Weiers, Manager — Delivery Planning
Otter Tail Power Company

P.O. Box 496

Fergus Falls, MN 56538-0496

Phone: 218-739-8311

welersmotpco.com

Daniel Fredrickson, Project Engineer
Power Engineers, Inc.

14220 Ladue Road

Chesterfield, MO 63017

Phone: 405-330-3089

Jon Leman, Electrical Systems Study Engineer
Power Engineers, Inc.

14220 Ladue Road

Chesterfield, MO 63017

Phone: 405-330-3089

Angela Piner, Project Manager Environmental Scientist
Associate Vice President

HDR Engineering, Inc,

701 Xenia Avenue Sonth — Suite 600
Minneapolis, MN 55416
Phone; 763-591-5478

angela. piner@hdrine.com

The specifie substance of the testimony will be disclosed in the prefiled
testimony deadlines imposed by the Public Utilitics Commission of South
Daketa (“the Cominission”), but generally, these witnesses will provide the
testimony to establish the Owners’ burden of proving that the Commission
should issue the requested permit for the Big Stone South to Ellendsale
Project (“the Project”),
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3, Desoribe in detail the projected cost difference between the currently proposed route and

the other potential routes exemined by the applicants for the construction of the
transmission facility,

ANSWER: The Owners have not caleulated the projected cost differential hetween
the carrently proposed route and the other potential routes identified in BSSF 9,
which was produced as part of the Owners’ response to Gerald Pesall’s First Sef of
Discovery Requests to Applicant, The boest estimate of cost is the length of the
proposed route. The rejected preliminary route shown on BSSE 9, which goes
through Marshall County and western Day County, is longer than the proposed
route, The length of the proposed route and corresponding cost was not the sole
basis, however, for selecting the proposed route, Iustead, the proposed route was
selected based on the route selection process and considerations discussed in section
8.1 of Application to Public Utilities Commission of the State of South Dakota, as
amended (“the Application™).

. Deseribe in detail the impact, if any, which applicants contend the proposed facility may
have upon persons using either pacemakers, cochlear implants, or similar devices while
under or near the transmission line.

ANSWER: Owners do net anticipate any impact on persons with pacemakers,
cochlear implants, or similar devices while under or near the transmission line at

ground level,

. Describe in detail the impact, if any, which applicants contend the proposed facility may
have upon electronically controlled planting equipment when operated under or near the
transmission line.

ANSWER: Owners do not expect that transmission line electric and magnetic fields
will impact electronic controls of planting oquipment. Isolated cases of interference

related to GPS based systems are possible but unlikely.

As stated in answer to interrogatory number 12 in Gerald PesalPs First Set of
Discovery Requests to Applicants dated January 28, 2014, section 144 of the
Application addresses any impact of the Project on the use of global positioning
systems (GPS), There are two possible impacts to GPS systems: (1) a line-of-sight
obstruction; and (2) electric field carona from high voltage power lines. The Project
will have no effect on the usability and productivity of GPS or ground based
transmitter systems,

Regarding “line of sight” obstractions, the Project’s impact to GPS systems s
similar to the impact from trees, buildings or other line-of-sight obstructions. Any
limited Jine of sight impact on the GPS system caused by the Project’s structures is
expected to be temporary and will be eliminated once the equipment or GPS
receiver moves such that the structure no longer impedes the line of sight between
the receiver and the GPS satellites at issue.
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Some GPS systems also make use of rogl-time kinematic (RTK) systems to lmprove
the accuracy of the GPS system by making use of the ultra-high frequency radio
communication range. RTK systems arc ground based GPS systems, RTK signals
are transmitted from antennas that are typically only a few meters high, and thus,
transmission line towers are not expected to produce much blocking of the tHne of
sight signals from these sources either, Repositioning of the RTK hase station
antenna should resolve any line of sight interference issues if they occur.

Regarding electric ficld coronn from the Projoct, there is no expected impact,
Electric field corona from high voltage transmission lines can produce radio
frequency emissions, but they are primarily below the frequencies used for satollite
and ground based GPS systems, Therefore, the radio frequency broadeast
produced by high voltage power lines is very unlikely to interfore with or overcome
GPS signals,

+ In the event a landowner’s average erop yields are reduced dus to construction activities
during the construction process, or as a result of ongoing maintenance, describe the
compensation, if any, which applicants will provide to landowners to offset reduced crop
insurance payments in future years.

ANSWER: If damage occurs to crops during the construction process, the Owners
will pay for the erops damaged, including hay land, The damage payment for
standing crop shall be determined by the following formula (acres x yield x price per
bushel/ton). '

The Owners will strive to work with the landowner to jointly establish the acres
affected by construction. ‘To determine the yield component, the Owners will
consider the yield obtrined by the landowner on the remainder of the ficld affected
and historieal data, The price per bushel shall be determined by the market rate at
the time of the crop damage. '

The Owners will pay a lump sum payment equal twice the amount of the crop
damage payment calculated pursuant to the formula discussed ahove, 'The QOwners
pay twice the amount of the crop damage calculated to reflect future yicld
reductions caused by the construction,

Actual ‘crop damages from maintenance operations will be reimbursed by the
Project.

. State the average cost per linear foot to construct the proposed transmission line on the
currently proposed route,

ANSWER: The Owners have not calenlated the cost per linear foot of construeting

the Project. As stated in section 5.0 of the Application, the total estimated cost of
the Project is $293 ¢to $370 million in 2013 dollars. Of this ameount, according to
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section 5.0 of the Application, the cost of transmission line portion of the Project is
$265 million to $342 million, As stated in section 2,0 of the Application, the Project
includes approximately 160 to 170 miles of transmission line, These estimates can
be wsed to caleulate a range of anticipated costs for building each mile of the
transmission line,

In answer to your Interrogatory No, 6 of Gerald Pesall’s First Set of Discovery Requests,
you indicate that road damage will be monitored and repaired. Describe in detai] who
will provide monitoring and repair services, and how they will be provided,

ANSWER: As part of the construction of the Project and the use of best
management practices during the construction, it is expected that road damage, if
any, will be minimal. Nevertheless, a person or party (Le, engincer, projeet

- manager, construction manager, construction contractor) will be assigned

responsibility to monitor any road damage. At this time, the identity of the person
or party responsible for monitoring any road damage has not been determined. The
Project will work with the entity that has authority over the rond in making a
damage assessment, The Project plans to repair road damage either through either
the wse of a contractor or by compensating the government entity to restore the
road, In addition, the bond required by the Commission in connection with the
issuance of the permit will be available to provide security of payment for any road
damage,

Describe in detail the impact, if any, applicants contend the construction of the proposed
facility will have on the ficld-to-field transmission of soil and plant-born pests, including
but not limited to the soybean cyst nematode, and the “sudden death syndrome” fungus,
and any preventative measures applicanis will take to prevent the fransmission of the
same during construction and ongoing maintenance of the proposed facility,

ANSWER: The Ovwners contend that the construction of the Project will have no
impact on the field-to-field transmission of sofl and plant borne pests. Based on the
Owners experience in constructing, operating, and maintaining 5,700 miles of
transmission lines in Novth Dakota, South Dakota, Minnesota, Montana, and
Wyoming, the construction. and maintenance of these lines has not materially
coniributed to the field-to-field transmission of soil or plant-born pests. Any field-
to-field fransmission of soil or plant-born pests would be no greater than would be
expected as a result of standard farming practices, sueh as moving farming
equipment between ficlds.

Desctibe in detail any alternative means by which applicants may comply with clean
energy mandates imposed by the State of Minnesota in the event that the application is
denied, '

ANSWER: The Owners assume that the reference fo “clean energy mandates
imposed by the State of Minnesota” means renewable portfolio standards that apply
in Minnesota, which requires that 25% of retail energy sales must come from
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rencwables by 2025 and 1.5% of retail energy sales eoming from solar energy by

Montana-Dakota Utilities Co. is not subject to Minnesota’s clean energy mandates
beeause it does not serve customers within the State of Minnesota, Otter Tail Power
Company (“OTP”) does serve customers within the State of Minnesota and
therefore is subject to the requirements imposed by Minnesota,

Regardless of whether the pcrmit for the Project is granted or denied, OTP would
embark on a similar approach to that which it has historieally taken when adding
generation resources to comply with Minnesota’s ¢lean energy mandates,

OTP currently provides about 19% of its total retail sales from wind onergy, To
date, all of OTP’s wind energy has been added cost effectively.

As mentioned in sections 4 and 6 of the Application, the. Project, along with the rest
of the MVPs, will reduce the wholesale cost of energy delivery for consumers across
MISO by increasing transmission capacity. If the Application is denied, the Project
may not be built, theroby jeopardizing the benefits the MVP portfolio offers to the
MISO region, which includes South Dakota, Without these benefits, energy prices
in the MISO rogion conld be higher, therefore increasing costs to consumers system-
wide.
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STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA )

88,
COUNTY QF E[m{g_é é )

Henry Ford, being duly sworn is the anthorized agent of Montana-Dakota Utilities Co.,
for purposes of ihe response, ‘

He states that he does nat have personal knmowledge of all the facts recited in the
foregoing Responses of Montana-Dakota Utilities Co, and Otter Tail Power Company to Gerald
Pesall's Second Set of Discovery Requests to Applicants, but the Information has been gathered
by end from employees, contractors of the owhers of Big Stone South to Ellendale Projeot; end
that the information is verified by him as being true and cortect on bohalf of the owners of the

Big Stone South to Ellendale Project.
MONTANA:DAKOTA UTEATIES-CO
By VAl /.
ofd

Henry J M/
Its Director — Elfettic Transmission Engingering

e
Dated this | day of April, 2014,

Subscribed and sworn to before me this j_: day of April, 2014,

Shll st Vsl

' Notary Public ~

(SEAL)
My Commiission Expires;

LT R T T TP ot
S 1ELLEY R, VETTER -

_ otary Publlo
st of wieth Dakole h
§ My Comisluaivn & vi. May 10, 2019 p
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STATE OF MINNESOTA )
C . . 188,
COUNTY oF _Ctter. Tou | )

11T

Tason Welers, being duly sworn is the authorized agent of Otter Tail Power Company, for
purposes of the response.

He states that he dots not have personal knowledge of all the facts reclted in the
foregoing Responses of Montana-Dakota Utilities Co. end Otler Tail Power Company to Gerald
Pesall’s Second Set of Discovery Requests to Applicarts, but the information has been gathered
by and from employees, contractors of the ownets of Big Stone South to Ellendale Project; and
that the information is verified by him as being trie and correct on behalf of the owners of the
Big Stone South to Ellendale Project.

Daled this _ifbday of April, 2014,

OTTER TAIL POWER COMPANY

By ;M 7 44; g,,° J
Jason Welers
Its ﬂgng‘fﬂq .,hﬂ[;.‘u&gc.. P/_‘Mm.g___. "

Subscribed and swoin to before me this {Z% day of April, 2014,

e
/ /’ 2+ 27 / / / }

(o€ . KDOAA »
Notary Public -
(SEAL) _

My Commission Bxpires: _( ,l’w . ‘3/' , =220/ S {:_A i

& CAROL J. KOCHER

WY Notary Public-Minnesota
2 My Commission Brplres Jan 81, 2B




CERTIFICATE QF SERVICE

I, Jason R, Sutton, do hereby certify that [ am a member of the law fitm of Boyce,
Greenfield, Pashby & Welk, LLP, attoreys for Montana-Dakota Utilities Co. and Otter Tail
Power Company and that on the 7" day of April, 2014, @ true and correct copy of Montana-
Dakota Utilities Co, and Otter Tail Power Company’s Answers to Gerald Pesall’s Second Sot of
Discovery Requests {0 Applicants Dated March S, 2014 was served via first-class mail to the

following addresses listed:

Ms. Pairicia Van Gerpen
Executive Director

South Dakota Public Utilities Commission

500 E. Capitol Ave,
Pierre, 8D 57501

patty,vangerpen(@state.sd,us

Mr, Brian Rounds
Staff Analyst

South Dakota Public Utilities Commission

500 E. Capitol Ave,
Pierre, SD 57501

brian.rounds(@state sd,us

Ms. Jennifer Smestad

General Counsel

Otter Tail Power Company
215 § Cascade St.

Fergus Falls, MN 56538-0496

ismestad@ottertail.com

Ms, Maxine Fischer
Brown County Auditor
25 Market St,, Ste |
Aberdeen, SD 57401

maxine fischey@browncounty,sd.gov

Ms. Karen Cremer

Staff Attorney

South Dakota Public Utilities Commission
500 E. Capitol Ave.

Piorre, SD 57501
karen,cremer(@state,sd,us

Mr, Datren Kearney

Staff Analyst

South Dakota Public Utilities Commission
500 E, Capitol Ave,

Pierve, SD 57501
Darren.kearney(@state.sd.us

Mr, Daniel 8. Kuntz
Associate Genetal Counsel
MDU Resoutces Group, Inc.
P.O. Box 5650

1200 West Century Avenue

Bismarck, ND 58506-5650

dan.kuntz@mduresources.com

Ms, Sandra Raap

Day County Auditor

711 W, First St., Ste. 204
Webster, S 57274

deaud@itetel.co
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Mz, Karen Layher Mt, Bob Pesall - Representing: Gerald Pesall

T

Grant County Auditor Pesall Law Firm

210 E. Fifth Ave. PO Box 23 =
Milbank, SD 57252 Flandreau, 8D 57028 L
karen.lavher(@state.sd.us bob(@pesall.com -
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In the Matter of the Transmission Permit for the EL13-028
Big Stone South to Ellendale Project
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HENRY FORD REBUTTAL TESTIMONY

Q. Please state your name, employer, and work address.

A, My name is Henry Ford. 1am the Director of Electric Transmission Development for
Montana-Dakota Utilities Co. (“MDU”). My business address is 400 N, St,, Bismarck, ND
58501.

Q. Did you prepare and direct testimony regarding the Big Stone South to
Ellendale Project (“the Project”)?

A. Yes, ] did.

Q. What is the purpose of your rebuttal testimony?

A. To address the testimony of Gregory Tylka, Ph.D, who prepared direct testimony on
behalf of Gerald Pesall, and which was filed with the South Dakota Public Utilities Commission
(“the Commission”). Specifically, I am going to address Dr, Tylka’s testimeny about the alleged
effect of the construction of the Project on the possible spread of soyBean cyst nematode
(“SCN™),

Q. Other than Gerald Pesall, has anyone else expressed concern regarding the
effect of the construction of the Project on transmission of SCN?

A, No, Landowners, local governments, or governmental agencies who have
communicated with the Project have never discussed SCN or the effect of the Project on the
spread of SCN, | |

Q. Has MDU ever encountered allegations that construction or maintenance of

transmission projects will increase the spread of SCN in any of MDU’s other transmission

projects?

Page 2 0f3
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A. No, this case is the first time where alleged spread of SCN has been raised as a
concern,
Q. How many miles of transmission line does MDU have?
A. MDU owns and maintains approximately 3,000 miles of transmission line.
Q. What experience has co-owner Otter Tail Power Company (OTP) had regarding
SCN in the construction and maintenance of transmission lines?
A. Like MDU, OTP has not encountered the complaint that construction or maintenance
of a transmission line spreads SCN.
Q. When was the first time the Project learned anyone had concerns that the
construction or maintenance of the transmission line would spread SCN? _
A. Upon receiving the direct filed testimony of Dr. Tylka, which was filed by Gerald
Pesall on April 24, 2014,
Q. What steps are Project taking in light of Dr. Tylka’s testimony?

A. The Project intends to research the effect construction or maintenance of the

on

e

“
ikl

iransmission line might likely hav
Q. How do you propose updating the Commission regarding the Project’s plan for

addressing SCN?

A. Because SCN is a hew issue for the Project, and because the short time frame for

_ rebuttal testimony after Gerald Pesall filed Dr. Tylka’s testimony, the Project needs additional -

time to complete their study and research, Following the completion of our study and research,

the Project will supplement their prefiled rebuttal testimony.

Q. Does this complete your prefiled rebuttal testimony at this time?

A. Yes,

Page3 of 3
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OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA

In the Matter of the Transmission Permit for the EL13-028
Big Stone South to Ellendale Project
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Q. Pleasc state your name, business nddress, and current employment poéiﬁon.

A, My name is Henry Ford, Iam the Direclor of Electric Transmission Development for
Montana-Dakota Utilities Co, (“MDU"). My business address is 400 N, St., Bismarck, ND
58501,

Q. Have you previously prepared any testimony in this matter?

A. Yes, I prepared direct testimony filed on April 25, 2014, Ialso prepared rebuital
testimony that was filed on May 9, 2014. 7

Q. 1n your rebuttal testimony, did you indicate what steps the Project was taking to
address Dr. Tylka’s testimony about soybean cyst nematode (“SCN”)? |

- A. Yes. Iindicated that the Project was researching the effect of the construction and
maintenance of the transmission line on the spread of SCN. -

Q. What research has ¢he Project done?

A, The Project consuited with South Dakota State University regarding the presence of .
SCN in Brown, Day, and Grant Counties, and how SCN is spread. The Project also reviewed

academic literature on SCN,

Rt T

Q. What did your research indicate?

A. SCN is present in Brown, Day, and Grant Counties, but the Project is not aware af this
time what particular parcels within those counties have SCN presgnt. SCN oan be spread in any
method that dirt is spread from field fo field,

Q. Why is the Project unaware of the pa;'ﬂcular parcels containing SCN?

A. The Project is unaware of which landowners have tested for SCN and which parcels

the South Dakota State University extension office may have tested in the project area.

Page 2 of 3
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Additionally, the extension office would not be able to provide any information that may be
available because the information is private,

Q. Can the construction of the Project contribute to the spread of the SCN?

A. Based on our research, anything that catises dirt to move from field to field can cause
spread of SCN, including wind, erosion, farming practicés, and the construction of the Project.

Q. Based on the research, does the P'roject intend to engage in any mitigation to
reduce the spread of SCN?

A. Yes, we are intc;nding to adopt and implement a plan,

Q. Please describe the mitigation plan.

A. The Project is stilf developing a mitigation plan., Although not yet finalized, the
Project is considering five components to the plan — consultation, sumpling, cleaning, training, -

and monitoring, The details of the mitigation will depend on the results of consultation and

sampling. : -

Q. When do you expect the mitigation plan to be filed?

A. Texpect a working draft mitigation plan to be filed before the evidentiary hearing on

AR AT v

June 10 so that I can testify about it at the hearing.

Q. What plans does the Projeet have regarding addressing the possible spread of

SCN through maintenance activities?

A. The mitigation plan will address reasonable and apptopriate efforts to reduce the

spread of SCN during maintenance activities,

Q. Does this complete your supplemental rebuttal testimony?

A, Yes.
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Big Stone South to Ellendale

Soybean Cyst Nematode Mitigation Plan

Background Information

The soybean cyst nematode (Heterodera glycines) (SCN) has been identified throughout the
Project area and was first identified in 1997%n the three counties within which the Project
traverses. The SCN can be spread through the movement of affected soil. It moves very slowly
through wind-blown soils, wind and water erosion, and cultivation practices and has been
known to survive in the soil for a decade®.

The Project developed a mitigation plan described below to reduce the risk of spreading SCN
from affected to non-affected fields. This mitigation plan has the following approach:

* Perform a field assessment to identify the presence or absence of the SCN within
cultivated fields crossed by the Project right-of-way (ROW)

* Identify acceptable measures to mitigate spreading SCN during construction

* Hold construction crews accountable through inspection and monitoring during
construction

Mitigation Plan

Field Assessment

Sampling for SCN commonly targets high probability areas in cultivated fields, which includes
field lines, field entrances, and low spots®. The goal of the field assessment is to identify the
presence or absence of the SCN in the cultivated fields crossed by the Project. The sampling
protocol will be completed in accordance with the South Dakota State University protocol.

Mitigation Measures

Mitigating the spread of SCN from an existing affected field to a non-SCN affected field, a
variety of measures may be utilized, which are dependent on soil conditions, weather
conditions, topography, distance traveled, equipment type, and cost. Unfortunately, one
mitigation measure alone is not a “catch-all” and will be determined on a site-specific basis,
Measures to assist in the control of soils on equipment may include: cleaning stations, utilizing
clean crews for non-affected fields and a dirty crew for affected fields, equipment mats, and

! Strunk, Connie. 2013. Soybean Cyst Nematodes: An expanding pest in South Dakota.
http://igrow.org/agronomy/soybeans/soybean-cyst-nematodes-an~expanding—pest-in-south~dakota/

z Niblack, T. L., K. N. Lambert, and G. L. Tylka. 2006. A Model Plant Pathogen from the Kingdom Animalia:
Heterodera glycines, the Soybean Cyst Nematode. Annual Review of Phytopathology 44: 283-303

* Smolik, 1.D., M.A. Draper, 2007.Soybean Cyst Nematode South Dakota Extension Fact Sheet 902-A. SDSU Plant
Science Department. http://pubstorage.sdstate.edu/AgBio_Publications/articles/F5902A.pdf
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Big Stone South to Ellendale

weather-dependent construction (i.e. frozen and dry soils). The measures ultimately used will
depend on the results of the sampling effort, cost, resource availability, and contractor input.

N

1

Inspection/Monitoring
The Project is committing to training and identifying individuals responsible for monitoring
construction personnel in their implementation of this plan.
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BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION. SETTLEMENT STIPULATION
OF MONTANA-DAKOTA UTILITIES CO, _
AND OTTER TAIL POWER COMPANY EL13-028

'FOR A PERMIT TO CONSTRUCT THE
BIG STONE SOUTH TO ELLENDALE 345

KV TRANSMISSION LINE

It is hereby stipulated and agreed by and among Montana-Dakota Utilities Co, and Otter
Tail Power Company (jointly "Applicant"), and the South Dakots Public Utilities Commission
Staff ("Staff") (jointly "Party” or "Parties"), that the following Settlement Stipulation
("Stipulation”) may be adopted by the South Dakota Public Utilities Commission
("Commission") in the above-captioned matter. In support of its Application to the Public
(hilities Commission of the State of South Dakota for a Facility Permit (“Facility Permit”),
Applicant does hereby offer this Stipulation, the Application filed August 23, 2013, as amended,
and all responses submitted by the Applicant to the Staff's data requests, all responses to Gerald
Pesall’s discovery requests, and the testimony and exhibits filed on April 25, 2014, May 9, 2014
and May 23, 2014, conditioned upon the Commission accepting the following Stipulation and
the Terms and Conditions without any material condition or modification,

L INTRODUCTION

Applicant proposes to own and construct the Big Stone South to Eliendale 345 kv
electric transmission facilities ("Project"). The Project includes new 345 kV electric transmission
facilities of approximately 160 to 170 miles in length, which will connect the new Ellendale 345
kV Substation with the Big Stone South Substation, Approximately 150 to 160 miles of
fransmission facilities will be located in South Dakota, The Project also involves the building of
a new 345 kV substation (“Ellendale 345 kV Substation™) and substation tie line near Ellendale,

North Dakota. '
11, PURPOSE

This Stipulation has been prepared and executed by the Parties for the sole purpose of
stating the Parties’ agreement rogarding the issuance of a Facility Permit in Docket No, EL13-
028, In consideration of the mutual promises hereinafter set forth, the Parties agree as follows:

1. Upon execution of the Stipulati'on, the Parties shall file this Stipulation with the
Commission together with a joint motion requesting that the Commission issue an
order approving this Stipulation in its entirety without condition or modification.




This Stipulation includes all terms and conditions of settlement and is submitted with
the condition that, in the event the Commission imposes any material changes or
conditions to this Stipulation, which are unacceptable to any Party, this Stipulation
may, at the option of any Party, be withdrawn and shall not constitute any part of the
record in this proceeding or any other proceeding nor be used for any other purpose.

This Stipulation shall become binding upon execution by the Partics, provided
however, that if this Stipulation does not become effective in accordance with
Paragraph 2 above, it shall be null and void. This Stipulation is intended to relate only
to the specific matter referred to herein; no Party waives any claim or right, which it
may otherwise have, with respect to any matter not expressly provided for herein. No
Party or 4 representative thereof shall directly or indirectly refer to this Stipulation as
precedent in any other curvent or future proceeding before the Commission,

The Parties to this proceeding stipulate that all pre-filed exhibits and ple-ﬁled
testimony submitted by the Applicant will be made a patt of the record in this

proceeding.

The terms and conditions contained in this Stipulation shall inure to the benefit of and
be binding upon the respective successors, affiliatcs, owners, stockholdets, partners,
parents, subsidiaries, directors, officers, agents, employees, representatives, attorneys,
and assigns of the Parties. In addition, the terms and conditions of this Stipulation,
including all facts leading up to the signing of this Stipulation, shall bind the Parties,
including consultants, contractors, and retained professionals.

This Stipulation constitutes the entire agreement befween the Parties and shall be
deemed fo supersede any other understandings or agreements, whether written, oral,
expressed or implied, relating to the Applncanon This Stlpulatlon may not be
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terms and conditions of this Stipulation may not be given without the written consent

thereto executed by all Parties.

This Stipulation shall be interpreted and construed in accordance with the laws of the
State of South Dakota.

This Stipulation may be exccuted by electronic mail or facsimile and in multiple
counterpatts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which together
shall constitute one and the same document.

The Parties recognizo that the Commission. has granted intervention to Gerald Pesall,
James R, McKane, III, Clark T. Olson, Shuring Farms, Inc., Bradley R, Morehouse,
and Kevin Anderson (collectively “Intervenors™), The Intervenors are not parties to

this Stipulation.

10. The Parties agree that subject to the four elements of proof under SDCL § 49-41B-22,
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the Commission has the authority to grant, deny, or grant upon reasonable terms,
conditions or modifications a permit for the construction, operation, and maintenance

of the Pruject, The Parties further agree that the Applicant has met its burden of proof .

pursuant to SDCL § 49-41B-22 and is entitled to & permit to construct the Project as
provided in SDCL § 49- 41B-24, subject to the following:

I, TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE SETTLEMENT STIPULATION

1.
Applicant will obiain all applicable and necessary governmenfal permits, which
reasonably may be required by any governmental authority with jurisdiction, prior to engaging in
the particular activity covered by that permit.

2, '
Applicant shall construct, operate, and maintain the Project in a manner consistent with:
(1) descriptions in the Application, (2) Application supplements, (3) responses to data requests,
(4) the Terms and Conditions of the Permit to Construct Facilities, and (5) any applicable

industry standards,

3
Applicant agrees that the Commission's complaint process as set forth in ARSD 20:10:01
shall be available to landowners, other persons sustaining or threatened with damage as the result
of Applicant's failure to abide by the conditions of the Permit or otherwise having standing to
seck enforcement of the conditions of the Permit,

4. :
Applicant shall provide each landowner on whose property the Project is to be
constructed or located with the following information;

a) A copy of the Commission's Order Granting Permit to Construct Facilities;
b) Detailed safety information describing:

1) Reasonable safety precautions for activities on or near the Project,

2) Known activities or uses that are prohibited near the Project, and

3) Other known potential dangers or limitations near the Project;
¢) Construction/maintenance damage compensation policies and procedures;
d) Commission's address, website, and phone number; and

¢) Contact person for Applicant, inchuding name, e-mail address, and phone number.

Once the foregoing information has been provided fo the landowner, Applicant shall have no
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responsibility or duty to update such information except for changes to items b), ¢), and €) in this
paragraph 4. -

5.
In order to ensure compliance with the terms and conditions of this Permit pursuant to
SDCL § 49-41B-33, it is necessary for the enforcement of this Order that all employees,
contractors, and agents of the Applicant involved in this Project be made aware of the terms and

conditions of this Permit.
6.

Except as otherwise provided in the conditions of this Stipulation, the Applicant shall
comply with all mitigation measures set forth in the Application, in Applicant’s responses to
Staff data requests, Applicant’s responses to Intervenor’s discovery, and in Applicant’s prefiled
testimony and exhibits, Material modifications to the mitigation measures shall be subject to

prior approval of the Commission. \

7.

Applicant will negotiate road use agreements with applicable government authorities with
jurisdiction, if required during construction. Applicant will follow the terms of all road use
agreements. Applicant shall take appropriate action to mitigate wind-blown particles created
throughout the construction process, including but not limited to implementation of dust control
measures such as road watering, covering of open haul trucks when transporting material subject
to being windblown, and the removal from the road surface of any soils or mud deposits from the

road surface when necessary.

8,
Applicant shall comply with the following conditions regarding road protection;

)] Applicant shall acquire all applicable and necessary permits authorizing the
crossing of federal, state, county, and township roads.

b) Applicant shall coordinate road closures with federal, state and locel governments
and emergency responders.

c) Applicant shall implement & regular program of road maintenance and repair
throughout the active construction period to keep paved and gravel roads in an
acceptable condition for residents and the public,

d) After construction, - Applicant shall repair and restore deteriorated roads to the
conditions defined in the road use agreement, if applicable, resulting from
Applicant’s construction traffic, or compensate governmental entities for their
repair and restoration of deteriorated roads caused by Applicant, such that the
roads are returned to their preconstruction condition,

€) Privately owned arcas used as temporary roads during construction will be
restored to their preconstruction condition, except as otherwise requested or

agreed to by the landowner.
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f) Should Applicant need to widon any existing roadways during construction of the
Project, Applicant shali retwrn the roadways back to original width after
completion of the Project, unless otherwise agreed upon,

9,
will coordinate with pipeline owners to ensure that the Project does not cause

Applicant
1 work with pipeline owners to implement any

harm to existing pipeline facilities. Applicant wil
necessary and reasonable mitigation measures. .

10,
Apphcant will provide signage that identifies road closures and disturbances resulting
from the Project in accordance with the most recent edition of the Manual on Uniform Traffic
Control Devices as published by the Federal Highway Administration.

11.
Applicant shall promptly report to the Commission the presence of any critical habitat of
threatened or endangered species or native grasslands in the siting area that Applicant becomes
aware of and that was not previously reported to the Commission,

12.

Applicant agrees to avoid direct impacts to archaeological and architectural site features
that are listed on or that are eligible for listing on the National Register of Mistoric Places
(NRHP), and those that are not evaluated for listing on the NRHP, When NRHP-¢ligible or listed
sites cannot be avoided, Applicant will notify the State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) and
the Commission of the reasons that complete avoidance cannot be achieved in order to
coordinate minimization and/or develop treatiment measures.

13,

If, during construction, Applicant discovers what may be a cultural resource, human
skeletal remains, or associated funerary objects, Applicant or its agent shall immediately cease
work at the location and notify the landownex(s), the SHPO, and other authorities as appropriaie
(per SDCL § 34-27-25 and SDCL § 34-27-28 in the case of human burials), If it is determined, in
coordination with SHPO, that a significant resource is present, Applicant shall develop a plan
that is acceptable to the landowner and SHPO that minimizes the adverse impact or threat to the

regource,

14. -

Applicant shall follow a) all conditions required by any agency permits and b) all final
agency recommendations agreed o by Applicants through consultation with those applicable
agencies in Fxhibit 1, Appendix C. Applicant shall reasonably update the Commission if any of
the final agency recommendations agreed to by the Applicant as provided for in this paragraph
(14) change from Exhibit 1, Appendix C.
15.

Applicant shall confor with the applicable agencies in the implementation of measures for

the protection of avian specics consistent with “Suggested Practices_for Avian Protection on




Power Lines: The State of the Art in- 2006” and “Reducing Avian Collisions with Power Lines:

State of the Ast in 20127 prepared by the Avian Power Line Interaction Commiitee,

16,

Applicant shall provide the Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPFP) to the
Commission prior to submittal of an application for a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination
System (NPDES) general permit for construction activities. The SWPPP will outline the water
and soil conservation praciices that will be used during construction to prevent or minimize
erosion and sedimentation as required by the NPDES permit, All contractors will be given a copy
of the SWPPP and requirements will be reviewed with them prior to the start of construction,

‘ 17.
Applicant shall develop and implement a mitigation plan to minimize the spread of
soybean cyst nematode, consistent with Exhibit 23, in consultation with a crop pest control

expert,

18,

Applicant will repair and restore areas materially impacted by construction or
maintenance of the Project. Except as otherwise agreed to by the landowner, restoration will
include replacement of original pre-construction o equivalent quality topsoil to its original
elevation, contour, and compaction and reestablishment of original vegetation as close theteto as

reasonably practical, -

19.

Applicant's obligation with respect to restoration and maintenance of the right-of-way
(ROW) shall continue throughout the life of the Project for disturbances caused by the actions of
the Applicant, Where the soil is disturbed during construction or maintenance of the line,
Applicant shall restore vegetation as appropriate in and along the ROW, For a period of thirty-six
(36) months from the energization of the Project, if noxious weeds sprout in restored ateas,
Applicant will remove/eliminate them. Landowner permission shall be obtained before the initial
application of herbicides.

20,

When necessitated by Applicant’s actions, Applicant shall restore and clean-up the ROW

continuously throughout the duration of the Project's construction as the timing of construction

activities result in the need to do so.

21,

Applicant shall stage construction materials ih a manwer that minimizes adverse impact to
landowners as agreed upon between Applicant and the landowners. All excess construction
materials and debris shall be removed upon completion of the Project. In addition, any temporary
guard poles shall be removed, unless agreed upon otherwise. '

22.
Applicant shall, in a manner consistent with its easement agreement with a landowner,
repair or replace all privaie property existing at the time of construction, which is removed or
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damaged during all phases of construction, including, but not limited to the following; fences,
gates, utility, water supply systems, irrigation, or drainage systems. Applicant shall compensate
the landowners for damages or losses fo property existing at the time of construction or
maintenance that cannot be fully remedied by repair or replacement, including actual crop and

livestock Tosses.

23.

If it becomes nccessary to materially deviale from the described centerline (o
accommodate engineering and applicable safety and construction requirements based upon
conditions encountered duting construction, all landowners affected by the material deviation
and the Commission must be notified in writing at least five working days before the material
deviation s expected to occur, Unless otherwise notified by the Commission, the material

deviation is deemed approved. For purposes of this paragraph, the term "material deviations”

shall mean any action or activity outside the reasonable parameters of the Permit,

24.

Applicant shall locate all structures, to the cxtent feasible and prudent, to minimize
adverse impacts and interforences with agricultural operations, shelterbelts; and other land uses
or activities existing prior to the date of this Stipulation, unless agreed otherwise by the affected
landowner. Applicant shall take appropriate precautions to protect livestock and crops during

constrictiof,

235,

The terms and conditions of the Permit shall be mede a uniform condition of
construction, subject only to an affirmative written request for an exemption addressed to the
Commission. A request for an exemption shall clearly state which particular condition should not
be applied to the property in question and the reason for the requested exemption. The
Commission shall evaluate such requests on a case-by-case busis which evaluation shall be
completed within sixty (60) days unless exigent circumstances require action sooner.

‘ . 26.
If the presence or operation of the Project causes unreasonable interference with radio,

telovision, or any other licensed communication transmitting o receiving equipment, Applicant

shall take all appropriate action to minimize any such interference and shall make a good faith
effort to restore or provide reception levels equivalent to reception levels in the immediate areas
just prior to construction of the Project. This mitigation requirement shall not apply to any
dwellings or other structures built after completion of the Project.

27.

Applicant shall use appropriate preventative measures to prevent damage to paved roads
and to remove excess soil or mud from such roadways. Before commencing construction,
Applicant shall fornish an indemnity bond in the amount of $300,000 1o comply with the
requirements of SDCL § 49-41B-38. Such bond shall be issued in favor of, and for the benefit of,
such townships, counties, or other governmental entities whose property is crossed by the
transmission facilities or used by associated construction equipment, The bond shall remain in
effect until released by the Commission, which release shall not be unreasonably denied

R B




following completion of the construction and remediation perlod, Applicant shall give notice of
the existence and amount of the bond to all governmental entities whose property is crossed or

used by the Project,

28,
Applicant will provide Global Positioning System (GPS) coordinates of proposed
structure locations to affected landowners at any time during the life of the Project, Coordinates
will be provided in writing to landowners within 30 days of a request.

29,
Not less than 30 days prior to commencement of construetion work in the field, Applicant
will provide to Staff the most current pre-construction design, layout and plans, Applicant also
will provide such additional pre-construction information as Staff requests.

30.

Within 90 days of the Project's completion, Applicant shall submit a report to the
Commigsion that provides the following information; 1) as-built location of structutes and route,
including drawings; 2) status of remedial activities for alleged road damage, alleged landowner
property damage, alleged crop damage, alleged environmental damage, or any other alleged
damage that resulted from construction activities; and 3) a summary of known landowner

complaints and Applicant's responses.

31,

Prior to construction, Applicant will notify public safety agencies providing a schedule
and location of work to be performed within their jurisdiction, The agencies contacted will
include the South Dakota Department of Public Safety, Sheriffs of Brown, Grant, and Day
Counties, and Brown, Grant, and Day County Offices of Emetgency Management.

32.

Applicant shall provide all landowners information regarding the potential induction of
current/voltage on fences and metal objects and mitigation methods that can be applied to
eliminate the induction. Applicant will respond to landowners conceths regarding induced
current/voltage on fences or other structures within 100 feet of the edge of the right-of-way of
the Project and will assist those landowners in determining methods and implementation of

mitigation,

33.Applicant shall provide all landowners information regarding possible interference
with unlicensed agticultural navigation communication transmitting or receiving equipment and
mitigation methods that can be applied to minimize unreasonable interference. Applicant will
respond to landowners concerns regarding unreasonable interference with unlicensed agricultural
navigation communication transmitting ot receiving equipment and will assist those landowners
in determining methods and implementation of mitigation,

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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are required under the Stipulation for approval of
material changes within the route.

Then just to give you very briefly the status as it
is ﬁoday on options signed on this project, I can tell
you that as of the 3rd of June we have 224 options
signed. That egquals roughly 60 percent of the total line
miles on this project. I know wé've executed a few more
today. I don't have those reflected in here. But so we
continue to make progress on getting options signed on
the project.

Now in terms of the Soybean Cyst Nematode Mitigation
Plan, you know, I admitted right away that when this
issue was raised by Mr. Pesalli's attorney this was not an
issue that the owners of this project or the Applicants
here were really aware of.

You know, we've bullt a lot of transmission line
throughout this area and ﬁhroughout Minnesota,

North Dakota, Montana. This 1is an issue that at least
has not come up in any particular proceeding or it is not
something that we have faced before on a project.

So as a result, we had to do a little bit of
research right away into this issue. And throﬁgh that
research -- and basicaliy what we did was we consulted
with South Dakota State University and thelr extension

service. They're well-aware of this issue, and they were
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able to give us, I think, some good education on this
issue as well as discuss with us what our mitigation plan
looks like and kind of give us a little bit of advice
there.

So as a result of those consultations, what we
really have determined here is that within the rcughly
160, 165 miles ¢f the route in Scuth Dakota -- or
throughout the whole prcject, for that matter, we have
determined that what needs to be done is that we need to
test each individual cultivated field for the presence of
the soybean cyst nematode.

So we've committed, you know, within the Stipulation
that we will follow this mitigation plan. We will test
essentially every cultivated field on this project.

Based on the results of that testing, we're going tec know
something more about kind of the density of this problem
within our route. In other words, we'll know if this
issue 1s confined to certain areas on the route, whether
it's every other fileld kind of a situation or whether
it's, you know, 10, 15 miles that is clean fields,
followed by 10, 15 miles of dirty fields.

The reason I say that i1s because in our
investigaticn we determined there are several ways to
mitigate the transference of the nematode from one field

to the other. And depending on the density of this issue
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along the route, that is going to determine what is the
pest method of mitigation or the best method that we will
apply to prevent this spread to the best of our ability
from a dirty field to a clean field.

There are several methods we're looking at that
we've found that other companies have used in other parts
of the country where this has been an issue in the past.
There are things like cleaning stations that you set up
at the edge of a so-called dirty field where you will
clean the equipment before they leave that field.
Therefore, they'll be clean and ready to go into a
noninfected or noncontaminated field and not transfer the
nematode.

There is also the option of what we call clean
crew/dirty crew. What that means is, there again,
depending on the density and the distribution of these
fields, you could actually set up a Crew that only works
within the clean fields. They don't ever go intoc a dirty
field and vice versa. You set up a dirty crew that their
purpose is to only work within the fields that are
contaminated and not cross into a field that is not
contaminated.

Those are a couple of the real, I think, successful
methods that have been used on other projects. There's

other possibilities such as matting where you're
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technically not driving in the field; you're driving on
wood matting. And that could be used in certain areas
maybe where the field conditions are wet enough that we
would have a greater concern of spreading contaminated
soils.

And, you know, I think there are some other things
out there that we've read about in terms of, you know,
potential lesser risk in, say, winter months when the
ground is frozen, things like that.

So our mitigation plan has laid cut this process
where we do the testing followed by an analysis of those
results to determine the best methods of mitigation to
use. And those methods could actually vary from one area
of the line to another, all dependent on, you know,
cost-effectiveness, project efficiencies, and just what
is the best method to use in that area.

So that's how we intend to proceed in mitigating the
nematode issue. That 1s Exhibit 23 also, and so we can
read that. And it's also included in paragraph 17 of the
Settlement Stipulatioﬁ.

S0 with that in mind, I guess, in conclusion I just
want to say that based on what we believe our Application
has done, what other filed testimony that we have filed
in this case, and the conditions in the Settlement

statement -—- or the Settlement Stipulation itself, we the
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Council was one that we had contacted. We did -- in
Appendix C of the Application, we did make contact with
the State -- 1f you just give me a second here, I think I
can find it. To the South Dakota Department of
Agriculture and South Dakcota Department cf Environment
and Natural Resources, those two agencies, which I assume
maybe would know something about it. At least the
Department c¢f Agriculture. 2Also the U.S. Department of
Agriculture was contacted.

CHAIRMAN HANSON: My recollection, the Soybean
Council was the first to have a publication on it,
though, in South Dakota. It was gquite a few years ago,
and they were talking about it in the socutheast part of
the country.

Woculd you please contact them and have
discussions with the Soybean Council as well?

THE WITNESS: (Nods head.)

CHAIRMAN HANSON: You spcke of cleaning
stations, clean and dirty crews, potential matting.
Counsel Pesall got into some specifics in that arena, a
number of areas that I'm concerned with. It doesn't --
the Exhibit 23 states that it may include some of the
c¢leaning stations, clean and dirty crews, things of that

nature,

Again, in this particular instance do you have
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any specific criteria?

The verbiage just did not leave me with a great
deal of confidence,. In fact, again, it states that it
may include, that you may include some of these items.

THE WITNESS: Yeah. I think as I stated in my
testimony, what we feel is critical here in determining
the type of mitigation is really the prevalence of the
nematode along the route.

8o if worst-case scenario let's say 100 percent
of the route is contaminated, then obviously there really
isn't mitigation that would be required.

But if we have long stretches of contamination
and long stretches of noncontaminated fields, then the
clean crew/dirty crew option may actually be the best
opticn to use.

The cleaning stations I think would be used more
in the situation where we have, what do you want to say,
oscillation between clean and dirty fields along the
route so that it is potentially impractical to use clean
and dirty crews.

So I guess the purpose of that language in the
plan is that we may as a result of determining the
density of the problem eliminate some of those mitigation
options. I mean, maybe we end up going to nothing but

cleaning stations, let's say, as an example,
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so T think we wanted to keep all of these
options on the table until we can really analyze, you
know, the significance of the problem along the route and
best determine, you know, how to mitigate.

CHAIRMAN HANSON: Just a comment. It would seem
that if you do find a nematode cyst, that you would only
use dirty crews in those areas and that you would use
clean crews in all of the other areas SO that there would
be no cross—-contamination.

I have a few other guestions, but I will
acquiescent to my fellow Commissioners at this juncture.

Commissioner Nelson, did you have guestions?

COMMISSIONER NELSON: Just a couple, Mr. Ford.

In your initial comments today you mentioned
that of the route'alternatives that you were looking at
there was only one that ended up being rejected. Is that
the Podoll area?

THE WITNESS: Yes, 1t is.

COMMISSIONER NELSON: And referencing your
June 5 and 6 letter to Mr. and Mrs. Lyle Podell, you
indicated that one of the reasons that you couldn’t go
with their alternative was that it would place them at
odds with landowners on the proposed southern route

change.

My recollection of Mr. Podoll's commentary at
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Sections 4, 19.1, and 20 of the Appiication, as well as
Responses to Staff's First Data Requests, paragraphs 3
and 8. Section 4 talks about the benefit of the project
through property taxes specifically.

Sections 19.1 provides a summary of the
socioeconomic conditions of the project and is very
typical of what you would see in the Application and is
very consistent with applications I've done in the
past.

Section 20 is employment estimates for the project.
and paragraph 5 in the First Data Request Response has
additional property and sales taXx information details.
And paragraph 8 has additional information on employment
estimates and impacts to local economy.

In regard to soilborne pests, after conversations
with over 500 landowners who attended our project open
houses, many of those which were farmers and the
consultation we requested with NRCS and Department of
Agriculture, we were not aware of any issues of soilborne
pests.

We've addressed the evidence and have responded to
the soybean cyst nematode issue as provided by
Dr. Tylka's testimony and haven't provided evidence on
the soilborne pests as we are not aware of the prevalence

of those specific issues raised.
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I was hired to work almost exclusively on that, and that
was my graduate training as well.

Q. Can you give the Commission a short explanation of
what the soybean cyst nematode is?

A. Sure. So generally I start off this explanation by
describing nematodes in general. These are microscopic
worms that live in water and soil, very common. And most
of them are good. They're beneficial.

But there are a subset of them that feed on plants.
And many of these plant feeding nematodes or plant
parasitic nematodes are native to the United States, and
they're commonly found in agricultural soils throughout
the United States.

But there also are a few that are introduced pests.
And soybean cyst nematode, which I'll probably refer to
as SCN from this point on, is one of those introduced
pests.

And introduced pests create unique problems in that
when they are introduced into a field first off they have
no natural enemies because they've never existed there
before. So many of the native plant parasitic nematodes
are not terribly damaging because there are other things
that live in the soil that eat nematodes for lunch, for
example.

But when you're a new introduced pest you have the
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benefit of many years for not having any natural enemies.
And so that's one of the things that makes soybean cyst
nematode or SCN so difficult and so dangerous.

It also has aspects of its biology that make it very
unique and very damaging. Most nematodes are individual
worms that feed from the outside of the root and produce
five or 10 offspring. But soybean cyst nematode burrows
into the root. It attaches to the vascular tissue, which
is in the center of the root, and then the female swells
up to form who we refer to as a swollen female. And the
reason she swells up 1s because ovaries develop inside of
her that are very large.

Eventually the adult swollen female is about the
size of a printed period at the end of a sentence. So in
a book page or a newspaper. And that swollen female
fills up with eggs, 200 to 300 eggs. So a unigque aspect
of the nematode's biology is that it has a very high
reproductive potential.

Now the whole life cycle of SCN can be completed in
four weeks. So when you think about how many weeks a
soybean crop is grown in your state or mine that allows
for three or four or five turns of the 1life cycle,
generations. And so that adds to the potential for
explosive increases in numbers.

And then if mother nature didn't give us enough of a
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bad hand, that final aspect that makes it terribly
difficult to manage is the eggs inside the females. When
she dies those eggs can live 10 or more years without a
soybean crop being grown. Those eggs go dormant in the
soil.

So it's a very troublesome pest because of being an
introduced pest, having a high number of offspring per
individual, a short life cycle, and then very long lived
in the soil.

Management of soybean cyst nematode consists of
checking your fields to know if you have it or not, and
then once you've discovered you've got it, you're looking
at growing resistant soybean varieties or not growing a
host crop like soybeans or using a seed treatment, which
is a new management strategy that's just been brought on
to the market a couple of years ago.

So really check your fields, switch to a resistant
soybean variety, don't grow something that's a host crop,
or a seed treatment.

I want to just touch on the resistant soybean
varieties for a second because I don't want to give you
the impression that that's a cure. So resistant soybean
varieties suppress the reproduction of the nematode, but
it doesn't stop reproduction. And also it still suffers

some damage.
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And then as you use the resistance over time, the
nematode can become resistant to resistance. So in Iowa
where we grow 11 million acres of soybeans, soybean cyst
nematode is in 75 percent of the field. It's not a death
sentence, but it's a significant economic hit to the
soybean production in any field that has it because of
these things.

And the seed treatment, which is the newest
management strategy, in my mind at least the verdict is
still out on whether or not they provide any additional
benefit or not.

Because of everything I've Jjust said, I consider the
states of North Dakota, South Dakota, and parts of
Minnesota as being in a really unigue situation in that
there are large tracts of land growing soybeans that
don't have soybean cyst nematode yet. And so that's a
unique opportunity in terms of management. In many
respects the best way to manage soybean cyst nematode is
to delay its arrival into a particular field.

So I find myself sitting here listening to
proceedings thinking of my career in the early '90s in
Iowa when soybean cyst nematode wasn't very widespread,
and we really beat the drum and talked about managing the
movement of soil to slow the spread of the nematode.

Once the nematode is present then we've covered already
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what your management options are.

And as far as spread goes, as in my prefiled
testimony, anything that moves soil has the ability to
move soybean cyst nematode. I jJust want to bring you
back to a mental imagine of a female the size of a period
at the end of a sentence. And that little object has 200
to 300 offspring inside of her.

And so the smallest little particle that's able to
hold a period at the end of the sentence, that's the
amount of soil that could be moved to move the nematode.

Finally, one just short comment. I've heard

comments yesterday and today about farmers not mentioning

this in discussions and so forth. That doesn't surprise
me at all. Soybean cyst nematode has been in Iowa since
1978. And I arrived in 1990 and have devoted my career

to research and grower education on soybean cyst
nematode, and to this day I run into Iowa farmers who
were unaware of soybean cyst nematode.

So just because the farmer -- don't be alarmed or
don't let that throw you a curve ball. Soybean cyst
nematode is still somewhat unrecognized even in it the
State of Iowa among some farmers.

And that concludes the summary of my prefiled
testimony.

Q. Mr. Tylka, I have just a couple more questions for
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MR. SUTTON: Sure. It's relevant because the
basis for his assumptions are that when you dig into
the ground and go from field to field it spreads. My
point is there are many other mechanisms out there that
have been occurring and will occur, and we have not
developed the spread that he's indicating. That's the
relevance.

MR. SMITH: Do you want to repeat the question
and —--

MR. SUTTON: Would you like me to reask it?
Would that be easier?

MR. SMITH: Sure.

Q. Dr. Tylka, can you tell me how many miles of drain
tile have been installed in South Dakota since 1995 when

SCN became present?

MR, SMITH: I'm going to overrule the objection.

If he knows, he can answer. If he doesn't, he can
answer.

L. I do not know.

Q. Now the spread of SCN is caused by the spread of

soll particles; is that correct?

A, Reyond an inch, yes. It can conly spread on its own

power about an inch.
Q. And soil is moved by farm equipment?

A. That i1is correct.
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. And it can be moved by wind erosion?

A, Yes.

Q. Also by water erosion?

A. I agree.

Q. Will you look at paragraph =-- or your prefiled
d

irect testimony.

MR, SUTTON: Does he have that?

Q. Looking at paragraph 12 of Exhibit 101, that's the

direct prefiled testimony that you provided is
Exhibit 101, correct, Dr. Tylka?
A. The document I'm looking at has it as Exhibit 102

Q. Oh, you're right. You're right. Correct. Thank

you. Looking at paragraph 12 on page 3, you opine that

construction equipment used in the project like the
proposed BSSE line can cause SCN to spread farther or
more rapidly than ordinary farming practices.

Is that your opinion?
A, Yeah. Opinion, yes.
Q. And then you go on and page 3 and on to page 4 to
talk about the basis for that opinion; is that right?
A, Yes.
Q. And when we look at paragraph 12 in the first
paragraph underneath the actual number 12, you answer
opinion ves. And then you say "Soil disturbed by

construction equipment would likely result in greater

TTESE 17y
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spread of the nematode than soil disturbed by other

common occurrences by making the soil more friable,

easily crumbled and prone to erosion, compared to soil

that is left undisturbed or disturbed just minimally."
That's your opinion; correct?

A, Yeah,

Q. What do you mean by undisturbed?

A. Well, undisturbed would be a situation like no-till
farming or just not -- nothing dug into the soil.
Q. So, for instance, disturbing the soil through £ill

farming practices would disturb and similarly make the

soil friable, would it not?

A, I wouldn't say similarly is correct.
Q. It would make the so¢il friable; correct?
A. Yes.

Q. and it would disturb the soil?
A

Yes.

Q. You're not aware of any academic studies that have
been performed indicating construction practices result
in the spread of SCN; correct?

A. No. I believe I stated that in the prefiled
testimony.

Q. No is a little ambigucous to the record there, 3o
the answer to my guestion is correct; correct?

A. Correct.
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among the farmers I have had personal experience with.
and I guess I can say that relates back to my opening
comments . about the awareness of the nematode, and that's
what I meant by diligent.

Q. Now in your opening comments you also described some
mitigation techniques that farmers can employ if they get

SCN in their fields; is that right?

A, That's correct.

Q. and one of those is to grow nonhost crops such as
corn?

A, That i1s correct.

Q. And another option would bé to include nonhost crops

like corn as part of a crop rotation; correct?

A. Yes.

Q. And, in fact, you recommend that to producers who
have SCN?

A, That's correct.

Q. That's part of the techniques used to minimize the
effect?

A, Correct.

Q. Another option would be to plant SCN resistant

variety seed; correct?

A, Correct.

Q. And as part of your work you have completed academic

research about the success in using SCN resistant seeds;
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absence of the nematode.
That has become less of an issue cver the past

20 years, but there still are some 3SCN resistant soybean
varieties that do not have top yield potential. So
that's my reason for my answer being it depends on the
variety that's chosen.
Q. Because of our growing season, as we move further
north into areas that have had less pressure from SCN,
would the varieties probably have more research done in
that area at this point?
A. The answer is yes. And there are much fewer
varieties available with SCN resistance in the maturity
groups grown in South Dakota relative to Iowa. Even
right now.

MR. SCHURING: Thank you.

MR. SMITH: Mr. Mcrehouse, any questions?

MR. MOREHOQUSE: ©Nothing. Thank you.

MR. SMITH: Staff, any questions?

MS. CREMER: Thank vyou.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MS. CREMER:

Q. Is there any way to determine how SCN is introduced

into a clean field?

A, I've never been asked that guestion in 28 years.

Q. Yay for me.
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CCMMISSIONER FIEGEN: Congratulations.

A, I don't think so. They all look the same and are
genetic the same. I don't think so.
Q. And is there any way to determine when SCN was

introduced into a clean field?
A. Not specifically. Although you could deduce socme
timing information based on the numbers that are
detected, It doesn't show up in full blown force in
terms of numbers. It starts out slowly and builds up.
Q. And then looking at your Exhibit 105, it's a map.
A, Yes.
Q. You have that? S8So i1f I understood your testimony
cerrectly, where it shows there is S5CN, there definitely
is in the dark portiocns of the map?
i It should be red if it were printed in color.
Q. Yeah. I printed mine black and white, but okay. If
I understood you correctly, those areas that show up
white, those may also have SCN and you just haven't found
it yet?
A, That's correct.
MS. CREMER: Okay. Thank you.
THE WITNESS: That's a correct statement.
MR, SMITH: Is that all the questions you have?
MS. CREMER: That's all I have. Thank you.

MR. SMITH: We'll turn then to Commissioner
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and research in fields, or does everything come in to
you?

THE WITNESS: ©No. Most of my field research is
done on farmers' fields.

COMMISSIONER FIEGEN: OCkay. So what precautions
de you take and your‘assistants -- I'm sure you have some
grad assistants with you.

What type c¢f precautions do you take on
vehicles, c¢lothing, work boots, all of that?

THE WITNESS: Just knock off as much dirt as
possible, as much soil as possible. Soil probes is
probably another thing that would accumulate soil. We
just make sure we're nct taking large clods of soil. But
we don't steam wash or power wash. We just -- we work in
fields with SCN. So we —-- yeah,

COMMISSIONER FIEGEN: It is really tricky
because when an egg of 200 eggs -- that swollen female.

THE WITNESS: Female.

COMMISSIONER FIEGEN: And it's a point of a
period, it is in your boots. Because when I wear work
boots they have groves,

THE WITNESS: Absolutely.

COMMISSIONER FIEGEN: I can knock off as nuch
spil as I can, but it's still there.

THE WITNESS: Yes.
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COMMISSIONER FIEGEN: S0 the precautions of the
research people are pretty much not going through the
washing but mostly knocking off the excess.

THE WITNESS: Yeah. And let's be specific. You
asked about my particular research group. There may be
other research groups in other states where they do use
plastic booties on their feet and they do more thorough
precautions than I do.

COMMISSIONER FIEGEN: Sure. Thank you.

THE WITNESS: Yes.

COMMISSIONER FIEGEN: Are you aware --
especially when I see commercial sprayers out there
across the State of South Dakota, but I'm sure across
Towa you have those big commercial sprayers. Are you
aware of any mechanisms they take to prevent the spread
of diseases?

Because, of course, they travel on rcads. Roads
have mud. So they're picking up things while they're
traveling to the farmers, let alone from farm to farm to
elevator, all cof that.

THE WITNESS: Yeah. The answer is no. And
forgive me if I'm over answering, but since you're
curious about that, the way I pitch managing the movement
of soil in Iowa is first in the context that

three~fourths of the fields have it. And that percentage
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g

maybe some of those nematodes could get baked near the
soll surface, and maybe the numbers would be lower than
if yecu had collected to a depth of 8 inches.

CHAIRMAN HANSON: ©Okay. Because there was some
discussion it sounded like there needed to be some
excavation of some sort in order for it to be
transported. But it sounds like -- that seemed to
conflict a little bit with one ¢f your cther answers when
you said -~ I believe it might have been Mr. Sutton's
guestion, could it be transported by the wind, and you
answered yes.

THE WITNESS: Yep.

CHAIRMAN HANSON: It could.

THE WITNESS: So my answer to your guestion, to
double back on your questicn, is it's present there at
the surface.

From a research standpoint where I'm measuring
numbers I would worry about only including that upper
inch because the numbers might be a little lower. But
it's present, and it's available to be wind blown, water
washed, all the things that we covered that move so¢il.

CHAIRMAN HANSON: So hunters going from cone
fiesld to the next, deer running from cne field to the
next, any animals, badgers, skunks, whatever, rabbits --

what about water fowl and birds? They could transport it
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as well?

THE WITNESS: There's actually a paper where
somebody has picked through bird droppings and found dead
SCN females with live eggs.

CEATRMAN HANSON: It sounds like it's impossible
to stop this. This is terrible.

THE WITNESS: I mean, it is, but there are
certain parts of the country that are in a unique
situation. I would never say you can stop it or prevent
it, but there's things that could be done to slow it.

CEATRMAN HANSON: And it develops immunity to
herbicides and --

THE WITNESS: Well, to resistant -- I was using
the herbicides as an analogy. But it can develop
resistance to the resistant varieties.

CHATRMAN HANSON: What are some other host crops
besides soybeans that are grown in South Dakota?

THE WITNESS: What are the crops that are grown
in South Dakota?

CHAIRMAN HANSON: Sorghum, corn.

THE WITNESS: Wheat are not hosts.

CHAIRMAN HANSON: Wheat. What other --

THE WITNESS: So hosts are more into play when
you get into North Dakota and Minnesota and you talk

about edible beans. There's all kinds of different types
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Q. What do you mean "not as much"?
A. Well, I made the comment here a little bit at the
end here I said this project will take more from

agriculture and the state of South Dakota than it will

return.
Q. Well, as I understand it -- and we will get the
exhibits in front of you that are your land. They're

Exhibits 21A and 21B and 21C.

Do you have those exhibits before you?

A. Yes, I do. B.

Q. 21A, 21B, and 21C.

A. Yes. I have A in front of me.

Q. Is 21A a true and accurate representation of the

land in which the project seeks to put its structures?
A. I believe so.

Q. The project proposes to put two structures on your
property, and those numbers are 457 and 458. Is that
your understanding?

A. According to this map, vyes.

Q. And is that your field that's depicted in

Exhibit 21A7?

A. Yes, it is.

Q. Do you do till or no-till in that?

A. Depends on the year and the conditions of the soil.
Q. Do you do both then?
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State of South Dakota

EIGHTY-FOURTH SESSION
LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY, 2009

40000194
< SENATE BILL No. 62

Introduced by: The Committee on Commerce at the request of the Public Utilities
Commission

1  FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to repeal certain provisions regarding the delegation of

2 powers by the Public Utilities Commission.

3 BEIT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA:

4 Section 1. That § 49-1-17 be repealed.

225 copies of this document were printed by the South Dakota @ Insertions into existing statutes are indicated by underscores.

Legislative Research Council at a cost of $.04 per page. Deletions from existing statutes are indicated by overstrikes.

e e | I 1




e b L

BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF ) NOTICE OF APPLICATION;
MONTANA-DAKOTA UTILITIES CO. AND } ORDER FOR AND NOTICE OF
OTTER TAIL. POWER COMPANY FOR A ) PUBLIC INPUT HEARING;
PERMIT TO CONSTRUCT THE BIG STONE ) NOTICE OF OPPORTUNITY TO
SOUTH TO ELLENDALE 345 KV )  APPLY FOR PARTY STATUS
)
)

TRANSMISSION LINE
EL13-028

On August 23, 2013, Montana-Dakota Ulilities Co., a Division of MDU Resources
Group, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and Otter Tail Power Company, a Minnesota corporation,
(jointly, the Applicants) filed with the South Dakota Public Utilitles Commission (Commission) an
Application for a Facility Permit for the Big Stone South to Ellendale 345 kV Transmission Line
project (Application) and a Motion to Schedule Prehearing Conference (Motion). The Apgplication
requests Commission approval of a permit to construct a 348-kilovoh (kV) transmission line of
approximetely 150 to 160 miles in South Dakota (Project). The line will cross the South Dakota
and North Dakota border in Brown County, South Dakota, and extend south and east through
Brown, Day, and Grant counties to the Big Stone South Substation in Grant County, South
Dakota, near Big Stone City. Modifications to the Project may occur depending on the final route
permitted, land rights, and final engineering design. The Commission has jurisdiction over this
matter pursuant to SDCL Chapters 1-26 and 49-418 and ARSD Chapter 20:10;22.

On August 26, 2013, the Commission issued a Notice of Application; Order for and
Notice of Public Input Hearings; Notice of Opportunity to Apply for Party Status (Order). On
August 28, 2013, the Commission electronically transmitted notice of the Application and the
intervention deadline of October 22, 2013, to interested individuals and entities on the
Commission's PUC Weekly Filings electronic listserv. On September 13,.2013, the Crder was
served on the goveming bodies of all counties and municipalities in the project area, and notices
of the public hearings were published in project area newspapers as provided in SDCL 49-41B-
5.2 and 49-41B-15. On September 13, 2013, the Commission issusd an Order Assessing Filing
Fee assessing a filing fee not to exceed the statutory maximum of $360,000 with a minimum fee
of the statutory $8,000 minimum. The public hearings were held as scheduled on October 17,
2013, in Aberdeen and Milbank. On October 18, 2013, Gerald Pesall fifed an Application for
Party Status. On November 6, 2013, the Commission issued an Order Granting Intervention and
Party Status to Gerald Pesall. On January 13, 2014, the Commission issued a Procedural
Scheduling Order setting the matter for formal evidentiary hearing on June 10-12, 2014, in
Room 413 of the State Capitol Building in Pierre beginning at 1:00 p.m. CDT with days two and
three beginning at 8:00 a.m. CDT. On January 27, 2014, Applicants filed a First Amendment to

Application (Amendment).

Due to Applicants having made some route changes in certain areas of the Project
which will result in some additional landowners coming within the half-mile Project corridor,
Applicants will be required to serve notice on such landowners and the Commission deems it
proper o hold an additional public input hearing. Pursuant to SDCL 49-41B-15 and 49-41B-16,
the Commission will hold an additional public input hearing on the Application on
Tuesday, May 20, 2014, at 6:30 p.m. CDT In Meeting Room D & H, Ramada Aberdeen
Hotel and Conference Center, 2727 Sixth Ave, SE, Aberdeen, 5.D. 57401.
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The purpose of this public input hearing will be to hear public comment regarding the
transmission line permit Application, the Amendment, and the Project. At the hearing, Applicants
will present a brief description of the Project, following which interested persons may appear
and present their views, comments and questions regarding the Application. A copy of the
Application is on file with the Brown, Day, and Grant County Auditors pursuant to SDCL 49-41B-
15(5) and at the Commission's office in Plerre. The Application and all other documents in the
case, including detailed maps of the Project, may be accessed on the Commission's web site at
www.puc.gd.gov under Commission Actions, Commission Dockets, Electric Dockets, 2013

Eleciric Docksts, EL13-028.

Pursuant to SDCL 49-41B-17 and ARSD 20:10:22:40, the parties to this proceeding are
currently the Applicants, Gerald Pesall, and the Commission. Any person residing in the area of
the Project, each municipality, county, and governmental agency in the area where the Project
is proposed to be sited; any non-profit organization formed in whole or in part to promote
conservation or natural beauty, to protect the environment, personal health or other biclogical
values, to preserve historical sites, to promote consumer interests, to represent commercial and
industrial groups, or to promote the orderly development of the area in which the Project is to be
sited; or any interested person, may be granted party status in this proceeding by making

-written application to the Commission. Applications for party status may be obtained from the
Commission’s web site or by contacting the Commission. Applications for party status must be

received by the Commission on or before April 16, 2014,

Foliowing the public input hearing, the Commission will hold a formal evidentiary hearing
as set forth above conforming to SDCL Chapler 1-26 to consider any issues ralsed by any
intervening party, Commission Staff, or the Commission itself. At such formal hearing, all parties
will have the opportunity to appear, present evidence, and cross-examine the other parties'
witnesses and exercise all other rights afforded by SDCL Chapters 1-28, 49-1, and 49-41B and
ARSD Chapters 20:10:01 and 20:10:22, including rights of appeal to the courts.

For approval, the Applicants must show that the propesed transmission Project will
comply with all applicable laws and rules, will not pose a threat of sericus Injury to the
environment nor to the social and economic condition of inhahitants or expected inhabitants in
the siting area, will not substantially impair the health, safety or welfare of the inhabitants, and
will not unduly interfere with the orderly development of the region with due consideration
having been given to the views of governing bodies of affected local units of government, Based
upon these factors, the Commission will decide whether the permit should be granted, denied,
or granted upon such ferms, conditions or modifications of the construction, operation or

maintenance as the Commission finds appropriate.

I is therefore

ORDERED, that the Commission will hold an additional public input hearing on the
Project on Tuesday, May 20, 2014, at 6:30 p.m. CDT in Meeting Room D & H, Ramada
Aberdeen Hotel and Conference Center, 2727 Sixth Ave. SE, Aberdeen, S.D. §7401.
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Pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act, these hearings will be held in physically
accessible locations. Please contact the Public Utilities Commission at 1-800-332-1782 at least
48 hours prior to the hearing if you have special needs so arrangements can be made to

accommodate you.

CERTIFICATE OF SERVIGE

The undersigned hereby ceriifles that this
document has been served today upon ali parties
of record in this docket, as listed on the docket
service list, by fecsimlle or by first class mall, In
property addressed envelopes, with charges
prepaid therson,

JEAC!

(OFFICIAL SEAL)

o/

g

Dated at Pierre, South Dakota, this n

day of March, 2014.

BY ORDER OF THE COMMFSSION'

o

CHRIS NELSON, Commissioner

0 oy

KRISTIE FIEGEN, Commissioner

L
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